
 

 

 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
 
 

Regular Meeting 
 

of the 
 
 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF TROY 

 
FEBRUARY 2, 2004 

 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  Submitted By 
      The City Manager 



 

 

TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda.  Also included are suggested or 
requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your consideration and possible 
amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by 
department directors and staff members.  I am indebted to them for their efforts 
to provide insight and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
Identified below are goals for the City, which have been advanced by the 
governing body; and Agenda items submitted for your consideration are on 
course with these goals. 

 
Goals 

 
1. Minimize cost and increase efficiency of City government. 
2. Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment. 
3. Effectively and professionally communicate internally and externally. 
4. Creatively maintain and improve public infrastructure. 
5. Protect life and property. 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your 
deliberations may require. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Gary A. Shripka, Acting City Manager 



NOTICE:  People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should contact 
the City Clerk at (248) 524-3317 or via e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us at least two working days in advance of the 
meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 

      

 

 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
  AGENDA 

February 2, 2004 – 7:30 PM 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 

CALL TO ORDER 1 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Pastor Fimion Timbuc – Bethesda 
Romanian Pentecostal Church 1 

ROLL CALL 1 

PRESENTATION: 1 

A-1  Troy Community Coalition Anti-Drug Mural Art Project 1 

PUBLIC HEARINGS – No Public Hearings scheduled. 1 

POSTPONED ITEM 1 

D-1 Content Neutral Informational Brochures for Ballot Issues 1 

PUBLIC COMMENT: 2 

A. Items on the Current Agenda 2 

B.  Items Not on the Current Agenda 2 

CONSENT AGENDA 2 

E-1 Approval of Consent Agenda 2 

E-2  Minutes: Regular Meeting of January 26, 2004 3 



E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation: 3 

(a) Kindness Week – February 14-21, 2004.............................................................. 3 

E-4 Amendment to No. 1 to the Preliminary Engineering Agreement with Orchard, Hiltz 
& McCliment, Inc. (OHM) for Services for John R, Long Lake to Square Lake – 
Project No. 02.203.5 3 

E-5 Private Agreement for NBS Headquarters – Project No. 03.934.3 3 

E-6 Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Option to Renew – Office Supplies 3 

E-7 Request to Transfer Class C License by Fox & Hound of Michigan, Inc. 4 

E-8 Private Agreement for Minnesota Spec Bldg. – Project No. 01.935.3 5 

E-9 Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Pavement Seam and 
Fracture Sealing Program 5 

E-10 Load Restrictions 5 

E-11 Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Option to Renew – Ice Melts Compounds 6 

E-12 Request for Acceptance of Permanent Watermain Easement – Sidwell #88-20-35-
226-098 – Project No. 03.924.3 – Metropolitan Detroit Plumbing Industry Training 
Trust Fund 6 

E-13 Announcement of a Public Hearing Regarding Acceptance of a Local Law 
Enforcement Block Grant 6 

E-14 Standard Purchasing Resolution 6: Grant Approval and Authorization to Expend 
City Funds – Solar Emergency Electrical Power Supply 6 

E-15 Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – Lowest Acceptable Bidder 
Meeting Specifications – Printing the Senior Newsletter 7 

E-16 Amendment No. 1 to the Preliminary Engineering Agreement with Orchard, Hiltz & 
McCliment, Inc. (OHM) for Services for John R, Square Lake to South Boulevard –
Project No. 02.204.5 7 

E-17 Standard Purchasing Resolution #2: Bid Award – Lowest Acceptable Bidder 
Meeting Specifications - Scoreboards 7 



E-18 Release of Retained Public Utility Easement at 94 Hickory – Sidwell #88-20-27-
156-029 – Daniel Bousho - Owner 8 

E-19 Barnard Drain Special Assessment Roll 8 

E-20 Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Spring Opening and 
Fall Winterizations of the Troy Family Aquatic Center 8 

E-21 Request for Acceptance of Permanent Water Main Easement – Sidwell #88-20-
36-451-047 – Project No. 01.935.3 – Minnesota Ventures, L.L.C. 9 

REGULAR BUSINESS 9 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: (a) Mayoral Appointments: 1. Economic 
Development Committee; 2. Planning Commission (b) City Council Appointments: 
1. Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities; 2. CATV Advisory Committee; 
3. Election Commission; and 4. Troy Daze 9 

F-2 Closed Session 15 

F-3 Proposed Rescheduling of Liquor Violation Hearing Scheduled for Wednesday, 
February 25, 2004 15 

F-4 LED Traffic Signals – Maple Road – Expense Revision to Council Resolution 
#2001-05-271 15 

F-5 Resolution to Set a Public Hearing on Monday, February 16, 2004 for a Michigan 
NextEnergy Exemption 16 

F-6 Revisions to Chapter 10: Employee Retirement System 16 

F-7 Streambank Inventory and Detention Basin Inventory Grant 16 

F-8 Old Troy, L.L.C. v. City of Troy, et. al 17 

COUNCIL COMMENTS/COUNCIL REFERRALS 17 

Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for Placement 
on the Agenda: 17 



COUNCIL REFERRALS 17 

REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS 18 

G-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 18 

(a) Civil Service Commission (Act 78)/Final – September 25, 2003 ........................ 18 
(b) Planning Commission-Study/Final – December 2, 2003 .................................... 18 
(c) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – December 3, 2003 .... 18 
(d) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – December 3, 2003 .... 18 
(e) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – December 4, 2003................... 18 
(f) Planning Commission Regular/Final – December 9, 2003 ................................. 18 
(g) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – December 10, 

2003 ................................................................................................................... 18 
(h) Library Board/Final – December 11, 2003.......................................................... 18 
(i) Downtown Development Authority/Final – December 17, 2003 ......................... 18 
(j) Youth Council/Final – December 17, 2003......................................................... 18 
(k) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – January 6, 2004 ...................................... 18 
(l) Planning Commission Special-Study/Draft – January 6, 2004 ........................... 18 
(m) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – January 7, 2004 ............................. 18 
(n) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens – January 8, 2004 ............................... 18 
(o) Library Board/Draft – January 8, 2004 ............................................................... 18 
(p) Parks and Recreation Advisory Board/Draft – January 8, 2004 ......................... 18 
(q) Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – January 12, 2004 ........................................ 18 
(r) Planning Commission/Draft – January 13, 2004 ................................................ 18 
(s) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – January 20, 2004 ........................................... 18 
(t) Youth Council/Draft – January 21, 2004............................................................. 18 
(u) CATV Advisory Board/Draft – January 22, 2004 ................................................ 18 
(v) Civil Service Commission (Act78)/Draft – January 22, 2004 .............................. 18 

G-2 Department Reports: 18 

(a) Quarterly Financial Report – December 31, 2003 .............................................. 18 
(b) Concession Stand Operations Report ................................................................ 18 
(c) Auction, December 6, 2003 – St. Clair Michigan – Vehicle Sale Report ............ 18 

G-3 Announcement of Public Hearings: 18 

(a) Request for Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 3769 Meadowbrook – Alternative 
Plan Submitted by Petitioner – Scheduled for February 23, 2004...................... 18 

(b) Article II (Changes, Amendments and Approvals) Zoning Ordinance 
Amendments and Repeal of Chapter 40 (ZOTA #203) – Scheduled for 
February 23, 2004 .............................................................................................. 18 

G-4 Green Memorandums: None submitted. 18 

G-5 Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None proposed. 18 

G-6  Calendar 18 



G-7  Letters of Appreciation: 19 

(a) 8th Annual Achievement of Excellence in Procurement 2003 Award 
Recipients – Jeanette Bennett – Purchasing Director taken from Government 
Procurement – December 2003 ......................................................................... 19 

(b) Letter of Appreciation from Alicia Wahls – Health Educator, Smith Middle 
School Thanking Officer N. Kaptur for Speaking to Her Class About the 
Effects of Drugs.................................................................................................. 19 

(c) Letter of Appreciation from Fr. Emanuel Shaleta, Pastor of St. Joseph 
Catholic Chaldean Church, and Sam Younis and Davin Sesi, Parking 
Enforcement Committee to Chief Craft Thanking the Troy Police Department 
for Their Assistance With Parking During the Holidays ...................................... 19 

(d) Letter of Appreciation from a Proud Troy Citizen Thanking Police Officers 
Barton and Zagacki for Explaining the Importance of the 911 System to His 9-
Year Old Son Who Misused the Phone by Calling 911 ...................................... 19 

G-8  Travel Expense Report – Robin Beltramini 19 

G-9  Memorandum, Re: Election of Planning Commissioner Officers for 2004 19 

G-10  Letter to John Szerlag from Gary A. Shripka , Re: Announcement of His 
Retirement 19 

G-11  Memorandum, Re: Youth Council’s Intent to Further Reduce Membership Size 19 

G-12  Memorandum , Re: Report on Traffic Signal Operation – Intersection of 
Charrington and Rochester 19 

G-13  Memorandum, Re: Parks and Recreation Program Changes 19 

G-14  Memorandum, Re: Cricket Site Development 19 

G-15  Memorandum, Re: City Owned Surplus Parcels 19 

PUBLIC COMMENT 19 

STUDY ITEMS – No Study Items submitted. 19 





CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 2, 2004 
 

- 1 - 

CALL TO ORDER 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Pastor Fimion Timbuc – Bethesda 
Romanian Pentecostal Church 

ROLL CALL 

Mayor Matt Pryor 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield 
David Eisenbacher 
Martin F. Howrylak 
David A. Lambert  
Jeanne M. Stine 
 

PRESENTATION:  

A-1  Troy Community Coalition Anti-Drug Mural Art Project 

PUBLIC HEARINGS – No Public Hearings scheduled. 

POSTPONED ITEM 

D-1 Content Neutral Informational Brochures for Ballot Issues 
 
Resolution #2004-02- 
Moved by Howrylak   
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
  
WHEREAS, Informational brochures were developed addressing ballot issues that will be 
placed before the voters on April 5, 2004. 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That all portions of the brochure dealing with the potential advance of 
seven acres of Civic Center land be REMOVED; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the portion of the brochure dealing with 
proposed Charter Amendments be PUBLISHED and DISSEMINATED; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That City Management is AUTHORIZED to publish and 
disseminate the informational brochures to all Troy households and additional copies will be 
available at City Hall, the Library, the Community Center or any other appropriate sites. 
 
Yes: 
No: 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 2, 2004 
 

- 2 - 

PUBLIC COMMENT:   

A. Items on the Current Agenda 
 
Any person not a member of the Council may address the Council with recognition of 
the Chair, after clearly stating the nature of his/her inquiry.  No person not a member of 
the Council shall be allowed to speak more than twice or longer than five (5) minutes on 
any question, unless so permitted by the Chair. The Council may waive the requirements 
of this section by a majority of the Council Members. Consistent with Order of Business 
#11, the City Council will move forward the specific Business Items which audience 
members would like to address. The Mayor shall announce the items which are to be 
moved forward and will ask the audience if there are any additional items which they 
would like to address. All Business Items that members of the audience would like to 
address will be brought forth and acted upon at this time. Items will be taken individually 
and members of the audience will address council prior to council discussion of the 
individual item. 

B.  Items Not on the Current Agenda 
 
After Council is finished acting on all Business Items that have been brought forward, 
the public is welcome to address the Mayor and Council on items that are specifically 
not on the agenda. (Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Article 15 as amended 
September 22, 2003) 
 
CONSENT AGENDA  
 
The Consent Agenda includes items of a routine nature and will be approved with one 
motion.  That motion will approve the recommended action for each item on the Consent 
Agenda.  Any Council Member may remove an item from the Consent Agenda and have 
it considered as a separate item.  Any item so removed from the Consent Agenda shall 
be considered after other items on the consent business portion of the agenda have 
been heard. (Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Article 13, as amended September 
22, 2003) 

E-1 Approval of Consent Agenda 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-02- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Item(s) _____________, which shall be considered after 
Consent Agenda (E) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: 
No: 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 2, 2004 
 

- 3 - 

E-2  Minutes: Regular Meeting of January 26, 2004 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-02-  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular Meeting of January 26, 2004 be 
APPROVED as submitted. 

E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation:  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-02- 
 
RESOLVED, That the following City of Troy Proclamation be APPROVED: 
(a) Kindness Week – February 14-21, 2004 

E-4 Amendment to No. 1 to the Preliminary Engineering Agreement with Orchard, 
Hiltz & McCliment, Inc. (OHM) for Services for John R, Long Lake to Square Lake 
– Project No. 02.203.5 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-02- 
 
RESOLVED, That the First Amendment to Preliminary Engineering Agreement No. 
02.5178/S1, between the City of Troy and Orchard, Hiltz & McCliment, Inc. (OHM) for the 
reconstruction of John R, between Long Lake and Square Lake is hereby APPROVED at an 
estimated cost to the City of Troy not to exceed $49,996.23, and the Mayor and City Clerk are 
AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the amendment; a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 

E-5 Private Agreement for NBS Headquarters – Project No. 03.934.3 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-02- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Contract for the Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private 
Agreement) between the City of Troy and Work Stage, L.L.C., is hereby APPROVED for the 
installation of storm sewer and water main on the site and in the adjacent right-of-way, and the 
Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the documents; a copy of which shall 
be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 

E-6 Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Option to Renew – Office Supplies 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-02- 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 2, 2004 
 

- 4 - 

WHEREAS, On March 19, 2001, a cooperative contract for Office Supplies was approved with 
Office Depot as a result of a bid process conducted by Los Angeles County and made available 
through the National Cooperative Purchasing Program, also known as, U.S. Communities 
Program (Resolution #2001-03-1060-E-4); and 
 
WHEREAS, Office Depot has agreed to exercise an option to renew the contract under the 
same discount structure, terms, and conditions. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the option to renew the contract is hereby 
EXERCISED with Office Depot under the same discount structure, terms, and conditions for a 
14-month period expiring April 4, 2005. 
 

Core List – Frequently Ordered Items – 300 Up to 80% off List 
Catalog of Frequently Ordered Items – 3,000 List less 63% with a 15% GP Floor* 
Office Furniture List less 52% with a 10% GP Floor* 
Remainder of BSD Catalog List less 45% with a 15% GP Floor* 
Business Machines Retail Store Pricing 
Paper Cost + 18% (15% GP); floats with market 

E-7 Request to Transfer Class C License by Fox & Hound of Michigan, Inc. 
 
(a) License Transfer 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-02- 
 
RESOLVED, That the request from Fox & Hound of Michigan, Inc., to TRANSFER 
OWNERSHIP of 2003 Class C licensed business located at 1937 W. Maple, Troy, MI 48084 – 
Oakland County, from Housefield, L.L.C.; TRANSFER LOCATION to 1965 W. Maple, Troy, MI 
48084 – Oakland County; and requests a new entertainment permit and a new official permit 
(food) [MLCC REQ ID #233626], be considered for APPROVAL. It is the consensus of this 
legislative body that the application be RECOMMENDED for issuance. 
 
(b) Agreement 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-02- 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy deems it necessary to enter agreements with 
applicants for liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in 
the event licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy hereby 
APPROVES an agreement with Fox & Hound of Michigan, Inc. which shall become effective 
upon approval of the request to transfer ownership of 2003 Class C licensed business, located 
at 1937 W. Maple, Troy, MI 48084 – Oakland County, from Housefield, L.L.C.; transfer location 
to 1965 W. Maple, Troy, MI 48084 – Oakland County; and requests a new entertainment permit 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 2, 2004 
 

- 5 - 

and new official permit (food); and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE 
the document; a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 

E-8 Private Agreement for Minnesota Spec Bldg. – Project No. 01.935.3 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-02- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Contract for the Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private 
Agreement) between the City of Troy and Kemp & Co. is hereby APPROVED for the 
installation of storm sewer, watermain and paving on the site and in the adjacent right-of-way, 
and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the documents; a copy of 
which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 

E-9 Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Pavement Seam and 
Fracture Sealing Program 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-02- 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract for the Pavement Seam and Fracture Sealing Program with an 
option to renew for two (2) additional one-year periods is hereby AWARDED to the low bidder, 
Michigan Joint Sealing, Inc., at an estimated cost of $139,230.00, at unit prices contained in 
the bid tabulation opened January 7, 2004; a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed bid and contract documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all 
other specified requirements; and if changes in the quantity of work is required either additive 
or deductive, such changes are AUTHORIZED in an amount not to exceed 25% of the total 
annual cost for each year. 

E-10 Load Restrictions   
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-02- 
 
RESOLVED, That axle load limits of 6,000 pounds per axle and 8,500 pounds per tandem 
assembly are hereby ESTABLISHED AND IMPOSED upon vehicles traveling upon streets and 
roads of the City of Troy, during periods prescribed in Chapter 94, Axle Load Ordinance, of the 
Code of the City of Troy for “frost law” limitations, which streets are listed in Attachment “A” of a 
report from the Public Works Director dated January 21, 2004; a copy of said report and 
attachments shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 2, 2004 
 

- 6 - 

E-11 Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Option to Renew – Ice Melts Compounds 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-02- 
 
WHEREAS, On October 30, 2002 a one-year contract with an option to renew for one 
additional year for Ice Melt Compounds was awarded administratively to Washington Elevator 
Co., Inc. for an estimated cost of $8,750.00; and 
 
WHEREAS, Washington Elevator Co., Inc. has agreed to exercise the one-year option to 
renew under the same prices, terms, and conditions. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the option to renew the contract is hereby 
EXERCISED with Washington Elevator Co., Inc. to provide Ice Melt Compounds for an 
estimated annual cost of $15,000.00 under the same contract prices, terms, and conditions 
expiring October 31, 2004. 

E-12 Request for Acceptance of Permanent Watermain Easement – Sidwell #88-20-35-
226-098 – Project No. 03.924.3 – Metropolitan Detroit Plumbing Industry Training 
Trust Fund 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-02- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Permanent Easement for watermain from Metropolitan Detroit Plumbing 
Industry Training Trust Fund, having Sidwell #88-20-35-226-098 is hereby ACCEPTED, and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD said 
permanent easement with Oakland County Register of Deeds; a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 

E-13 Announcement of a Public Hearing Regarding Acceptance of a Local Law 
Enforcement Block Grant 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-02- 
 
RESOLVED, That a Public Hearing regarding the Local Law Enforcement Block Grant 
designated to purchase Web-EOC be HELD on Monday, February 23, 2004. 

E-14 Standard Purchasing Resolution 6: Grant Approval and Authorization to Expend 
City Funds – Solar Emergency Electrical Power Supply 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-02- 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 2, 2004 
 

- 7 - 

RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council does hereby AUTHORIZE the Troy Fire Department to 
receive a grant for the purchase of a solar generated electrical power supply system through 
the State of Michigan Energy Office from Uni-Solar Corporation for an estimated $37,248.00; 
and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That if the grant is approved, the expenditure of matching City 
funds in the amount of $6,833.00 is hereby AUTHORIZED. 

E-15 Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – Lowest Acceptable Bidder 
Meeting Specifications – Printing the Senior Newsletter 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-02- 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to provide printing of the Senior Citizen newsletter for one (1) year 
with an option to renew for one (1) additional year is hereby AWARDED to the lowest bidder 
meeting specifications, Johnston Lithograph, Inc., for an estimated annual cost of $8,832.00, 
plus additional charges when needed not to exceed 25% of the total contract cost or $2,208.00, 
at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened January 7, 2004; a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 

E-16 Amendment No. 1 to the Preliminary Engineering Agreement with Orchard, Hiltz & 
McCliment, Inc. (OHM) for Services for John R, Square Lake to South Boulevard –
Project No. 02.204.5  

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-02- 
 
RESOLVED, That the First Amendment to Preliminary Engineering Agreement No. 02-
5179/S1, between the City of Troy and Orchard, Hiltz & McCliment, Inc. (OHM) for the 
reconstruction of John R, between Square Lake and South Boulevard is hereby APPROVED at 
an estimated cost to the City of Troy not to exceed $5,292.91, and the Mayor and City Clerk 
are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the amendment; a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 

E-17 Standard Purchasing Resolution #2: Bid Award – Lowest Acceptable Bidder 
Meeting Specifications - Scoreboards 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-02- 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to furnish and install five (5) Nevco Baseball/Softball 
Scoreboards, Model 1q510 is hereby AWARDED to the lowest acceptable bidder meeting 
specifications, Troy Electric, Inc., at an estimated total cost of $21,500.00; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 2, 2004 
 

- 8 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements. 

E-18 Release of Retained Public Utility Easement at 94 Hickory – Sidwell #88-20-27-156-
029 – Daniel Bousho - Owner 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-02- 
 
RESOLVED, That the west 8 feet of the 50-foot wide public utility, storm drain/sewer easement 
retained over vacated Mastin Street, recorded in Liber 16413, page 860 of Oakland County 
Records, and abutting Lot 66 of Greenough Heights Subdivision, being part of Sidwell #88-20-
27-156-029, commonly known as 94 Hickory Street is hereby RELEASED AND ABANDONED; 
and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD this 
resolution with the Oakland County Register of Deeds; a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to 
the original Minutes of this meeting. 

E-19 Barnard Drain Special Assessment Roll 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-02- 
 
WHEREAS, The Oakland County Drain Commissioner is responsible for administration of 
maintenance for the Barnard Drain, a Chapter 20 Drain.  
 
WHEREAS, Based on apportionment, maintenance records and projected maintenance costs 
through 2006, a Special Assessment Roll was assembled by the Oakland County Drain 
Commissioner and approved by the Drain Board.     
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That payment by the City of Troy for that 
apportionment of the Special Assessment Roll to the Oakland County Drain Commissioner in 
the amount of $30,157.73 for the maintenance of the Barnard Drain, is hereby APPROVED. 

E-20 Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Spring Opening and 
Fall Winterizations of the Troy Family Aquatic Center 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-02- 
 
RESOLVED, That a three (3) year contract to furnish the Spring Opening and Fall Winterization 
of the City of Troy Family Aquatic Center is hereby AWARDED to the sole bidder, Clearwater 
Pools and Service of Ann Arbor, Inc., for a three-year contract cost of $22,125.00, at annual 
unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened January 14, 2004; a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 2, 2004 
 

- 9 - 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements. 

E-21 Request for Acceptance of Permanent Water Main Easement – Sidwell #88-20-36-
451-047 – Project No. 01.935.3 – Minnesota Ventures, L.L.C. 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-02- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Permanent Easement for water main from Minnesota Ventures, L.L.C., 
having Sidwell #88-20-36-451-047 is hereby ACCEPTED, and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD said 
permanent easement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds; a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS 

Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair (during the public comment portion of the agenda item’s discussion). Other 
than asking questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall 
not interrupt members of the public during their comments. For those addressing City 
Council, petitioners shall be given a fifteen (15) minute presentation time that may be 
extended with the majority consent of Council and all other interested people, their time 
may be limited to not more than twice nor longer than five (5) minutes on any question, 
unless so permitted by the Chair, in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City 
Council, Article 15, as amended September 22, 2003. Once discussion is brought back to 
the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak only by 
invitation by Council, through the Chair. 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: (a) Mayoral Appointments: 1. Economic 
Development Committee; 2. Planning Commission (b) City Council Appointments: 
1. Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities; 2. CATV Advisory Committee; 
3. Election Commission; and 4. Troy Daze 

 
The appointment of new members to all of the listed board and committee vacancies will 
require only one motion and vote by City Council.  Council members submit recommendations 
for appointment. When the number of submitted names exceed the number of positions to be 
filled, a separate motion and roll call vote will be required (current process of appointing).  Any 
board or commission with remaining vacancies will automatically be carried over to the next 
Regular City Council Meeting Agenda.  
 
The following boards and committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold red lines 
indicate the number of appointments required: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 2, 2004 
 

- 10 - 

(a) Mayoral Appointments 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-02- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE MAYOR with 
COUNCIL APPROVAL to serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Economic Development Corporation 
Mayor, Council Approval (9) – 6 years 
 
Stuart F Redpath - Does not seek reappointment Term expires 04-30-2009 
 
 Term expires 04-30-2009 
 
 Term expires 04-30-2009 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Bluhm, Kenneth 04/30/06 
Gigliotti, Robert S 04/30/08 
Licari, Leger (Nino) 04/30/04 
Parker, Michael 04/30/07 
Redpath, Stuart F 04/30/03 
Rocchio, James A.  04/30/03 
Salgat, Charles 04/30/04 
Sharp, John 04/30/03 
Smith, Douglas 04/30/05 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL
Almassian, Carolyn 04/22/02-04/2004 05/06/02 
Baughman, Deborah L 06/18/01-05/2003 07/09/01 
Chang, Jouky 10/02/01-10/2003 10/15/01 
Chhaya, Dhimant 09/26/02 10/07/02 
Hall, Patrick C 01/26/01-06/12/01-05/2003 02/05/01-07/09/01 
Hoef, Paul V 09/12/01-08/14/02-08/2004 09/17/01 
Freliga, Victor P 11/25/02-11/2004 12/02/02 
Pritzloff, Mark 04/17/03-04/2003 04/28/03 
Shah, Jayshree 08/28/01 09/17/01 
Silver, Neil S 08/11/00-06/20/01-05/2003 08/21/00-07/09/01 
Victor, Robert 046/03/03-05/2005 6/16/03 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 2, 2004 
 

- 11 - 

Planning Commission 
Mayor, Council Approval (9) – 3 years 
 
Walter A. Storrs - Seeks reappointment Term expires 12-31-2006 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Gary G. Chamberlain 12/31/05 
Lynn Drake-Batts 12/31/06 
Larry Littman 12/31/04 
Amalfi Parker (Student) 07/01/04 
Robert M. Schultz  12/31/05 
Walter A. Storrs, III 12/31/03 
Thomas Strat  12/31/05 
Mark J Vleck  12/31/04 
David T. Waller 12/31/06 
Wayne C. Wright 12/31/04 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL
Bertin, Leonard G. 10/10/02 11/04/02 
Culpepper, Michael 12/97  
D’Anna, Philip 02/08/99  
Deel, Ryan 05/17/01-06/25/01-05/2003 05/21/01-07/09/01 
Drake-Batts, Lynn 05/13/03-05/2005 06/02/03-12/15/03 
Gauri, Kul 07/03/03-07/2005 07/21/03 
Hall, Patrick C 01/26/01-03/10/03-03/2005 02/05/01-03/17/03 
Hanna, Atef A 10/28/02-10/2004 11/04/02 
Hoef, Paul V 08/14/02-08/2004  
Hyun, Yul Woong (Jeff) 09/26/03-09/2005 10/06/03 
Joseph, Luke 03/10/03-03/2005 03/17/03 
Kohut, Gary L 02/17/03-02/2005 03/03/03 
Lakin, David 01/13/04-01/2006 02/02/04 
Lang, Victoria 07/09/01-06/16/03-06/2005 07/23/01 
Lin, Paul Chu 05/22/00-06/17/03-06/2005 06/05/00-07/07/03 
Manetta, Pauline 11/26/01 12/03/01 
Milia, Carmelo 06/14/01-06/04/03-05/2005 07/09/01-06/16/03 
Nelson, Albert Taylor   
Ogg, David 02/9/99-04/16/01-06/09/03-

05/2005 
04/23/01-06/16/03 

Peard, James R 11/25/02-06/9/03-05/2005 12/02/02-06/16/03 
Pritzloff, Mark 04/17/03-04/2005 04/28/03 
Rocchio, James 04/16/01 04/23/01 
Sawyer, Thomas G 10/04/02-06/9/03-05/2005 11/04/02-06/16/03 
Shah, Jayshree 01/12/04-01/2006 02/02/04 
Shier, Frank 02/18/03-02/2005 03/03/03 
Ullmann, Lon M 03/19/01 04/09/01 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 2, 2004 
 

- 12 - 

Wattles, Brian J 07/10/01 07/23/01 
Wilberding, Bruce 08/05/99-06/17/03-06/2005 07/07/03 
Yousif, Gary 11/24/03-11/2005 01/05/04 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
(b) City Council Appointments 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-02- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities 
Appointed by Council (9 Regular, 3 Alternates) – 3 years 
 
 Term expires 11-01-2006 (Alternate) 
 
 Term expires 07-01-2004 (Student) 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
 Susan Robosan-Burt  11/01/06 
 Angela Done 11/01/05 
 Nancy Johnson 11/01/06 
 Leonard G. Bertin 11/01/05 
 Pauline Manetta 11/01/06 
 Dick Kuschinsky 11/01/04 
 Theodora House 11/01/06 
 Grace Yau (Student) 07/01/04 
 Dorothy Ann Pietron 11/01/04 
Nada Raheb (Student) 07/01/03 
 Mark Pritzloff 11/01/06 
 Cynthia Buchanan 11/01/04 
 Kul B. Gauri 11/01/05 
 Jayshree Shah (Alternate) 11/01/03 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
None on File   
 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 2, 2004 
 

- 13 - 

INTERESTED STUDENT APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
None on File   
 
CATV Advisory Committee 
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 years 
Mr. Minnick resigned to serve on the Traffic Comm Unexpired term expires 9-30-2006 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Jerry L. Bixby 02/28/06 
Shazad Butt 11/30/05 
Richard Hughes 02/28/06 
Penny Marinos 02/28/04 
Richard D Minnick II (Resigned) 09/30/06 
Fan Lin (Student) 0701/04 
W. Kent Voigt 02/28/04 
Bryan H. Wehrung 02/28/05 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Godlewski, W S 12/28/01-07/01/03-07/2005 1/07/02-07/07/03 
Kuschinsky, Dick 10/11/01-06/19/03-06/2005 11/05/01 
Manzon, Alan 06/04/02-06/2004 06/17/02 
Powers, Brian M 10/15/02-10/2004 10/21/02 
Pritzloff, Mark 04/17/03-04/2005 04/28/03 
Shier, Frank 02/18/03-02/2005 03/03/03 
Victor, Robert 06/03/03-06/2005  
Wattles, Brian J 07/10/01 07/23/01 
Weisgerber, William 07/14/03-07/2005 07/21/03 
 
Election Commission 
Appointed by Council (3) – 1 year 
 
Timothy Dewan - Seeks reappointment Term expires 01-31-2004 
See recommendation letter from Democratic party 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
David C. Anderson (R) 01/31/05 
Timothy Dewan (D) 01/31/04 
Tonni L. Bartholomew (Charter) 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Brodbine, Anju C. 08/13/02-08/2004 08/19/02 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 2, 2004 
 

- 14 - 

DeBacker, Deborah 05/20/02-05/2004 06/03/02 
Gauri, Kul B 08/26/99-07/3/03-07/2005  
Larue, Patricia M 08/12/02-08/2004 08/19/02 
Pritzloff, Mark 04/17/03-04/2005 04/28/03 
Shah, Jayshree 08/28/01 09/17/01 
Silver, Neil S 06/9/03-05/2005 06/16/03 
Ziegenfelder, Peter 12/07/00-06/11/01-06/11/03- 

05/2005 
12/18/00-07/09/01-06/16/03 

 
Troy Daze 
Appointed by Council (9) – 3 years 
 
 Term expires 11-30-2004 
 
 Term expires 07-01-2003 Student 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Robert A. Berk  11/30/03 
Sue Bishop Deceased 11/30/04 
Jim D. Cyrulewski. 11/30/04 
Cecile Dilley 11/30/04 
Kessie Kaltsounis 11/30/05 
Michael Gonda  11/30/06 
William F Hall 11/30/05 
Jeffrey Stewart - (Repr to Parks/Rec Board) 09/30/06 
Robert S. Preston 11/30/05 
Cheryl A Whitton-Kaszubski 11/30/03 
Jessica Zablocki (Student) 07/01/03 
 
INTERESTED  APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Asjad, Zarina J 05/01/03-05/2005 05/05/03 
Freliga, Mary E 11/25/02-11/2004 12/02/02 
Hashmi, Amin 08/22/02-08/2004  
Huber, Laurie G 09/22/00-06/18/01-05/2003 09/22/00-07/09/01 
Musick, Marilyn K 12/01/03-12/2005 12/15/01 
Pietron, Dorothy Ann 07/10/01-07/2003 07/23/01 
Pritzloff, Mark 04/17/03-04/2005 04/28/03 
Shier, Frank 02/18/03-02/2005 03/03/03 
Wells, Alexandra 08/22/02-08/2004 09/09/02 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 2, 2004 
 

- 15 - 

INTERESTED STUDENT APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
None on file   
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-2 Closed Session  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-02- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That the City of Troy City Council SHALL MEET in Closed Session, as 
permitted by MCL 15.268 (e); Antony v. City of Troy and Troy v. Marilyn Kay Miller Trust (2356 
E. Long Lake), after adjournment of this meeting.  
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-3 Proposed Rescheduling of Liquor Violation Hearing Scheduled for Wednesday, 

February 25, 2004 
 
City Management proposes the rescheduling of the Liquor Violation Hearing scheduled for 
Wednesday, February 25, 2004 in observance of Ash Wednesday. 
  
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-02- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy, in observance of Ash Wednesday, shall 
RESCHEDULE their Regular Meeting – Liquor Violation Hearings scheduled for Wednesday, 
February 25, 2004 at 7:30 PM to Wednesday, March 3, 2004 at 7:30 PM or _______________ 
in the Council Chambers of City Hall.  
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-4 LED Traffic Signals – Maple Road – Expense Revision to Council Resolution 

#2001-05-271 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-02- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 2, 2004 
 

- 16 - 

RESOLVED, That the City of Troy City Council APPROVES an increase of $20,377.34 for the 
Light Emitting Diode (LED) Traffic Signal Project completed on Maple Road by the Road 
Commission for Oakland County (RCOC). 
 
Yes: 
No: 
F-5 Resolution to Set a Public Hearing on Monday, February 16, 2004 for a Michigan 

NextEnergy Exemption 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-02- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That a Public Hearing be ESTABLISHED for Monday, February 16, 2004 to 
consider three (3) Michigan NextEnergy Exemption proposals for alternative energy personal 
property located at 1707 Northwood, 1621 Northwood, and 1100 W. Maple, all located in the 
City of Troy. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-6 Revisions to Chapter 10: Employee Retirement System 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-02- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the ordinance to amend Chapter 10 of the City Code, Employees Retirement 
System, is hereby ADOPTED as recommended by the City Attorney; a copy of this ordinance 
shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-7 Streambank Inventory and Detention Basin Inventory Grant 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-02- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy has applied for and received its Certificate of Coverage from the 
Michigan Department of Environmental Quality for the Watershed Based Stormwater Permit; 
and 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 2, 2004 
 

- 17 - 

WHEREAS, The City of Troy, along with the Oakland County Drain Office and the other 
communities in the Rouge River Main 1-2 Subwatershed, is committed to improving water 
quality in the Rouge River Watersheds; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Oakland County Drain Office has obtained a federal grant to fund a Detention 
Basin Inventory and a Streambank Inventory for the entire Rouge River Main 1-2 
Subwatershed; and 
 
WHEREAS, An Interagency Agreement has been prepared by the Oakland County Drain 
Office to act as the lead agency in implementing the studies. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Interagency Agreement, as attached to the 
original Minutes of this meeting, is APPROVED and the Mayor and the City Clerk are 
AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the agreement on behalf of the City of Troy. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-8 Old Troy, L.L.C. v. City of Troy, et. al 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-02- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the Consent Judgment in the matter of Old Troy, L.L.C. v. City of Troy, et. 
al., (Oakland County Circuit Court Case No. 03-051726-Howrylak) is hereby APPROVED; the 
Assistant City Attorney is AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the document on behalf of the City of 
Troy; a copy of the Consent Judgment shall be attached to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS/COUNCIL REFERRALS 

Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for Placement 
on the Agenda: 
 
COUNCIL REFERRALS 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 2, 2004 
 

- 18 - 

REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS 

G-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 
(a) Civil Service Commission (Act 78)/Final – September 25, 2003 
(b) Planning Commission-Study/Final – December 2, 2003 
(c) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – December 3, 2003 
(d) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – December 3, 2003 
(e) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – December 4, 2003 
(f) Planning Commission Regular/Final – December 9, 2003 
(g) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – December 10, 2003 
(h) Library Board/Final – December 11, 2003 
(i) Downtown Development Authority/Final – December 17, 2003 
(j) Youth Council/Final – December 17, 2003 
(k) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – January 6, 2004 
(l) Planning Commission Special-Study/Draft – January 6, 2004 
(m) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – January 7, 2004 
(n) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens – January 8, 2004 
(o) Library Board/Draft – January 8, 2004 
(p) Parks and Recreation Advisory Board/Draft – January 8, 2004 
(q) Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – January 12, 2004 
(r) Planning Commission/Draft – January 13, 2004 
(s) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – January 20, 2004 
(t) Youth Council/Draft – January 21, 2004 
(u) CATV Advisory Board/Draft – January 22, 2004 
(v) Civil Service Commission (Act78)/Draft – January 22, 2004 

G-2 Department Reports: 
(a) Quarterly Financial Report – December 31, 2003 
(b) Concession Stand Operations Report 
(c) Auction, December 6, 2003 – St. Clair Michigan – Vehicle Sale Report 
 
G-3 Announcement of Public Hearings: 
(a) Request for Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 3769 Meadowbrook – Alternative Plan 

Submitted by Petitioner – Scheduled for February 23, 2004 
(b) Article II (Changes, Amendments and Approvals) Zoning Ordinance Amendments and 

Repeal of Chapter 40 (ZOTA #203) – Scheduled for February 23, 2004 
 
G-4 Green Memorandums: None submitted. 
 
G-5 Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None proposed. 
 
G-6  Calendar 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 2, 2004 
 

- 19 - 

G-7  Letters of Appreciation: 
(a) 8th Annual Achievement of Excellence in Procurement 2003 Award Recipients – 

Jeanette Bennett – Purchasing Director taken from Government Procurement – 
December 2003 

(b) Letter of Appreciation from Alicia Wahls – Health Educator, Smith Middle School 
Thanking Officer N. Kaptur for Speaking to Her Class About the Effects of Drugs 

(c) Letter of Appreciation from Fr. Emanuel Shaleta, Pastor of St. Joseph Catholic 
Chaldean Church, and Sam Younis and Davin Sesi, Parking Enforcement Committee to 
Chief Craft Thanking the Troy Police Department for Their Assistance With Parking 
During the Holidays 

(d) Letter of Appreciation from a Proud Troy Citizen Thanking Police Officers Barton and 
Zagacki for Explaining the Importance of the 911 System to His 9-Year Old Son Who 
Misused the Phone by Calling 911 

 
G-8  Travel Expense Report – Robin Beltramini  
 
G-9  Memorandum, Re: Election of Planning Commissioner Officers for 2004 
 
G-10  Letter to John Szerlag from Gary A. Shripka , Re: Announcement of His Retirement 
 
G-11  Memorandum, Re: Youth Council’s Intent to Further Reduce Membership Size 
 
G-12  Memorandum , Re: Report on Traffic Signal Operation – Intersection of 

Charrington and Rochester 
 
G-13  Memorandum, Re: Parks and Recreation Program Changes 
 
G-14  Memorandum, Re: Cricket Site Development 
 
G-15  Memorandum, Re: City Owned Surplus Parcels 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 

Public Comment is limited to people who have not addressed Council during the 1st 
Public Comment section (Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Article 5 (15), as 
amended May 6, 2002). 

STUDY ITEMS – No Study Items submitted. 

It is City Management’s recommendation to recess the Regular meeting at this time and 
to immediately reconvene it in the Council Board Room to provide for a study 
environment. Additionally, it would be recommended that the Mayor request the City 
Clerk to post notice that the City Council meeting has been relocated to the Council 
Board Room. 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 2, 2004 
 

- 20 - 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 

 
 
 

Gary A. Shripka, Acting City Manager 
 



City of Troy
A-01

City of Troy
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 26, 2004 
 

- 1 - 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, January 26, 2004, at City Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Pryor called the Meeting to order at 7:35 P.M. 
 
The Invocation was given by Pastor Brad Shirley – Zion Christian Church and the Pledge of 
Allegiance to the Flag was given. 

ROLL CALL 

PRESENT: Mayor Matt Pryor  
Robin E. Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield 
David Eisenbacher  
Martin F. Howrylak   
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine 

   

PRESENTATIONS: On behalf of the Oakland County Board of Commissioners, 
Commissioners Moss, Knollenberg and Palmer presented a proclamation recognizing the City 
of Troy’s designation as Sports Illustrated’s annual “Sport City”. The “Sport City” article 
featuring the City of Troy will appear in the February 2004 edition of the magazine.  

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

C-1 Rezoning Application (Z-597) – South Side of Long Lake Road – West of 
Rochester Road – Section 15 – R-1T to B-2 

 
Resolution #2004-01-020 
Moved by Eisenbacher   
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That the R-1T to B-2 rezoning request, located on the south side of Long Lake 
Road, west of Rochester Road in Section 15, being 14.5 acres in size, is hereby DENIED, as 
recommended by City Management and the Planning Commission. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
RECESS: 8:33 PM – 8:49 PM 

C-2 Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 1839 E. Wattles Road 
 
Resolution #2004-01- 
Moved by Beltramini   
Seconded by Lambert  
 

City of Troy
E-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 26, 2004 
 

- 2 - 

WHEREAS, Section 44.02.02 of Chapter 39, Zoning, of the Code of the City of Troy provides 
that actions to grant appeals to the restrictions on outdoor parking of commercial vehicles in 
residential districts pursuant to Section 40.66.00 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy 
"shall be based upon at least one of the following findings by the City Council: 
 
A. The occurrence of the subject commercial vehicle on the residential site involved is 

compelled by parties other than the owner or occupant of the subject residential site 
(e.g. employer). 

 
B. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no reasonable or feasible 

alternative locations for the parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 
 
C. A garage or accessory building on the subject residential site cannot accommodate, or 

cannot reasonably be constructed or modified to accommodate, the subject commercial 
vehicle. 

 
D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 

commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact 
pedestrian and vehicular movement along the frontage street(s)."; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has found that the petitioner has demonstrated 
the presence of the following condition(s), justifying the granting of a variance:    
 
              . 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from Mr. Jim Laplante, 1839 E. 
Wattles Rd., for waiver of Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00, of the Code of the City of Troy, to 
permit outdoor parking of a Ford dump truck, a Ford stake truck, three commercial trailers and 
a chipper in a residential district is hereby APPROVED for two years CONTINGENT upon the 
petitioner providing the vehicle identification and license numbers 
 
Vote on Amendment 
 
Resolution #2004-01-021 
Moved by Beltramini    
Seconded by Broomfield     
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution for the request for Commercial Vehicle Appeal located at 
1839 E. Wattles Road be AMENDED by INSERTING “and as depicted on the enclosed 
drawing” after “SUBJECT to the petitioner providing City Staff with appropriate vehicle 
identification and license numbers” and further AMENDED by INSERTING the following 
conditions, justifying the granting of a variance: 
 
B. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no reasonable or feasible 

alternative locations for the parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 26, 2004 
 

- 3 - 

C. A garage or accessory building on the subject residential site cannot accommodate, or 
cannot reasonably be constructed or modified to accommodate, the subject commercial 
vehicle. 

 
D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 

commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact pedestrian 
and vehicular movement along the frontage street(s)." 

 
Yes: All-7   
 
Vote on Amended Resolution 
 
Resolution #2004-01-022 
Moved by Beltramini    
Seconded by Lambert    
 
WHEREAS, Section 44.02.02 of Chapter 39, Zoning, of the Code of the City of Troy provides 
that actions to grant appeals to the restrictions on outdoor parking of commercial vehicles in 
residential districts pursuant to Section 40.66.00 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy 
"shall be based upon at least one of the following findings by the City Council: 
 
A. The occurrence of the subject commercial vehicle on the residential site involved is 

compelled by parties other than the owner or occupant of the subject residential site 
(e.g. employer). 

 
B. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no reasonable or feasible 

alternative locations for the parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 
 
C. A garage or accessory building on the subject residential site cannot accommodate, or 

cannot reasonably be constructed or modified to accommodate, the subject commercial 
vehicle. 

 
D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 

commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact 
pedestrian and vehicular movement along the frontage street(s)."; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has found that the petitioner has demonstrated 
the presence of the following conditions, justifying the granting of a variance: 
 
B. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no reasonable or feasible 

alternative locations for the parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 
 
C. A garage or accessory building on the subject residential site cannot accommodate, or 

cannot reasonably be constructed or modified to accommodate, the subject commercial 
vehicle. 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 26, 2004 
 

- 4 - 

D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 
commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact pedestrian 
and vehicular movement along the frontage street(s); and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from Mr. Jim Laplante, 1839 E. 
Wattles Rd., for waiver of Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00, of the Code of the City of Troy, to 
permit outdoor parking of a Ford dump truck, a Ford stake truck, three commercial trailers and 
a chipper in a residential district is hereby APPROVED for two years SUBJECT to the 
petitioner providing City Staff with appropriate vehicle identification and license numbers, and 
as depicted on the enclosed drawing. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:   

A. Items on the Current Agenda 
 

F-3 Preliminary Plan Review – Crestwood Site Condominium – North of Wattles – 
East of Livernois – Part of the Crestfield Subdivision in the SW ¼ of Section 15 – 
R-1C 

 
Resolution #2004-01-023 
Moved by Beltramini   
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That the Preliminary Site Plan as submitted by the petitioner, under Section 
34.30.00 of the Zoning Ordinance (Unplatted One-Family Residential Development) for the 
development of a One-Family Residential Site Condominium known as Crestwood Site 
Condominium, which includes the extension of Tallman to the southwest but no vehicular 
connection to Wattles, as recommended for approval by the Planning Commission, located on 
the north side of Wattles Road, east of Livernois Road, including 23 home sites, within the R-
1C Zoning District, being 11.983 acres in size, is hereby APPROVED CONTINGENT upon the  
developer providing an agreement filed with the Register of Deeds that there shall not be a 
future connection to Wattles and further CONTINGENT upon the developer providing a “T” , a 
small cul-de-sac or another means to allow for turn around traffic. 
 
Yes: All-7  

F-4a Charter Revision Ballot Proposals 
 
Resolution #2004-01-024 
Moved by Eisenbacher    
Seconded by Beltramini  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 26, 2004 
 

- 5 - 

RESOLVED, That the Ballot Charter Amendment question pertaining to Section 7.5.5 be 
REMOVED from the April 5, 2004 City General Election.  
 
Yes: All-7  

F-4b Content Neutral Informational Brochures for Ballot Issues 
 
Resolution #2004-01- 
Moved by Howrylak   
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
  
WHEREAS, Informational brochures were developed addressing ballot issues that will be 
placed before the voters on April 5, 2004. 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That all portions of the brochure dealing with the potential advance of 
seven acres of Civic Center land be REMOVED; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the portion of the brochure dealing proposed 
Charter Amendments be PUBLISHED and DISSEMINATED; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That City Management is AUTHORIZED to publish and 
disseminate the informational brochures to all Troy households and additional copies will be 
available at City Hall, the Library, the Community Center or any other appropriate sites. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Postpone 
 
Resolution #2004-01-025 
Moved by Beltramini    
Seconded by Broomfield   
 
RESOLVED, That Content Neutral Informational Brochures for Ballot Issues be POSTPONED 
to the Regular City Council meeting scheduled for Monday, February 2, 2004. 
 
Yes: Stine, Pryor, Beltramini, Broomfield,  
No: Lambert, Eisenbacher, Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution to Schedule a Special Meeting 
 
Resolution #2004-01-026 
Moved by Pryor     
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That the City of Troy City Council SCHEDULE a Special Meeting on Saturday, 
January 31, 2004 at 1:00 PM in the Council Boardroom to discuss the content of the Neutral 
Informational Brochures for Ballot Issues. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 26, 2004 
 

- 6 - 

Yes: Stine, Pryor, Beltramini, Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Lambert  
No: Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED 

F-7 Final Plat Approval – The Estates at Cambridge Subdivision – East Side of Beach 
Road – North of Wattles – Section 18 – R-1B 

 
Resolution #2004-01-027 
Moved by Stine   
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That Final Plat Approval for The Estates at Cambridge Subdivision, ten (10) lots, 
located on the east side of Beach Road and north of Wattles Road in Section 18, is hereby 
GRANTED, as recommended by City Management. 
 
Yes: All-7  

F-5 Wattles Ridge Site Condominium – South of Wattles – East of Rochester – 
Section 23 – R-1C 

 
Resolution #2004-01-028 
Moved by Beltramini   
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That the Preliminary Site Plan as submitted by the petitioner, under Section 
34.30.00 of the Zoning Ordinance (Unplatted One-Family Residential development) for the 
development of a One-Family Residential Site Condominium known as Wattles Ridge Site 
Condominium and as recommended for approval by City Management and the Planning 
Commission, located south of Wattles Road, east of Rochester Road, including 14 home sites, 
within the R-1C Zoning District, being 4.92 acres in size is hereby APPROVED. 
 
Yes: All-7  

F-6 Colleen Meadows Site Condominium - West of Dequindre Road and South of 
Square Lake Road – Section 12 – R-1C 

 
Resolution #2004-01-029 
Moved by Beltramini   
Seconded by Howrylak  
 
RESOLVED, That the Final Plan as submitted under Section 34.30.00 of the Zoning Ordinance 
(Unplatted One-Family Residential development) for the development of a One-Family 
Residential Site Condominium known as Colleen Meadows, located west of Dequindre Road 
and south of Square Lake Road, including 20 home sites, within the R-1C Zoning District, being 
7.5 acres in size, is hereby APPROVED, as recommended by City Management. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 26, 2004 
 

- 7 - 

Yes: All-7 

B.  Items Not on the Current Agenda 
 
 
CONSENT AGENDA – No Consent Agenda items submitted. 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS 

F-1  Minutes: Regular Meeting of January 12, 2004 and Special Meeting of January 20, 
2004 

 
Resolution #2004-01-030 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular Meeting of January 12, 2004 and the 
Minutes of the 12:00 PM Special Meeting of January 20, 2004 be APPROVED as submitted. 
 
Yes: All-7 

F-2  Resolution to Excuse Council Member Lambert – Special Meeting of Tuesday, 
January 20, 2004 

 
Resolution #2004-01-031  
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That Council Member Lambert‘s absence at the Special City Council meeting of 
Tuesday, January 20, 2004 BE EXCUSED due to work commitments.  
 
Yes: All-7  

F-8 Study Session to Discuss Council Members’ Responses During Individual 
Meetings with City Manager 

 
Resolution #2004-01-032 
Moved by Beltramini   
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That a Study Session to discuss Council Members’ responses during individual 
meetings with the City Manager be SCHEDULED for 7:30 PM in the Council Boardroom of 
Troy City Hall on Monday, February 9, 2004. 
 
Yes: All-7  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 26, 2004 
 

- 8 - 

F-9 Resolution Supporting a Moratorium on Water Rate Increases 
 
Resolution #2004-01-033 
Moved by Lambert   
Seconded by Stine  
 
WHEREAS, The Detroit Water & Sewerage Department (DWSD) is proposing to increase 
water rates for residents of the City of Troy by 26%; and 
 
WHEREAS, Oakland County Drain Commissioner McCulloch has called for full disclosure on 
how DWSD came up with these new numbers, and 
 
WHEREAS, Drain Commissioner McCulloch has recently proposed a moratorium on future rate 
increases by DWSD for Fiscal Year 2004-2005, and 
 
WHEREAS, Drain Commissioner McCulloch has said that a moratorium on rate hikes is a “win-
win” situation for the entire system. 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy SUPPORTS a moratorium on rate 
increases by the Detroit Water & Sewerage Department for Fiscal Year 2004-05, and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That a copy of this resolution be FORWARDED to Oakland 
County Drain Commissioner John McCulloch prior to his presentation at the Detroit Water 
Board public hearing on January 28, 2004. 
 
Yes: All-7  

F-10 Special Meeting for the City Manager and City Attorney’s Annual Personnel 
Evaluations 

 
Resolution #2004-01-034 
Moved by Pryor    
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That the City of Troy City Council SHALL MEET in a Special Meeting to consider 
the annual personnel evaluations for the City Manager and City Attorney on Monday, February 
9, 2004 at 6:30 PM in the Council Boardroom of Troy City Hall. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 26, 2004 
 

- 9 - 

COUNCIL COMMENTS/COUNCIL REFERRALS 

Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for Placement 
on the Agenda: 
 

1 Sign Permits for the Existing Building – 2795 E. Maple Road 
 

Mayor Pryor discussed the manner of paying for signage permits for canopies; 
specifically, the one at 2795 E. Maple Road. Included in the packet are photographs of 
the canopy in question as well as a memorandum from staff regarding sign permits for 
2795 E. Maple Road. 

 
COUNCIL REFERRALS 

REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS 

 
G-1 Letters of Appreciation 
 
(a) Letter from Donald E. Jakeway, President and CEO – Michigan Economic Development 

Corporation, to John Szerlag Thanking Him for His Presentation Relative to the 
Proposed Conference Center 

Noted and Filed 
 
G-2 Calendar 

Noted and Filed 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 

STUDY ITEMS – No Study Items proposed. 

The meeting ADJOURNED on Tuesday, January 27, 2004 at 12:31 A.M. 
 

 
 
 
__________________________________________ 
Matt Pryor, Mayor 
 
 
 
 

      ______________________________________ 
      Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC – City Clerk 
 



 
PROCLAMATION  
KINDNESS WEEK 

FEBRUARY 14-21, 2004 
 
WHEREAS , Our daily news is dominated by tragic stories of crime, violence, disaster, too 
often leaving average citizens with feelings of despair and helplessness; and 
 
WHEREAS , The daily acts of kindness of most of the citizens of Troy often go 
unrecognized and unattended; and 
 
WHEREAS , By recognizing these daily acts of kindness during this week, all citizens of 
Troy can become more aware of the importance of kindness to others throughout the year; 
and 
 
WHEREAS , By recognizing these small acts of kindness during this week, everyone can 
participate in making this city a kinder, safer and better place to live; and 
 
WHEREAS , This week has been observed in over 200 other cities and towns across the 
nation. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy joins 
with the Troy Optimist Club and the Citizens of Troy to proclaim the week of February 14 
through 21, 2004 as Kindness Week; and 
  
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Council hereby encourages all Troy 
residents to participate in spreading kindness and optimism, practicing respect, patience, 
and consideration of others at all times in order to create a better, kinder, safer, and more 
peaceful city.  
 
Signed the 2nd day of February 2004 
 
 
 

City of Troy
E-03a



City of Troy
E-04















City of Troy
E-05













 

 

January 20, 2004 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item – Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Option to Renew –  
  Office Supplies 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
On March 19, 2001, Troy City Council approved a three-year contract with an option to renew to 
provide office supplies to the City of Troy and participating Tri-County Purchasing Cooperative 
Members from Office Depot through a “piggyback” agreement with Los Angeles County, contract 
#41421 and made available through the National Cooperative Purchasing Program (NACo), aka U.S. 
Communities Program. (Council Resolution #2001-03-160-E4) 
 
City management recommends exercising the option to renew for an additional 14-month period 
extending the contract through April 4, 2005, under the same discount structure, terms and conditions 
as the original contract. 
 
It should be noted that if Los Angeles County, as the lead agency, enters into a new agreement prior 
to the scheduled termination of the option, the new contract will be brought forward for review and 
possible approval. 
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
 
Core List – Frequently Ordered Items –   300 Up to 80% off List 
Catalog of Frequently Ordered Items – 3,000 List less 63% with a 15% GP Floor* 
Office Furniture List less 52% with a 10% GP Floor* 
Remainder of BSD Catalog List less 45% with a 15% GP Floor* 
Business Machines Retail Store Pricing 
Paper Cost + 18%(15% GP); floats w/market 
 
The core list pricing for the 300 items is held for one year.  The price plan available for the catalog of 
frequently ordered items is updated twice each year, in March and October. 
 
The contract allows for participation by the entire Tri-County Cooperative membership of which Troy 
is the host city.  Twenty-six political subdivisions have committed to the program and include:   
Auburn Hills, Birmingham, Dearborn, Eastpointe, Farmington Hills, Madison Heights, Novi, Oak Park, 
Riverview, Rochester Hills, Royal Oak, St Clair Shores, South Lyon, Southfield, Sterling Heights, 
Troy, Warren, Westland, Huron-Clinton Metro Parks, SMART, SWOCC, Livingston and Wayne 
County, and the townships of Shelby, Waterford and West Bloomfield.  
 
2003 annual purchases for the entire cooperative were $2,213,920.51, of which Troy spent 
$173,109.96.  Additional savings are realized through program incentives for volume, as direct 
rebates against total sales of the entire Tri-County Cooperative, as well as e-commerce transactions. 
 
SUMMARY 
More than 5,000 public agencies utilize this office supply contract.  Savings are made possible by 
Office Depot’s buying power and massive collective purchasing power nationwide. 
 
* GP = Gross Profit 
 
Prepared by:  Susan Leirstein CPPB, Purchasing Systems Administrator 

City of Troy
E-06













 
 

January 13, 2004 
 
 
 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Charles Craft, Chief of Police 

Gary Mayer, Police Captain 
Thomas Gordon, Police Sergeant 

 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item - Request to transfer Class C license by Fox & Hound of 

Michigan, Inc. 
 
 
FOX & HOUND OF MICHIGAN, INC., requests to transfer ownership of 2003 Class C 
licensed business, located at 1937 W. Maple, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County, from 
Housefield, LLC; transfer location to 1965 W. Maple, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County; 
and requests a new entertainment permit and new official permit (food).  [MLCC REQ 
ID#233626].  The proposed new restaurant would be called Bailey’s Pub & Grille. For 
clarification, this applicant has no business relation with the Fox and Hound restaurant 
in Bloomfield Hills. 
 
At its January 12th meeting, the Liquor Advisory Committee entertained this request. 
Present to answer questions from the Board were Gary Judd, President, Tina Adle, and 
attorney Scott Edwards.  They explained that all servers would be TIPS trained, and 
that all servers are required to keep drink logs on their guests. 
 
The applicants are also requesting an entertainment permit, which will allow televisions, 
Golden Tee coin operated games, and pool tables.  There will be no live entertainment 
or dancing.  The proposed space will undergo substantial renovation, and the license 
will not be released until final inspection by the Building Department. 
 
The police department’s background investigation of the shareholders revealed no 
liquor violations or criminal activity. Consequently, we have no objection to this request. 
 

City of Troy
E-07

















LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT                     January 12, 2004 
 

Page 1 of 3 

 
A regular meeting of the Liquor Advisory Committee was held on Monday, January 12, 
2004 in the Lower Level Conference Room of Troy City Hall, 500 West Big Beaver 
Road.  Chairman Max K. Ehlert called the Meeting to order at 7:01 p.m. 
  
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
  PRESENT: Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
    Henry W. Allemon 
    Alex Bennett 
    Anita Elenbaum 
    W. Stan Godlewski 
    James C. Moseley 
    James R. Peard 
    Emily Polet, Student Representative 
    Carolyn Glosby, Assistant City Attorney 
    Sergeant Thomas J. Gordon 
    Pat Gladysz 
 
  ABSENT: None 
 
 
Resolution to Approve Minutes of December 8, 2003 Meeting  
 
Resolution # LC2004-01-001 
Moved by Allemon 
Seconded by Godlewski 
 
RESOLVED, that the Minutes of the December 8, 2003 meeting of the Liquor Advisory 
Committee be approved. 
 
Yes:  All-7  
No:  None 
Absent: None 
 
_____________________________________________________________________  
 
Agenda Items: 
 
1. FOX & HOUND OF MICHIGAN, INC., requests to transfer ownership of 2003 

Class C licensed business, located at 1937 W. Maple, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland 
County, from Housefield, LLC; transfer location to 1965 W. Maple, Troy, MI 
48084, Oakland County; and requests a new entertainment permit and new 
official permit (food).  [MLCC REQ ID#233626] 

 The proposed new restaurant would be called Bailey’s Pub & Grille 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT                     January 12, 2004 
 

Page 2 of 3 

 
Present to answer questions from the committee were Gary Judd, Scott Edwards, and 
Tina Adle.   
 
A restaurant called “Bailey’s Pub & Grille” will open soon in a 9,670 square foot tenant 
space in Cambridge Crossings.  This company currently has two Michigan 
establishments, located in Canton (which opened in 1998) and Dearborn (which 
opened in 2000).  They will offer a full-service, mid-priced menu.  The floor plan shows 
three different rooms, with availability of reserving a room for a private party.  There will 
be seating for 288 patrons.  They will offer entertainment in the form of billiard tables, 
large-screen televisions, and golf games.  There will be no live entertainment or 
dancing.  They plan to employ approximately 30-40 servers, all of which will be trained 
in the TIPS/TAMS program.  All employees are required to maintain a “drink log” on 
each patron.  When a guest orders his fifth drink, the drink will not be served until a 
manager assesses the situation (length of visit, amount of food consumed).  The 
information is logged and reviewed by upper management on an ongoing basis.   
 
Sgt. Gordon stated that the tenant space is undergoing renovation and final inspections 
from the Building Department have not been performed. 
 
Resolution #LC2004-01-002 
Moved by Moseley 
Seconded by Godlewski 
 
RESOLVED, that FOX & HOUND OF MICHIGAN, INC. be allowed to transfer 
ownership of the Class C licensed business, located at 1937 W. Maple, Troy, MI 48084, 
Oakland County, from Housefield, LLC to 1965 W. Maple, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland 
County, and be granted a new entertainment permit and new official permit.    
 
Yes:  All-7  
No:  None 
Absent: None  
 
 
____________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
Carolyn Glosby, assistant City Attorney, brought one item to the attention of the 
Committee. 
 
State of Michigan Attorney General, Michael Cox, recently issued an opinion on the 
provision that illuminated alcohol-related signs cannot be displayed in a retail 
establishment.  In his opinion, he stated that this provision is unconstitutional. 
 
 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT                     January 12, 2004 
 

Page 3 of 3 

Sgt. Gordon discussed two Informational Items from the Agenda.  
  

6.    KNIGHTS OF COLUMBUS, ST. JOSEPH CHALDEAN COUNCIL NO. 
9154, requests to transfer location (governmental unit) of 2003 Club 
licensed business from 35220 Mound, Sterling Heights, MI 48310, 
Macomb County, to 36949 Dequindre, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County.   
[MLCC REQ ID# 233780]   Current site of Asia Mart market 

 
This item will most likely be on next month’s agenda. 
 
7. HAN MI ORIENTAL MART, INC., requests a New Specially Designated 

Distributor - New Specially Designated Merchant License located at 5060 
Rochester Rd, Troy, MI, 48085, Oakland County.  [MLCC REQ ID# 
235659]

There is a SDD/SDM license available at this time. 
 
 
 
The Meeting adjourned at 7:31 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
      __________________________________ 
      Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
 
 
 
      __________________________________ 
      Patricia A. Gladysz, Clerk-Typist 



(d) Allow the sale, possession, or consumption on the licensed premises of any controlled substances that are
prohibited by Act No. 368 of the Public Acts of 1978, as amended, being §333.1101 et seq. of the Michigan
Compiled Laws.
(e) Allow narcotics paraphernalia to be used, stored, exchanged, or sold on the licensed premises.
(6) A retail licensee shall not sell any alcoholic liquor off the licensed premises except as follows:
(a) An on-premises licensee may provide out-of-doors service if done in accord with the provisions of R 436.1419.
(b) An off-premises licensee may deliver a pre-ordered quantity of alcoholic liquor to a customer; however, a
delivery shall not be made to any customer on the campus of any 2- or 4-year college or university, unless the
customer is licensed by the commission.
(c) An off-premises licensee may provide out-of-doors service if done in accord with the provisions of R 436.1521.
History: 1979 ACS 4, Eff. Feb. 3, 1981; 1979 ACS 16, Eff. Nov. 15, 1983; 1985 12, Eff. Jan. 1, 1986; 1994 MR 12,
Eff. Dec. 16, 1995.

R 436.1013 Gambling and gambling devices prohibited.
Rule 13. (1) A licensee shall not allow unlawful gambling on the licensed premises.
(2) A licensee shall not allow any gambling devices on the licensed premises which are prohibited by the statutes of
this state.
History: 1979 ACS 4, Eff. Feb. 3, 1981.

R 436.1015 Display of license and permit.
Rule 15. (1) Licenses issued by the commission shall be signed by the licensee, shall be framed under a transparent
material, and shall be prominently displayed in the licensed premises.
(2) Permits issued by the commission to a licensee shall be framed under a transparent material and shall be
prominently displayed in the licensed premises adjacent to the liquor license.
History: 1979 ACS 4, Eff. Feb. 3, 1981.

R 436.1017 Prohibited sales of alcoholic liquor.
Rule 17. (1) A licensee shall not sell, offer or keep for sale, furnish, possess, or allow a customer to consume,
alcoholic liquor which is not authorized by the license issued to the licensee by the commission.
(2) A licensee shall not knowingly sell or furnish alcoholic liquor to a person who maintains, operates, or leases premises which
are not licensed by the commission and upon which other persons unlawfully engage in the sale or consumption of alcoholic
liquor for a fee or other valuable consideration.
History: 1979 ACS 4, Eff. Feb. 3, 1981.

R 436.1019 Contests.
Rule 19. A licensee shall not participate in or sponsor any contest that requires the use or consumption of alcoholic liquor or
features alcoholic liquor as a prize in connection with a contest.
History: 1979 ACS 4, Eff. Feb. 3, 1981.

R 436.1021 Sale to licensed truck driver salesman.
Rule 21. A licensee shall not knowingly sell, give, or furnish alcoholic liquor to a licensed truck driver salesman who is
employed by a licensee while the truck driver is on duty or in the course of employment.
History: 1979 ACS 4, Eff. Feb. 3, 1981.

R 436.1023 Sale or transfer of license; transfer of location; alteration of premises; lease, sale or transfer of premises.
Rule 23. (1) A licensee shall not sell or transfer an interest in a business licensed by the commission without the prior written
approval of the commission.
(2) A licensee shall not transfer the location of the licensed premises without the prior written approval of the commission.
(3) A licensee shall not, without the prior written approval of the commission, do any of the following:
(a) Make an alteration in the size of the physical structure of the licensed premises.
(b) Add or drop any space to or from the physical structure of the licensed premises.
(c) Install any additional bars, if the licensee holds a class C or B hotel license.
(4) A licensee shall not lease, sell, or transfer possession of a portion of the licensed premises without the prior written approval
of the commission.
History: 1979 ACS 4, Eff. Feb. 3, 1981.

R 436.1025 Storing of alcoholic liquor.

City of Troy

City of Troy



City of Troy
E-08













 
 
  January 15, 2004 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Gary A. Shripka, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
   Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item – Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award To Low Bidder – 

Pavement Seam and Fracture Sealing Program 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Bids were received for the Pavement Seam and Fracture Sealing Program on  
January 7, 2004.  City management recommends awarding the contract with an option 
to renew for two (2) additional one-year periods, to the low total bidder, Michigan Joint 
Sealing, Inc. 30301 Navin Road Livonia, MI 48152 for an estimated cost of 
$139,230.00, at unit prices contained in the attached bid tabulation. 
 
In addition, staff requests authorization to change the quantity of work either additive or 
deductive at unit prices contained in the attached bid tabulation, not to exceed 25% of 
the total project cost. 
 
The award is contingent upon vendor submission of proper contract and bid documents, 
including bonds, insurance certificates and all specified requirements.  Due to bonding 
requirements and the nature of the work, the project was bid on a low total award basis. 
 
BUDGET 
 
Funds are available to complete this project in the Public Works Construction Capital 
Accounts for Crack and Joint Sealing Major and Local Roads. Account 
#401479.7989.200 and #401499.7989.120. 
 
57 Vendors Notified on MITN System 
  1 Vendor Walk-In 
  2 Bid Responses Rec’d 
 
Prepared by:  Marina Basta-Farouk, Project Construction Manager 
 
 

City of Troy
E-09



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 03-42
Opening Date -- 1/7/04 BID TABULATION
Date Prepared -- 1/15/04 PAVEMENT SEAM & FRACTURE SEALING

VENDOR NAME: *
 

Ck Number 134191 329627822
Ck Amount 2,500.00$        2,500.00$     

Proposal –Scattered Major & Local Roads - Proposes to furnish all labor, materials, and supplies to complete the City of Troy
Pavement Seam & Pavement Fracture Sealing Program in accordance with specifications

NO. DESCRIPTION EST. QTY. UNIT PRICE EXTENSION UNIT PRICE EXTENSION
1 Crack & Joint Sealing for Major Roads 70,000 L.F.

LABOR 0.48$         33,600.00$        0.49$         34,300.00$     

2 Crack & Joint Sealing for Local Roads 148,000 L.F. $0.48 $71,040.00 $0.45 $66,600.00
LABOR

3 Crack & Joint Sealing MATERIAL for 68,000 LBS $0.30 $20,400.00 $0.33 $22,440.00
 Major & Local Roads

4 Over Band Sealing LABOR & MATERIAL 33,000 L.F. $0.43 $14,190.00 $0.50 $16,500.00

5 Traffic Control  - Included

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL * $139,230.00 $139,840.00

INSURANCE:             Can Meet XX XX
                            Cannot Meet

PROGRESS PAYMENT SCHEDULE: Y or N YES BLANK
30 DAYS

COMPLETION DATE:      Can Meet XX XX
                                            Cannot Meet

TERMS:

WARRANTY:

EXCEPTIONS:

Vendor Questionnaire - Attached - Y or N YES

Legal Status of Bidder Y or N YES YES
Non-Collusion Affidavit Y or N YES YES

ATTEST:
  Tom Rosewarne
  Charlene McComb Jeanette Bennett
  Linda Bockstanz Purchasing Director

G:ITB-COT 03-42 Pavement Seam & Fracture Sealing * DENOTES LOW TOTAL BIDDER

SCODELLER CONSTRUCTION

ONE YEAR

NONE

NET 30 DAYS

BY JUNE 1, 2004

INCLUDED INCLUDED

MICHIGAN JOINT SEALING

NET 30

ONE YEAR

YES

BLANK







 
 
 
DATE:  January 21, 2004 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Gary A. Shripka, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Timothy Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item – Load Restrictions 
 
 
Each year during the spring thaw we post load restrictions on asphalt roads to prevent 
damage to the road surface. 
 
The Michigan Vehicle Code (Act 300, P.A. 1949) allows local governments, by ordinance 
or resolution, to prohibit the use of trucks or other commercial vehicles, or to impose weight 
limitations of trucks and commercial vehicles on certain streets.  Chapter 94, Axle Load 
Ordinance, allows the Public Works Director or his authorized representative discretionary 
power to reduce normal axle loads on specified streets. 
 
The roads of concern are listed as Attachment "A".  The specific limits to be posted are 
6,000 lbs. per axle, 8,500 lbs. per tandem axle assembly.  This limitation would be in effect 
during periods prescribed in Chapter 94 of the City Code for "frost law" limitations.  
Exceptions to these limitations would include the City’s refuse hauler, school buses, and 
emergency vehicles. 
 
We request approval of the reduced axle load limits for the streets listed on Attachment 
"A". 
 
 
cc:   Superintendent of Streets & Drains 
      
Attachment 
 

City of Troy
E-10



City of Troy 
 Frost Law Load Restrictions 
 
 
Concrete Streets : 25% reduction from normal loadings 
 
Asphalt or Gravel Streets : 35% reduction from normal loadings (unless otherwise posted) 
 
Tabulation of allowable gross axle loads when restrictions are in force 
 

Spacing between axles Normal Load 25% Reduction 35% Reduction 

9 Feet or over 18,000 lb 13,500 lb 11,700 lb 

More than 3 ½ feet but less than 9 feet 13,000 9,750 8,450 

Less than 3 ½ feet, the combined weight shall not 
exceed 

18,000 13,500 11,700 

** When part of a tandem axle assembly 16,000 12,000 10,400 

Maximum Load on any wheel shall not exceed 
(lbs/inch of tire) 

700 525 450 

 
** Note:  On any legal combination of vehicles, only one tandem axle assembly shall 

be permitted, on such designated highways at the gross permissible weight of 
16,000 pounds for any such axle, and no other tandem axle assembly in such 
combination of vehicles shall exceed a gross weight of 13,000 pounds for any such 
axle. 

 
No overweight permits will be issued while frost laws are in effect. 



Typical Front Axle Loads 
 

Tire Size Normal Load 25% Reduction 35% Reduction 

 7.50 x 20 
 8.25 x 20 
 9.00 x 20 
10.00 x 20 
11.00 x 20 
Duplex Type 

10,500 lb 
11,550 lb 
12,600 lb 
14,000 lb 
15,400 lb 
18,000 lb 

 7,875 lb 
 8,662 lb 
 9,450 lb 
10,500 lb 
11,550 lb 
13,500 lb 

 6,750 lb 
 7,425 lb 
 8,100 lb 
 9,000 lb 
 9,900 lb 
11,700 lb 
 

 
NOTE:  For allowable load calculations use 2 x tire size x allowable load per inch of tire.  

(For 9.00 x 20 on 35% Reduction Street, use 2 x 9.0 x 450 = 8100 #/axle.) 
 
 Guide for Permitted Loads During Frost Laws 
 
Frost Law Axle Loads 
 Concrete Streets - O.C.R.C. Class A Rest. - 25% Reduction 
 Asphalt or Gravel - O.C.R.C Class B Rest. - 35% Reduction 
 Special Posted Streets - 6000 #/axle, 3500 #/tandem assembly 
 

Concrete Trucks Concrete Streets Asphalt or Gravel Streets Posted 
6000 #/axle 
8500 #/tandem 

Tandem Axle 
Tri Axle 
Quad Axle 

4 yards 
5 yards 
6 yards 

3 yards 
3 yards 
4 yards 

no load 
no load 
no load 

 
Vehicles allowed on streets posted 6000 #/axle, 8500 #/tandem: 
 1. Fuel trucks for delivery to resident 
 2. Refuse trucks 
 3. Milk, bread, or grocery delivery to residents 
 4. Delivery of furnishings to new, unoccupied homes 
 5. Septic tank cleaning trucks 
 6. Emergency repair or rescue vehicles 
 7. School buses 
 
NOTE: The above vehicles should travel the shortest possible distance on these streets.  
 



Attachment “A” 
 

 Streets to be posted are: 
 
Section 1  Burdic Section 6   Killarney 
  Chancery   Lake Charnwood 
  Edith   Limerick 
  Evanswood   Malvern 
  Gulliver   Meath Hunt Circle 
  Harned   Ramsbury 
  Jarman   Tewksbury 
  Ravenna   Tutbury 
  Stirling   Windrush 
      
Section 2  Atkins Section 7  Arlund Way 
  Barabeau   Beach 
  Cadmus   Rabben 
  Cambria   Sussex Ct. 
  Eckerman    
  Hartwig Section 9  Blanche 
  Shelldrake   Daniels  
     Fabius 
Section 3  Booth   Habrand 
  DeEtta   Haldane 
  Donaldson   Houghten 
  Hannah   McKinley 
  Hurst   Niles 
  Lesdale   Stalwart 
  Lovell   Virgilia 
  Marengo    Wright 
  Montclair    
  Norton Section 10  Creston 
  Ottawa   Cutting 
  Westaway   Somerton 
     Sylvanwood 
Section 4  Aspinwall   Trinway 
  Blackwall Section 11  Abbotsford 
  Canmoor   Viking 
  Elmoor    
  Fredmoor Section 13  Forsyth 
  Herbmoor    
  Houghten Section 14  Bradley 
  Hurst   Eleanor 
  Lovell   Glaser 
  Niles   Lamb 
  Scone   Rockfield 
  Troyvally Section 15  Belhaven 
  Vernmoor   Belzair 
     Crestfield 
Section 6  Anslow   Dorshire 
  Beach   Evaline 
  Bretby   Hanover 
  Chalgrove   Leetonia 
  Charnwood   Tallman – Eckford to Thurber 
  Clockgate Circle   Wilton 
  Dalesford    
  Donegal Section 16  Hart 
  Dublin Fair   Lange 
  Erin Way   Paragon 
  Galloway Bay   Virgilia 
  Glyndebourne   Webb 
 
 
 

     

Section 18  Beach Section 22  Jennings 
  Bronson   Kilmer 



  Butternut Hill   Louis 
  Hylane   Talbot 
  Juniper Court   Trombley 
  Pine Hill   Troy 
  Rouge Circle   Troywood 
  Valley Vista   Vanderpool 
  Valley Vista Circle    
   Section 23  Boyd 
Section 19  Avonhurst   Daley 
  Beach   Hartland 
  Binbrooke   Torpey 
  Bolingbroke   Urbancrest 
  Caswell    
  Chelsea Section 24  Orpington 
  Chestnut Hill Court    
  Cheswick Section 25  Garry 
  Eastbourne   Isabell 
  Hampton   Milverton 
  Henhawk   Vermont 
  Kent   Virginia 
  Kingsley    
  Lanergan Section 27  Algansee 
  Myddleton   Arthur 
  Newgate   Beech Lane 
  Oakhill   Birchwood 
  Oxford   Cherry 
  Paddington   Chopin 
  Palmerston   Cook Court 
  Sunridge   Eastport 
  Tothill   Enterprise 
  Townhill   Hartshorn 
  Upton   Hickory 
  Weathervane   Kelly 
  Wembly   Kirkton 
  Wendover   Larchwood 
  Woodman   Lydia 
     Mastin 
Section 20  Alpine   Plum 
  Banmoor   Robinwood 
  Boulan   Starr 
  McClure   Van Courtland 
  McManus   Vermont 
  Muer   Westwood 
     Woodslee 
Section 21  Finch    
  Kirk Lane Section 28  Biltmore 
  Muer   Cloveridge 
  Muerknoll   Forthton 
  Ruthland   Regents 
  Wendleton   Shepherds 
   Section 36  Dashwood 
Section 22  Colebrook   Iowa 
  Ellenboro   Lovington 
  Frankton   Minnesota 
  Harris   Wisconsin 
  Hartland    
  Helena    
 
Coolidge Highway - Square Lake to South Boulevard 
Square Lake Road - Adams to Dequindre 
Wattles Road -Adams to Dequindre  Revised  1/21/04 



January 19, 2004 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Gary A. Shripka, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Carol Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item - Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Option To Renew –  

Ice Melt Compounds 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
On October 24, 2002, bid proposals were opened to furnish one-year requirements 
of Ice Melt Compounds with an option to renew for one additional year. City 
management awarded the contract to the lowest bidder meeting specifications, 
Washington Elevator Co, Inc. at an estimated total cost of $8,750.00.  Staff 
recommends the City exercise the option to renew for one additional year for an 
estimated annual cost of $15,000.00, under the same pricing, terms and conditions 
expiring October 31, 2004.     
 
The City of Troy was the host city for the bid process conducted on behalf of the Tri-
County Purchasing Cooperative entities including Auburn Hills, Birmingham, 
Eastpointe, Madison Heights, Royal Oak, Warren, Westland, and Huron-Clinton 
Metroparks. 
 
SUMMARY 

• Washington Elevator Co., Inc., 7030 West Rd., Washington, MI  48094, 
(586) 781-4822. 
 
Item  3) Four-Way Blend -  $6.25 / 50# bag  Initial Shipment:       $   Additional Quantities: 

  City of Troy   600 bags  $3,750.00  1800 
bags 
 

Ice Melt Compounds are purchased on an as needed basis throughout the year 
based upon estimated quantities.  The quantities for this season are on the rise due 
to an increase in the areas being treated and the quality of service delivered. 
 
MARKET SURVEY 
The Purchasing Department has conducted a market survey and determined the 
four-way blend is a special blend of calcium, magnesium, potassium, and sodium 
chlorides which is more effective than Safe Step at colder temperatures, replaces 
the need to carry two separate products (potassium and calcium chlorides), has a 
very low refreezing point, is blue in color and less harmful to the environment.  Our 
current supplier, Washington Elevator manufactures the product specified.  If the 
product is available from another source, market prices are at least 32% higher.  
 
BUDGET 
Funds for these materials are available through the Parks Department operating 
budgets. 
 
Prepared by: Ron Hynd, Landscape Analyst 

City of Troy
E-11



January 19, 2004  
 
 

TO:      Jeanette Bennett 
      Purchasing Director 
 
FROM:    Susan Leirstein, CPPB 
      Purchasing Systems Administrator 
 
 
RE:      MARKET SURVEY – ICE MELT COMPOUND – FOUR WAY BLEND 
 
 
 
THESIER EQUIPMENT COMPANY JIM THESIER  (248) 437-2091 
Per my conversation with Jim on Monday, January 19, 2004, he could not guarantee 
product availability since the four-way blend is a special blend and not currently in his 
product line.    
   
 
COLMAN WOLF SUPPLY   ED FORMAN  (586)779-5500 
Sales representative indicated the four-way blend, Professional Ice Melter, could be 
provided at the same price as quoted for the 2003 season, which is 32% higher than 
the lowest acceptable bidder. 
 
 
PROSOURCE ONE    JOHN THOMAS 
 (517)403-3778 
At this time, company cannot supply the product as specified, nor provide a suitable 
alternate. 
 
 
ADVANTAGE DISTRIBUTION CORP OTIS PICKENS  (734)722-4251 
Otis has a comparable product manufactured by Safe Step called SSS Ice Melter 
with MG104.  The price per bag would be higher than the product they bid last year, 
Alaskan, manufactured by Nu-Gro. 
 
 
Based upon the above comments, the Purchasing Department recommends the City 
pursue the option to renew the contract to provide Ice Melt Compounds from the 
lowest acceptable bidder, Washington Elevator Co, Inc. under the same prices, 
terms, and conditions as the 2003 contract, expiring October 31, 2004.  
 
Note:  Five other vendors placed bids for the other items on the ice melt contract, but 
either chose not to bid the four-way blend or their product did not meet specifications. 





October 30, 2002 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Gary A. Shripka, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Carol Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
SUBJECT: Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award— Lowest Acceptable Bidder – Ice 

Melt Compounds 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
On October 24, 2002, bid proposals were opened to furnish one-year requirements 
of Ice Melt Compounds with an option to renew for one additional year. After 
reviewing these proposals, Parks Department recommends awarding the contract 
to the following low bidders meeting specifications at an estimated total cost to the 
City of Troy of $8,750.00.   
 
The City of Troy was the host city for the bid process conducted on behalf of the Tri-
County Purchasing Cooperative entities including Auburn Hills, Birmingham, 
Eastpointe, Madison Heights, Royal Oak, Warren, Westland, and Huron-Clinton 
Metroparks. 
 
SUMMARY 

• Washington Elevator Co., Inc., 7030 West Rd., Washington, MI  48094, 
(586) 781-4822. 
Item 1)  Potassium Chloride -  $5.50/ 50# bag  Initial Shipment:       $   Additional Quantities: 

  City of Eastpointe      80 bags  $  440.00    80 bags 
  City of Madison Heights    80 bags  $  440.00  170 bags 
  City of Warren            120 bags  $  660.00  160 bags 

 
Item  3) Four-Way Blend -  $6.25 / 50# bag  Initial Shipment:       $   Additional Quantities: 

  City of Troy   600 bags  $3,750.00  800 bags 
  City of Auburn Hills  120 bags  $   750.00  180 bags 
 

• Gibraltar National Corporation, 8951 Schaefer Building. #4, Detroit, MI  
48228-2515, (313) 491-5610 Ext 204 
Item 2) Calcium Chloride -  $7.39 / 50# bag  Initial Shipment:       $   Additional Quantities: 

    City of Birmingham   50 bags  $   369.50      0 bags 
     City of Royal Oak    80 bags  $   591.20      0 bags 
    City of Westland   150 bags  $1,108.50  100 bags 
    Huron-Clinton Metroparks    Will call    560 bags 
 
Ice Melting Compounds are purchased on an as needed basis throughout the year 
based upon estimated quantities. 

 
 

1 of 2 
 
 
 



October 30, 2002 
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
Re:  Bid Award – Ice Melt Compounds 
 
 
EXPLANATION OF BIDS NOT MEETING SPECIFICATIONS 
Lower Huron Supply Co. bid Road Runner Ice Melt at $6.22 / 50# bag, which does 
not meet specifications.  This product does not contain an anti-caking agent or a 
pattern indicator.  The cost differential of $42.00 between the approved Four-Way 
Blend and the Road Runner product would rapidly be used up by increased labor 
costs and increased product use.  Labor to use a chunky product is greater than a 
product that flows smoothly, and the amount of product used without a pattern 
indicator increases by inadvertent, excessive overlapping during spreading in poor 
visibility (i.e. spreading at night or during precipitation). 
 
BUDGET 
Funds for these materials are available through the Parks Department operating 
budgets. 
 
 
 
43 Bids Sent 
10 Bid Responses Rec’d 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Ron Hynd, Landscape Analyst 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2 of 2 













 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
January 19, 2004 
 
 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Gary A. Shripka, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 
  Patricia A. Petitto, Senior Right of Way Representative 
 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM - REQUEST FOR ACCEPTANCE OF 

PERMANENT WATERMAIN EASEMENT    
 Sidwell #88-20-35-226-098, Project No. 03.924.3 
 Metropolitan Detroit Plumbing Industry Training Trust Fund 
  
 
 
In connection with the addition to the building at 1911 Ring, in the Northeast ¼ of 
Section 35, the Real Estate and Development Department has acquired a 
permanent easement for watermain from Metropolitan Detroit Plumbing Industry 
Training Trust Fund, the owners of the property.  The consideration on the 
document is $1.00. 
 
Management recommends that City Council accept the attached easement. 
 
 
cc: Steve Vandette, City Engineer 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Troy
E-12









City of Troy
E-13



January 22, 2004 
 

TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 

Carol Anderson, Director of Parks and Recreation 
  William S. Nelson, Fire Chief 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item - Standard Purchasing Resolution 6:  Grant Approval 

And Authorization to Expend City Funds –  
 Solar Emergency Electrical Power Supply 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the City accept a grant from the State of Michigan- 
Energy Office for a 10 KW Photovoltaic demonstration project to power 
emergency communications and other equipment located at Sylvan Glen Golf 
Course provided by Uni-Solar Corporation in the amount of $37,248.00. The local 
grant match from the Fire Department for this project is $6,833.00, with the Parks 
and Recreation Department to fund the cost of remodeling estimated at 
$2,500.00. 
 
The term of the grant is twelve (12) months from 10/1/03 through 9/30/04, and 
therefore must be budgeted in two fiscal years. 
 
It is further recommended that the Fire Department capital budget be amended 
by $37,248.00 to reflect the state grant amount and authorize its disbursement.  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The City became aware that grants for solar generated electrical power were 
available through the State of Michigan and the federal government.  A grant 
application was submitted to provide emergency electrical power for public safety 
communications equipment at the Sylvan Glen Golf Course.  The cost of the 
project is $69,883.00 with a city match of $6,833.00.  The City was notified that 
the grant had been approved at a reduced funding level by the state. In order to 
makeup the reduction in state funding, the Automation Alley Technology Center 
secured additional funding through the National Automotive Center to foster 
technology commercialization.  
 
This project will utili ze solar panels configured as shingles in conjunction with a 
system of batteries to power radio equipment located at the radio tower at Sylvan 
Glen.  The system will use excess power generated to power the wash water-
recycling unit at the maintenance facility. 

 
 

1 of 2 

City of Troy
E-14



January 22, 2004 
 
To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
Re: Agenda Item - Grant for Solar Emergency Electrical Power Supply 
 
BACKGROUND  - (Continued) 
 
The cost of this project is $69,883.00.  The funding sources are: 
 
 State of Michigan Grant*  $37,248.00 
 NAC Accelerator program*  $25,802.00  
  (separate PO issued by NAC) 
 City of Troy (fire)*   $  6,833.00 
 
 * Equipment costs 
 
The equipment will be located in the maintenance building at Sylvan Glen.  
Uni-Solar will supply the labor to install the equipment.  It will be necessary to 
construct a room for the batteries and equipment. Building Operations estimates 
that the required alterations can be completed for under $2,500.00.  Parks and 
Recreation has funds to cover this cost. 
 
BUDGET 
 
The Fire Department Capital Account for Communications #401343.7978.020 will 
be amended to provide funding for this project.  The grant match will be funded 
through the Fire Department operating account #338.7740.115.  Funds for the 
modifications are available in the  Sylvan Glen Greens - Building Maintenance 
Services account#785.7801.050.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2 of 2 





















BUDGET CONSIDERATIONS

Photovoltaic Project Budget PV System Equipment, Supplies, and Materials

Qty Unit Item Unit Price Total Price Subtotals
PV and Electrical Hardware

600 each UNI-SOLAR Shr-17 Shingles $71.40 $42,840.00
2 each SW5548SB w/SWCB Inverters $4,590.00 $9,180.00
1 each PC 500 DC Load Center w/ 3 $2,710.00 $2,710.00

extra 60 amp charge controllers
GFDI, & battery temp comp.

8 each Deka 8G8D DeepCycle Valve $324.00 $2,592.00
Regulated Batteries

8 each BC1.5RB-2/0 Battery Cables $16.20 $129.50
7 each Combiner Boxes $229.50 $1,606.50
1 each AC 240 VAC Sub-Panel & Brker $500.00 $500.00

10 100 feet DC Wire $250.00 $2,500.00
10 100 feet DC Conduit $100.00 $1,000.00
5 100 feet AC Wire $100.00 $500.00
5 100 feet AC Conduit $100.00 $500.00
1 each Conduit Fittings $200.00 $200.00

$64,258.00

Instrumentation Hardware & Software
1 each UNI-SOLAR DAS $5,625.00 $5,625.00

$5,625.00

Project TOTAL $69,883.00

Equipment Funding Summary
State of Michigan Grant $37,248.00
NAC Funding $25,802.00
City of Troy $6,833.00



January 19, 2004 
 
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From:  Gary A. Shripka, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 

 Carol Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
Subject:   Agenda Item - Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Bid Award – Lowest 

Acceptable Bidder Meeting Specifications – Printing The Senior Newsletter 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Bid proposals to furnish printing of the Senior Citizen newsletter for one (1) year with an 
option to renew for one (1) additional year were opened on January 7, 2004.  City 
management recommends the contract be awarded to the lowest acceptable bidder, 
Johnston Lithograph, Inc., 11334 Hunt, Romulus, MI  48174, 734-941-3510, at an 
estimated annual cost of $8,832.00, plus additional charges as needed at unit prices 
contained in the attached bid tabulation dated 1/7/04.   
 
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
The Senior Director at the Community Center utilizes various items listed under additional 
charges at least four (4) times per year to publicize quarterly classes and special events. 
 
 
EXPLANATION OF BIDS NOT MEETING SPECIFICATIONS 
The City received thirteen bid proposals in response to the solicitation. Of those, three 
companies did not include the required $500.00 bid deposit check to insure the bid.  The 
bid deposit is used to enforce liquidated damages of $50.00 per day when the vendor 
does not deliver the newsletter within seven calendar days of receiving the ‘copy ready 
file.’  The vendor is considered in default of contract when the entire bid surety is forfeited 
do to the enforcement of liquidated damages.    
 
 
BUDGET  
Funds are available in the Community Center Printing Account #755.7901.   
 
 
 133 Vendors Notified on MITN System 
   13 Bid Responses Rec’d 
     3 Bids did not meet specifications – Re: $500 bid surety check not provided.     
     3 No Bids:  (2) Companies could not be competitive    
  (1) Company had schedule conflicts  
   
 
Prepared by: Carla Vaughan, Recreation Supervisor 

City of Troy
E-15



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 03-41
Opening Date -- 1-7-04 BID TABULATION Pg 1 of 3
Date Prepared -- 1/18/04 PRINTING OF THE SENIOR NEWSLETTER

VENDOR NAME: * JOHNSTON SELECT CUSTOM SYSTEMS 
LITHOGRAPH GRAPHICS PRINTING DUPLICATING 

INC CORP -NOT CERTIFIED- COMPANY INC
CHECK # 698855142 645151652 023851 005425
CHECK AMOUNT $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00

PROPOSAL:   FURNISH ALL LABOR, MATERIALS, AND EQUIPMENT TO PROVIDE ONE YEAR REQUIREMENTS OF
                      OFFSET PRINTING OF THE SENIOR NEWSLETTER WITH AN OPTION TO RENEW FOR ONE YEAR.

QTY                  DESCRIPTION
2,500 Copies Printing the Senior Newsletter

per Month 60 lb. Offset Paper recycled (30%)
Minmum Canary Yellow

  Complete for the Sum of: 736.00$        768.00$         799.20$        898.00$        
Estimated Total for the Year: * 8,832.00$      9,216.00$      9,590.40$     10,776.00$   

Additional Charges:
Cost to Print & Insert one 8 1/2" x 11" COLOR - $149.00
Flyer, printed on both sides

Total Insert Cost per Mo. WHITE - $41.00 165.00$         172.00$        194.00$        

Cost to Print & Insert one additional
11" x 17" sheet  (Yellow or White)

Total Insert Cost per Mo. 82.00$          101.00$         291.00$        297.00$        

Cost for Additional 100 copies of Newsletter
Total Cost per 100 copies 9.00$            20.00$          22.00$          142.00$        

Cost of Additional 100 copies of 8 1/2 x 11 Flyer
Total Cost per 100 copies 11.00$          4.00$            4.00$            10.00$          

Cost of Additional 100 copies of 11 x 17 Insert
Total Cost per 100 copies 22.00$          5.00$            7.00$            20.00$          

Contact Information
Hours of Operations 24 HRS 12 HRS 6AM-9PM 8-5
24 Hr Emergency Phone No. (734)941-3514 (248)521-0854 (248)585-9222 (248)752-7675

Completion Schedule:
Can meet 7 CALENDAR DAYS XX XX XX XX
Cannot meet

Terms NET 30 DAYS NET 30 NET 30 NET 30

Exceptions: NONE BLANK BLANK BLANK

ATTEST:
  Carla Vaughan * DENOTES LOWEST ACCEPTABLE BIDDER
  Charlene McComb
  Linda Bockstanz ___________________________
G: ITB-COT 03-41Printing of Senior Newsletter Jeanette Bennett

Purchasing Director



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 03-41
Opening Date -- 1-7-04 BID TABULATION Pg 2 of 3
Date Prepared -- 1/18/04 PRINTING OF THE SENIOR NEWSLETTER

VENDOR NAME: MESSENGER ROYAL OAK COLONIAL UNIVERSITY
PRINTING SVC PDQ PRINTING PRESS INC LITHOPRINTERS

INC INC
CHECK # 48 702 954 7645441 875311659-0 101944
CHECK AMOUNT $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00

PROPOSAL:   FURNISH ALL LABOR, MATERIALS, AND EQUIPMENT TO PROVIDE ONE YEAR REQUIREMENTS OF
                      OFFSET PRINTING OF THE SENIOR NEWSLETTER WITH AN OPTION TO RENEW FOR ONE YEAR.

QTY                  DESCRIPTION
2,500 Copies Printing the Senior Newsletter

per Month 60 lb. Offset Paper recycled (30%)
Minmum Canary Yellow

  Complete for the Sum of: 999.00$        1,048.80$      1,132.00$      1,150.00$     
Estimated Total for the Year: 11,988.00$    12,585.60$    13,584.00$    13,800.00$   

W-TERMS $13,448.16

Additional Charges:
Cost to Print & Insert one 8 1/2" x 11"
Flyer, printed on both sides

Total Insert Cost per Mo. 159.00$        224.70$         227.00$         495.00$        

Cost to Print & Insert one additional
11" x 17" sheet  (Yellow or White)

Total Insert Cost per Mo. 239.00$        257.60$         MINUS $58.00 600.00$        

Cost for Additional 100 copies of Newsletter
Total Cost per 100 copies 29.00$          19.90$          21.00$           20.00$          

Cost of Additional 100 copies of 8 1/2 x 11 Flyer
Total Cost per 100 copies 5.00$            6.00$            23.00$           5.00$           

Cost of Additional 100 copies of 11 x 17 Insert
Total Cost per 100 copies 10.00$          6.20$            19.00$           10.00$          

Contact Information
Hours of Operations 9-5, M-F 8-5 7AM-11PM 24 HRS, M-SAT
24 Hr Emergency Phone No. (313)407-2621 (248)549-9055 (517)202-7834 (734)973-9414

Completion Schedule:
Can meet 7 CALENDAR DAYS XX XX XX XX
Cannot meet

1% 10 DAYS
Terms NET 30 NET 30 DAYS NET 30 NET 30

Exceptions: BLANK LISTED LISTED BLANK
IN BID IN BID

NO BIDS:
  American Solutions
  Color Production & Design
  Grigg Graphic Services
G: ITB-COT 03-41Printing of Senior Newsletter



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 03-41
Opening Date -- 1-7-04 BID TABULATION Pg 3 of 3
Date Prepared -- 1/18/04 PRINTING OF THE SENIOR NEWSLETTER

VENDOR NAME: ARBOR ROTARY
PRESS MULTIFORMS

INC INC
CHECK # ON FILE 698879204
CHECK AMOUNT $500.00 $500.00

PROPOSAL:   FURNISH ALL LABOR, MATERIALS, AND EQUIPMENT TO PROVIDE ONE YEAR REQUIREMENTS OF
                      OFFSET PRINTING OF THE SENIOR NEWSLETTER WITH AN OPTION TO RENEW FOR ONE YEAR.

QTY                  DESCRIPTION
2,500 Copies Printing the Senior Newsletter

per Month 60 lb. Offset Paper recycled (30%)
Minmum Canary Yellow

  Complete for the Sum of: 1,158.00$      1,394.00$      
Estimated Total for the Year: 13,896.00$    16,728.00$    

Additional Charges:
Cost to Print & Insert one 8 1/2" x 11"
Flyer, printed on both sides

Total Insert Cost per Mo. 235.00$        439.00$         

Cost to Print & Insert one additional
11" x 17" sheet  (Yellow or White)

Total Insert Cost per Mo. 240.00$        559.00$         

Cost for Additional 100 copies of Newsletter
Total Cost per 100 copies 25.00$          30.81$          

Cost of Additional 100 copies of 8 1/2 x 11 Flyer
Total Cost per 100 copies 20.00$          8.69$            

Cost of Additional 100 copies of 11 x 17 Insert
Total Cost per 100 copies 25.00$          12.06$          

Contact Information
Hours of Operations 24 HRS; 6 DAYS 24 HRS
24 Hr Emergency Phone No. (248)549-0150 (586)675-6945

Completion Schedule:
Can meet 7 CALENDAR DAYS XX XX
Cannot meet

Terms 30 DAYS NET 30

Exceptions: BLANK BLANK

DMS:  Reason - No bid deposit checks submitted, as required in the bid proposal.
  Caldwell Printing ($12,180)
  Nu-Ad Inc ($9,876)
  Printwell ($8,820)
G: ITB-COT 03-41Printing of Senior Newsletter











City of Troy
E-16















January 19, 2004 
 
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From:  Gary A. Shripka, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
Subject: Agenda Item - Standard Purchasing Resolution #2: Bid Award -  

Lowest Acceptable Bidder Meeting Specifications 
Scoreboards 

 
RECOMMENDATION   
On January 9, 2004, bid proposals were opened to furnish and install five (5) 
Nevco Baseball/Softball scoreboards with MPC control at two City parks – four 
(4) at Flynn Park and one (1) at Boulan Park. After reviewing these proposals, 
City management recommends awarding the contract to the lowest acceptable 
bidder meeting specifications, Troy Electric, Inc. for an estimated total cost of 
$21,500.00. 
 
The award is contingent upon contractor submission of properly executed bid 
and contract documents, including insurance certificates and all other specified 
requirements.    
 
EXPLANATION OF BID NOT MEETING SPECIFICATIONS 
A total of three (3) bids were received of which one, Daktronics Sales & Services, 
did not meet specifications for the following reasons:  

• Bid deposit check submitted was not a cashier’s check, certified check or 
money order, as required to insure the bid. 

• Did not include the electrical connections as specified in the bid 
documents and stated that his company does not do electrical work and 
the City is responsible for all electrical to the scoreboards. 

• The company bid a different carrying case for the control panel, which is not 
recommended for long-term durability  (soft versus a hard carrying case).  

• The board itself is a different style and does not have the same quality 
appearance as the one specified. 

• Some of the digit sizes on the board are different than the sizes specified.   
Daktronics did not visit the site as recommended in the bid, but staff confirmed 
with the company representative the details listed above. 
 
BUDGET 
Funds for this project are available through the following Park Development 
Accounts  #401770.7974.020 and #401770.7974.035. 
 
 

1 of 2 

City of Troy
E-17



 
January 19, 2004 
 
To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
Re: Bid Award – Scoreboards 
 
 
 
 
49 Vendors Notified on the MITN System 
  8 JDE Vendors Notified  
  1 Vendor Walk-In 
  3 Bid Responses Received 
  1 Bid did not meet specifications 
  3 No Bids:   (1) Company would not supply bid surety check. 

(1) Company could not meet specifications 
(1) Company does not handle the type of product specified. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by:  Stuart J. Alderman, Superintendent of Recreation 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2 of 2 



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 03-46
Opening Date -- 1-9-04 BID TABULATION Pg 1 of 2
Date Prepared -- 1/18/04 SCOREBOARDS - TWO PARKS

VENDOR NAME: Troy Electric Inc. Motor City
Scoreboards Co

10% CHECK # 192429250-2 961964436
AMOUNT 2,150.00$              2,150.00$                 

PROPOSAL-- REMOVE EXISTING SCOREBOARDS AND FURNISH / INSTALL SCOREBOARDS AT TWO
                     CITY PARKS - BOULAN AND FLYNN
PROPOSAL
NEW SCOREBOARDS INSTALLED AT TWO PARKS, NEVCO 1510, BASEBALL/SOFTBALL W/MPC CONTROL
IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE SPECIFICATIONS

COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF: 21,500.00$             Blank

COLORS AVAILABLE: Nevco - 12 Colors Blank
Blank

OPTIONAL PROPOSAL:  ALTERNATE
NEW BASEBALL/SOFTBALL SCOREBOARDS W/MPC CONTROL 
DELIVERED & INSTALLED AT TWO PARKS, IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH THE SPECIFICATIONS

COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF: Blank * 21,950.00$                

QUOTING ON MODEL: Blank 7175 LED
MANUFACTURED BY: Blank Eversan

COLORS AVAILABLE: Blank Red,Green,Black

ALTERNATE SPECIFICATION SHEETS:
ATTACHED - NO YES

Listed on
SCHEDULE OF VALUES: $4,300 per sign install Option/Proposal

COMPLETION DATE:
CAN MEET DATE XX XX
CANNOT MEET DATE

INSURANCE: CAN MEET XX
CANNOT MEET XX - (Add) $450.00

Net 30 days
PAYMENT SCHEDULE: YES OR NO After completion 10 days After Completion

SITE INSPECTION: YES OR NO Yes Yes
DATE 1/7/04 12/26/03

TERMS: Net 30 Days 30 Days
Parts,sign - 5 yr 5 Yrs - Sign

WARRANTY: 1 Year Labor 1 Year Labor

EXCEPTIONS: BLANK BLANK

*PURCHASING CORRECTED -  ORIGINAL BID AMOUNT - $21,500 + $450.00 - INSURANCE

BOLDFACE TYPE DENOTES LOWEST ACCEPTABLE BIDDER

April 16, 2004



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 03-46
Opening Date -- 1-9-04 BID TABULATION Pg 2 of 2
Date Prepared -- 1/18/04 SCOREBOARDS - TWO PARKS

DMS:
Daktronics Sales & Services - ($16,120.00)
  Reason: Bid does not include 120VAC power to scorebooard or control, and signal cable as specified. 
 Bid deposit check #38136 for $1,612.00 not a cashiers check, certified check, or money order as specified.

NO BIDS:
  Architectural  Systems Group
  Engan-Tooley-Doyle & Assoc
  Wensco Sign Supply

ATTEST:
  Stu Alderman
  Cheryl Morrell
  Linda Bockstanz ___________________________

Jeanette Bennett
Purchasing Director

G:ITB-COT 03-46: SCOREBOARDS









 

 

January 27, 2004 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Gary A. Shripka, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Doug Smith, Real Estate and Development Director 
  Dennis C. Stephens, Right of Way Representative 
 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM – Release of Retained Public Utility Easement at 

94 Hickory - Sidwell #88-20-27-156-029 – Daniel Bousho, owner 
 
On July 11, 1994, City Council vacated platted, but unopened 50-foot wide 
Mastin Street right of way between Hickory and Cherry Streets in the Greenough 
Heights Subdivision.  An easement for public utilities and storm drainage/sewer 
was retained over the entire 50-foot width. 
 
Daniel Bousho, the owner of the abutting Lot 66, addressed as 94 Hickory Street, 
has requested that the city release the west 8-feet of the retained easement to 
allow enough unencumbered land to build a garage on. 
 
City staff has investigated, and determined that there is a water main running 
down the middle of the 50-foot wide easement area.  In the event that work on 
this water main should be needed, a 50-foot wide easement would not be 
required.  A normal requested water main easement width would be 20-feet. No 
other utilities are located in the easement area. 
 
The Public Works and Engineering Department have indicated that by releasing 
the west 8-feet of the easement area abutting Lot 66 would not pose any 
problems now or in the future for the city. 
 
City staff would recommend that City Council release all of the retained 
easements over the west 8-feet of the vacated 50-foot wide Mastin Street 
abutting Lot 66 of Greenough Heights Subdivision. 
 
 
Cc:  Tim Richnak, Public Works Director 
       Steve Vandette, City Engineer 
 
 
 
 
PARTIAL RELEASE OF RETAINED EASEMENT OVER 50 FOOT WIDE 
VACATED MASTIN STREET 
94 HICKORY STREET – LOT 66 GREENOUGH HEIGHTS SUBDIVISION – 
DANIEL BOUSHO, OWNER  

City of Troy
E-18









January 21, 2004 
 
 
To:    John Szerlag, City Manager  
 
From:  Gary Shripka, Assistant City Manager / Services 
  Timothy Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
Subject: Agenda Item – Barnard Drain Special Assessment Roll  
 
 
Background 
The Barnard Drain is a Chapter 20 Drain located in the Southeastern area of the City of 
Troy (sections 34,35, & 36).  For many years (1997-2001) the previous funding had 
sustained the maintenance operations of the Barnard Drain. Over the past two years 
(2002-2003) this operation has had a shortfall in the Barnard Drain Maintenance 
Account.  The Oakland County Drain Commissioner has invoiced the City of Troy, State 
of Michigan and the County of Oakland for the percentage of apportionment of the total 
amount of the assessment ($31,963.00). This includes projected expenditures through 
2006 ($6074 for 2004, $6317 for 2005 and $6570 for 2006). 
 
 
Recommendation 
City staff recommends approval of payment for the City of Troy’s apportionment of the 
Special Assessment Roll ($30,157.73) for the maintenance of the Barnard Drain 
approved by the Oakland County Drainage Board October 15, 2003.  This 
recommendation follows requests and review of additional County Drain maintenance 
records and service requests to verify Barnard Drain maintenance expenditures.     
 
 
Budget 
Funds for these Chapter 20 maintenance activities are budgeted and available in Drains 
account 401516.7989.1000   
 
 
 
 
Prepared by:  Timothy Richnak, Public Works Director 

City of Troy
E-19









January 23, 2004 
 
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From:  Gary A. Shripka, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
Subject: Agenda Item - Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidder - 

Spring Opening and Fall Winterization of the of Troy Family Aquatic 
Center 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION   
 
On January 14, 2004, bids were opened to provide three (3) year requirements of 
Spring Opening and Fall Winterization of the Troy Family Aquatic Center.  After 
reviewing the bid proposal received, City management recommends Troy City 
Council award the contract to the sole bidder, Clearwater Pools and Service of 
Ann Arbor, Inc for a three-year contract cost of $22,125.00, at annual unit prices 
contained in the attached bid tabulation. The award is contingent upon vendor 
submission of proper contract and bid documents, including insurance certificates 
and all specified requirements. 
 
SUMMARY    
 
As of the date and time of the bid opening, Clearwater Pools and Service of Ann 
Arbor, Inc., was the sole bidder for this contract.  The three-year contract requires 
the vendor to furnish all labor, equipment and materials to provide the spring 
opening and fall winterization of the Troy Family Aquatic Center.  
 
BUDGET 
 
Funds are available to complete this project in the Aquatic Center Contractual 
Service - Account# 787.7802.070 
 
 
58 Vendors Notified on MITN System 
1   Bid Rec’d 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Ann Blizzard, Recreation Supervisor 
 

City of Troy
E-20



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 03-40
Opening Date -- 1-14-04 BID TABULATION
Date Prepared -- 1/23/04 OPENING/CLOSING OF THE TROY AQUATIC CENTER

VENDOR NAME: *

CHECK #: ON FILE
CHECK AMOUNT: $500.00

PROPOSAL -- SPRING OPENING AND FALL WINTERIZATION OF THE TROY FAMILY AQUATIC CENTER

SPRING OPENING:
2004 5,300.00$          
2005 5,400.00$          
2006 5,500.00$          

FALL WINTERIZATION:
2004 1,950.00$          
2005 1,975.00$          
2006 2,000.00$          

  GRAND TOTAL -- (3) YEARS * 22,125.00$        

SITE INSPECTION: Y/N NO
DATE CURRENT PROVIDER

COMPLETION DATE:
CAN MEET XX
CANNOT MEET
BUT OFFER:

INSURANCE: CAN MEET XX
CANNOT MEET

OPENING 5/1 - 5/5
WARRANTY: CLOSING 9/6 - 9/12

TERMS: NET 30

EXCEPTIONS: CITY OF TROY BLOWS OUT ALL FRESH WATER. SAME AS PAST THREE YEARS.
ALL TILE REPAIR, MARCITE PATCHES DONE DAY OF OPENING BILLED AT SERVICE
RATES.

* SOLE BIDDER

ATTEST:
  MaryAnn Hays ______________________________
  Ann Blizzard Jeanette Bennett
  Linda Bockstanz Purchasing Director

G:\ITB-COT 03-40 Aquatic Ctr OpenClosePool

CLEAR WATER
POOLS & SERVICE
OF ANN ARBOR INC









 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
January 26, 2004 
 
 
TO:                    John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:              Gary A. Shripka, Assistant City Manager/Services 
                          Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate and Development Director 
                          Dennis C. Stephens, Right of Way Representative 
 
SUBJECT:         AGENDA ITEM – REQUEST FOR ACCEPTANCE OF        

PERMANENT WATER MAIN EASEMENT 
                          Sidwell # 88-20-36-451-047, Project No. 01.935.3                        
                          Minnesota Ventures, L.L.C. 
 
 
In connection with the construction of a new building on lot 13 of Supervisor’s 
Plat of Cooper Subdivision, which lot is located on Minnesota Street, north of 
Maple Road, in the Southeast ¼ of Section 36, the Real Estate and Development 
Department has acquired a permanent easement for water main from Minnesota 
Ventures, L.L.C., who are the owners of the property. The consideration on the 
document is $1.00. 
 
Management recommends that City Council accept the attached easement.                  

City of Troy
E-21







City of Troy
F-04



January 15, 2004 
 
 
To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From: John Lamerato, Assistant City Manager – Finance/Administration 
 Nino Licari, City Assessor 
 
Re: Agenda Item – Resolution to Set A Public Hearing on February 16, 

2004, For a Michigan NextEnergy Exemption 
 
The Michigan NextEnergy Authority (MNEA) was created by Public Act 593 of 
2002. They are charged with certifying alternative energy businesses, and 
alternative energy personal property. 
 
Under the provisions of the Act, alternative energy personal property (as certified 
by the local Assessor) purchased between 2002 and 2011, may be exempt from 
taxation, through the process of eliminating some, or all millages from being 
levied against the property, 
 
Also under provisions of the Act, local taxing authorities may ‘opt out’ of the 
exemption process.  In order to ‘opt out’, these local authorities (schools, 
community college, county, city, intermediate school districts) must pass a 
resolution within 60 days of receipt of the MNEA Resolution certifying the 
alternative energy company’s proposal (pending final certification by the local 
Assessor).  Barring a resolution to opt out, the property is exempt from that local 
units millage rate. 
 
Energy Conversion Devices, and two of its subsidiaries, have received 
certification from MNEA as alternative energy companies, with alternative energy 
personal property.  While the vast majority of the property is in Rochester Hills, 
some of it is located in Troy. 
 
The public act requires a public hearing to allow the local Assessor to discuss his 
recommendation to allow the exemption, or to opt out.  Additionally, at this time, 
the Assessor would present his certification of acceptable personal property, and 
allow the Petitioner, and other local units, an opportunity to discuss these 
findings before the local unit’s governing body. 
 
I would recommend that you present the attached resolution to City Council, for 
approval, to set a Public Hearing on February 16, 2004, for this purpose.  

City of Troy
F-05



 

 

 
 
 

January 23, 2004 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
  Laura A. Fitzpatrick, Assistant to the City Manager 
   
SUBJECT: Agenda Item: Revision to Chapter 10: Employee Retirement System 
 
Revisions to two distinct sections of Chapter 10 are recommended at this time.  
Explanations are below.  Ordinance amendments are attached. 
 
Revisions re: Board of Trustees  
 
At its January 14, 2004 meeting the Retirement System Board of Trustees voted 
to recommend changing the membership of the board so as to better represent the 
interests of both employee and retiree members of the Defined Benefit Plan.  Their 
resolution is below.   
 
Resolution # ER – 2004 - 01- 003 
Moved by Lamerato 
Seconded by Lambert 
 
RESOLVED, That the Board recommends that a defined benefit Retiree be appointed to 
the Board as a non-voting member selected by the City Manager and that two of the 
employee members be in the defined benefit plan. 
 
Yeas:  All 7 
  
Revisions re: Retirement Benefits for Employee Groups 
 
These revisions reflect the most recent MAP and AFSCME contracts as well as a 
change in the benefits package for Classified and Exempt employees.  Note that 
the retirement contribution rate changes are part of an overall cost-reduction effort 
on the part of administration. 
 
Summary of Retirement Benefit Changes: 

• The Defined Contribution (DC) employer contribution rate for Classified & 
Exempt employees hired after 1/1/04 is 11% (reduced from 12%). 

• The DC employer contribution rate for AFSCME employees hired after 
11/17/03 is 10% (reduced from 11%). 

• MAP employees obtained the Age 55 and 25 years of service eligibility 
category. 

City of Troy
F-06



 
CITY OF TROY 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 10 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 10: Employees 
Retirement System of the Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2.  Amendment 
 
 
 
2. Board of Trustees.  The Board of Trustees is vested with the power and authority to administer, manage 

and operate the retirement system, and to construe and make effective the provisions of this Chapter.  
The Board shall consist of seven eight trustees as follows: 

 
 (A) The City Manager, by virtue of his position. 
 
 (B) The Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration, by virtue of his position. 
 
  (Rev. 11-6-00) 
 
 (C) A member of Council selected by the Council. 
 
  (Rev. 2-28-94) 
 
 (D) A citizen, who is an elector of the City, and who is not a member, retirant or beneficiary of the 

retirement system, and who is not a member of the Council, to be appointed by the Council. 
 
  (Rev. 9-11-78) 
 

(E)  (E) Three members of the retirement system to be elected by the members of the system in 
accordance with such rules and regulations as the Board shall from time to time adopt to govern such 
elections.   

 
(F) A retiree member in the Defined Benefit plan, who shall be appointed by the City Manager, and shall 

serve as a non-voting member. 
 

(G) Of the five employee members, two must be in the Defined Benefit plan.  A minimum of two of the 
five member trustees, as set forth in paragraphs A, B or E, must be a member of the Defined Benefit 
plan. 

 
  (Rev. 3-19-79) 



 

 

  

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

************** 
 
 
 

 
6.1(B) Age and Service Retirement.  Upon a member's retirement, as provided in this Chapter, if he has 27 or 

more years service, he shall receive a straight life pension equal to an amount computed by multiplying 
the number of years, and fraction of a year, of his credited service by 2.25%. For TPOA members, the 
percent of FAC will be 2.8% for the first 25 years and 1% per year thereafter. 

 
(Rev. 11-6-00) 
 

6.1(C) A member who has 27 or more years service may retire on or after his attainment of age 50.  TPOA and 
TCOA, and TFSOA members retiring after July 1, 1998 may retire as an age and service retirement after 
the attainment of 25 years of service.  A Classified and Exempt  Classified and Exempt and MAP 
members may retire as an age and service retirement after the attainment of age 55 and 25 years of 
service. 

 
 (Rev. 11-3-97) 

 
******************** 

 
 
 

53. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN (DCP) 
 
 The Employees Retirement System Board of Trustees are vested with the power and authority to 

administer, manage and operate the Defined Contribution Plan, and to construe and make effective the 
provisions of this Chapter  

 
 (Rev. 11-6-00) 
 
54. The following groups of Employees are eligible to participate in the Plan: 
 
 Classified & Exempt, AFSCME, MAP,TFSOA, TPOA and TCOA. 
 
 (Rev.11-6-00) 
 



 

 

  

3

 
55. Contribution Provisions – The City shall contribute as follows: 
 
 The City shall contribute on behalf of each Participant (a) % of earnings for the Plan Year. Each 

Participant is required to contribute (b) % of earnings for the Plan Year as a condition of participation in 
the Plan. A Participant shall not have the right to discontinue or vary the rate of such contributions after 
becoming a Plan Participant. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
               (a) – Employer         (b) – Employee 
 
 
 Classified  

& Exempt (Hired before 1/1/04)    12%    4% 
                                   (Hired after 1/1/04)                                       11%                                        4% 
 
 
 
 AFSCME (Hired prior to 2/16/98)  12%    4% 
   (Hired after 2/16/98)   11%    5% 
                                   (Hired after 11/17/03)                        10%                                        5% 
 
 MAP  (Hired prior to 12/21/98)  12%    4% 
   (Hired after 12/21/98)   11%    5% 
 
 TFSOA (Hired prior to 7/1/97)   13%    3% 
   (Hired after 7/1/97)   11%    5% 
 
 TPOA  (Hired after 2/15/00)   11%    5% 
 
 TCOA       12%    4% 
 
 (Rev. 11-6-00) 

 
 
Section 3.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, at the time this 
Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may be consummated under and 
according to the ordinance in force at the time such proceedings were commenced.  This ordinance 
shall not be construed to alter, affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution 



 

 

  

4

hereafter instituted under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this ordinance 
adopting this penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance; and 
new prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions pending at the effective date of this ordinance 
may be continued, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in 
accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the commission of such offense. 
 
Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held invalid or 
unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon publication, 
whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, at a regular 
meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI, on the 2nd  day of February,  
2004 
 
 
                    ______________________________ 
                                        Matt Pryor, Mayor 
 
                                    ______________________________ 
                                     Tonni Bartholomew. City Clerk    
 



Date:  January 27, 2004 
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From:  Gary A. Shripka, Assistant City Manager, Services 
  Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer 
  Timothy Richnak, Director of Public Works 
 
 
Subject: Agenda Item - Streambank Inventory and Detention Basin Inventory 

Grant 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The City of Troy has applied for and received their Phase II Stormwater Permit from 
the Michigan Department of Environmental Quality (MDEQ).  A requirement of this 
permit is a list of specific tasks that the community will implement to improve and 
protect the water quality of our Rivers.  Two of these tasks that were listed by the 
City of Troy were a Detention Basin Inventory and a Streambank Inventory for the 
Rouge River Watershed.  Many of the other communities in the Rouge River Main 1-
2 Subwatershed, including Farmington Hills, Beverly Hills, Southfield, Rochester 
Hills, and Bloomfield Township also listed these projects as requirements of their 
Storm Water Permits.   
 
The Oakland County Drain Commissioner’s office acting as the lead agency, has 
been working with all of these Main 1-2 communities to reduce the costs associated 
with implementing these projects on an individual community basis.  The Oakland 
County Drain Commissioner’s office has obtained partial federal grant funding for 
the Detention Basin and Streambank Inventory projects, which will help to further 
reduce the costs of implementing the inventories individually by the communities.  
The Oakland County Drain Commissioner’s office has prepared the requests for 
proposals, and chosen a contractor to perform the work.   
 
The cost for the City of Troy to implement the Detention Basin Inventory is $4327 
and the Streambank Inventory is $3659 for a total of $7986.  Enclosed with this 
memo is the documentation for the grant.       
 
FUNDING: 
 
It is our recommendation that the attached contract be executed.  Funding for this 
contract will be taken from the Drains Capital Account.  If you have any questions 
concerning the above, please let us know.  
 
 
Prepared by Dana Calhoun, Storm Water Engineer & Jennifer Lawson, Environmental Specialist  

City of Troy
F-07



OAKLAND COUNTY DRAIN COMMISSIONER'S 
CONTRACT FOR STORM WATER MANAGEMENT 

SERVICES WITH THE CITY OF TROY 
 
This CONTRACT (hereafter, this "Contract") is made and entered into between 

the COUNTY OF OAKLAND, a Michigan Constitutional and Municipal Corporation, 
whose address is 1200 North Telegraph Road, Michigan 48341 (hereafter, the "County"), 
by and through its Drain Commissioner and the CITY OF TROY, a Michigan Municipal 
Corporation whose address is 500 West Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan 48084-5285 
hereafter, the "Municipality").  In this Contract, either the County and/or the Municipality 
may also be referred to individually as a "Party" or jointly as "Parties.” 
 
 WHEREAS, the County of Wayne through the Rouge River National Wet 
Weather Demonstration Project has offered technical assistance and federal grants to 
local government entities for addressing and improving the water quality and recreational 
use of the Rouge River; and, 
  
 WHEREAS, implementation of the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination 
System (“NPDES”) General Stormwater Discharge Permit for Storm Water Discharges 
from Separate Storm Water Drainage Systems (Permit No. MIG610000) (“Storm Water 
General Permit”) issued by the State of Michigan will further the goal to improve water 
quality and recreational use of the Rouge River; and, 
 

WHEREAS, illicit discharge elimination, public education and subwatershed 
management planning are considered examples of the types of activities required by the 
Storm Water General Permit which will assist in restoring the water quality of the Rouge 
River; and,  
 
 WHEREAS, the Oakland County Drain Commissioner is actively participating in 
the implementation of the Storm Water General Permit issued by the State of Michigan 
for the County of Oakland; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Miscellaneous Resolutions #02162 and #02163, the 
County applied for, and was awarded, federal grant funding not exceeding a total of 
$103,995 (Main 1-2 Stormwater Detention Pond Inventory Project $54,350 grant and 
Main 1-2 Stream Bank Inventory Project $49,645 grant) from the County of Wayne via 
United States Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA), to implement inventory of 
detention ponds and stream banks; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, in order to comply with the federal grant funding requirements and 
objectives, the County of Oakland was required to enter into an Inter-Agency Agreement 
(“IAA”) with the County of Wayne, and further, agreed to comply with certain 
administrative procedures; and, 
  
 WHEREAS, said grant, among other things, requires a minimum 50% match in 
funds from local municpalities; and, 



 
 

 2

 
 WHEREAS, the Drain Commissioner is prepared to administer the Detention 
Pond Inventory and Streambank Inventory Projects, in accordance with the grant 
conditions; and,  
 
 WHEREAS, the Municipality has requested the Oakland County Drain 
Commissioner for assistance in administering this Grant as outlined in the attached Scope 
of Services and has agreed in return to reimburse the County as provided for in this 
Contract; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the Oakland County Drain Commissioner has determined, at the 
present time, that it has sufficient personnel or consultants as defined herein, possessing 
the requisite knowledge and expertise and is agreeable to assisting the Municipality by 
providing the requested services under the terms and conditions of this Contract; and,  
 

WHEREAS, the Parties recognize and agree that absent an agreement such as 
this, the County has no obligation to provide these services or grant funding to or for the 
Municipality. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of these premises and the mutual 
promises, representations, and agreements set forth in this Contract, and for other good 
and valuable consideration, the receipt and adequacy of which is hereby acknowledged, 
the County and the Municipality mutually agree as follows: 
 
ARTICLE  I. DEFINED TERMS. In addition to the above defined terms (i.e., 
"Contract”, "County”, “Municipality”, "Party" and "Parties"), the Parties agree that the 
following words and expressions, whether used in the singular or plural, possessive or 
non-possessive, and/or either within or without quotation marks, shall, be defined and 
interpreted as follows: 
  
1.1 “Consultant” - shall be defined as an independent contractor engaged by the 

County to perform any services necessary to carry out the objectives under this 
agreement. 

 
1.2 "County Agent" or "County Agents" shall be defined as any and all Oakland 

County elected officials, appointed officials, directors, board members, council 
members, commissioners, authorities, other boards, committees, commissions, 
employees, managers, departments, divisions, volunteers, agents, representatives, 
and/or any such persons' successors or predecessors, agents, employees, attorneys, 
or auditors (whether such persons act or acted in their personal representative or 
official capacities), and/or any persons acting by, through, under, or in concert 
with any of them, excluding the Municipality and/or any Municipality Agents, as 
defined herein. 

 
   



 
 

 3

1.3 “OCDC Personnel” as used in this Contract shall be defined as a specific subset of, 
and included as part of the larger group of County Agents as defined above, and 
shall be further defined as any and all County Agents specifically employed and 
assigned by the County to work in the Office of the Oakland County Drain 
Commissioner as shown in the current County budget and/or personnel records of 
the County.  

 
1.4 "Municipality Agent" or "Municipality Agents", shall be defined to include any 

and all Municipality officers, elected officials, appointed officials, directors, 
board members, council members, authorities, boards, committees, commissions, 
employees, managers, departments, divisions, volunteers, agents, representatives, 
and/or any such persons' successors or predecessors, agents, employees, attorneys, 
or auditors (whether such persons act or acted in their personal, representative, or 
official capacities), and/or any and all persons acting by, through, under, or in 
concert with any of them, except that no County Agent shall be deemed a 
Municipality Agent and conversely, no Municipality Agent shall be deemed a 
County Agent.  

 
1.5 "Claim(s)" shall be defined to include any and all alleged losses, claims, 

complaints, demands for relief or damages, suits, causes of action, proceedings, 
judgments, deficiencies, liability, penalties, litigation costs and expenses, 
including, but not limited to, any reimbursement for reasonable attorney fees, 
witness fees, court costs, investigation and/or litigation expenses, any amounts 
paid in settlement, and/or any other amounts, liabilities or Claim(s) of any kind 
whatsoever which are imposed on, incurred by, or asserted against either the 
County and/or any County Agent, as defined herein, or any Claim(s) for which 
the County and/or any County Agent may become legally and/or contractually 
obligated to pay or defend against, or any other liabilities of any kind whatsoever, 
whether direct, indirect or consequential, whether based upon any alleged 
violation of the constitution (federal or State), any statute, rule, regulation or the 
common law, whether in law or equity, tort, contract, or otherwise, and/or 
whether commenced or threatened and arising out of any alleged breach of any 
duty by the County and/or any County Agent to any third-person, the 
Municipality, including any Municipality Agent under or in connection with this 
Contract or are based on or result in any way from the County’s and/or any 
County Agent’s participation in this   Contract. 

 
1.6 "State" shall be defined as the "State of Michigan,” a sovereign governmental 

entity of the United States, and shall also include within its definition any and all 
departments or agencies of State government including specifically, but not 
limited to, the Michigan Department of Environmental Quality (“MDEQ”). 

 
ARTICLE  II. OAKLAND COUNTY DRAIN COMMISSIONER’S STORM 
WATER MANAGEMENT SERVICES. The Parties agree that the full and complete 
scope of storm water management services shall be as described in attached Exhibit “A” 



 
 

 4

and limited in the following subsections (hereinafter defined and referred to as either 
“OCDC storm water management services” or services). 
 
2.1 PURPOSE OF “SERVICES” The Parties agree that the purpose of any and all 

“OCDC storm water management services” or “Services” to be performed under 
this Contract shall be to assist (e.g., to help, aid, lend support, and/or participate in 
as an auxiliary, to contribute effort toward completion of a goal, etc.) the 
Municipality in the performance of Municipality's official functions, obligations, 
and Municipality's legal responsibilities relating to the Storm Water General 
Permit and fulfillment of the state and federal environmental laws and regulations. 

 
2.2 MANNER COUNTY TO PROVIDE SERVICES.  The Parties agree that any and 

all “OCDC storm water management services" or "Services" to be provided by the 
County for the Municipality under this Contract shall be performed by the 
County's "OCDC Personnel" or consultants as defined herein. 

 
 

2.2.1 OCDC Personnel or consultants shall be employed and assigned by the 
County in such numbers and based on such appropriate qualifications and 
other factors as decided solely by the County. 

 
2.2.2 The Parties agree that the County shall be solely and exclusively 

responsible for furnishing all OCDC Personnel and consultants with all 
job instructions, job descriptions and job specifications and shall in all 
circumstances control, supervise, train or direct all OCDC Personnel in the 
performance of any and all Services under this Contract. 

 
 
2.2.3 Except as otherwise expressly provided for herein, the Parties agree and 

warrant that, at all times and for all purposes relevant to this Contract, the 
County shall remain the sole and exclusive employer of all County Agents 
and OCDC Personnel.  

 
2.2.4 This Contract is neither intended, nor shall it be interpreted, to create, 

change, grant, modify, supplement, supersede, alter, or otherwise affect or 
control, in any manner, form, or at any time, any right, privilege, benefit, 
or any other term or condition of employment, of any kind or nature 
whatsoever, in, upon, or for any County Agent or OCDC Personnel with 
the County, any applicable County employment and/or union contract, 
and/or any County rule(s), regulation(s), hours of work, shift assignment, 
order(s), policy(ies), procedure(s), directive(s), ethical guideline(s), etc., 
which shall, solely and exclusively, govern and control the employment 
relationship between the County and any County Agent or OCDC 
Personnel and/or the conduct and actions of any County Agent or any 
OCDC Personnel.  

 



 
 

 5

2.2.5 The Municipality agrees that except as expressly provided for under the 
terms of this Contract and/or laws of this State, no County Agent or 
OCDC Personnel, while such person is currently and/or actively employed 
or otherwise remains on the payroll of the County as a County Agent shall 
be employed, utilized, or perform any other services, of any kind, directly 
or indirectly, in any manner or capacity, or otherwise be available to 
perform any other work or assignments by or for the Municipality during 
the term of this Contract.  This section shall not prohibit the Municipality 
from employing any person who was a former County Agent but is no 
longer employed in that capacity by the County. 

 
 
2.2.6 Except as otherwise expressly provided by the Contract and/or applicable 

State law, the Parties agree and warrant that neither the County, nor any 
County Agent, nor any OCDC Personnel, by virtue of this Contract or 
otherwise, shall be deemed, considered or claimed to be an employee of 
the Municipality and/or a Municipality Agent. 

 
2.2.7 The Municipality shall not otherwise provide, furnish or assign any OCDC 

Personnel with any job instructions, job descriptions, job specifications, or 
job duties, or in any manner attempt to control, supervise, train, or direct 
any OCDC Personnel in the performance of any OCDC Storm Water 
Management Service duty or obligation under the terms of this Contract. 

 
 

2.3 LIMITS AND EXCLUSIONS ON COUNTY “SERVICES”. Except as otherwise 
expressly provided for within the attached Scope of Services,  neither the County 
nor any County Agents or consultants shall be responsible for assisting or 
providing any other services or assistance to the Municipality or assume any 
additional responsibility for assisting the Municipality in any other way or manner 
with any Municipality obligations under any and all State or Federal laws or 
regulations.  

 
ARTICLE  III.  TERM OF CONTRACT. The Parties agree that the term of this 
Contract shall begin on the effective date of this Contract.  This Contract, unless extended 
by mutual written agreement, shall expire within 90 days written notice by either party or 
written agreement of parties prior to 90 days. Any and all OCDC Storm Water Services 
otherwise provided to the Municipality prior to the effective date of this Contract shall be 
subject to the terms and conditions in this Contract. 
 
ARTICLE  IV. BUDGET AND PAYMENT SCHEDULE. The parties 
acknowledge that this agreement is expected to be funded in part from federal grant 
funding from the United States Environmental Protection Agency (“USEPA”). The 
Municipality's total budget for the services outlined in the attached Scope of Services is 
$6,895.00 for Detention Pond Inventory and $6,241.00 for Streambank Inventory for a 
grand total of $13,136.00.  



 
 

 6

 
The internal distribution of USEPA grant funding by County for the Municipality's 
Detention Pond Inventory shall not exceed $2,568.00; and for the Streambank Inventory 
shall not exceed $2,582.00.  
 
The Municipality shall provide a minimum matching costs:  $4,327.00 for  Detention 
Pond Inventory  and $3,659.00 for Streambank Inventory.   
 
4.1 In consideration of the promises set forth in this Contract, the Municipality agrees 

to pay to the County $7,986.00 for  services  outlined in the scope of services 
attached as Exhibit "A".  This payment shall be made to Oakland County Fiscal 
Services no later than February 23, 2004.  

 
4.1.1 The parties acknowledge that Municipal payment obligations set forth in 

paragraph 4.1 are premised upon the assumption that a total of ten (10) 
municipalities will enter into identical Interlocal Agreements with the County.  If, 
however, one or more Municipalities elect not to participate, the Municipalities 
payment obligations under paragraph 4.1 may increase.  If such an increase 
occurs, the County will provide written notice to the Municipality of the projected 
increase.  The Municipality will have ten days from the date of this notice to 
terminate this agreement due to such increased payment obligations.  The County 
reserves the right to unilaterally cancel this Agreement if it determines, in its sole 
discretion, that the number of participating municipalities is too small to 
economically support the cost of this program. 

 
4.2 If, during the term of this Contract, there are additional services requested of the 

County, the Parties shall negotiate additional fees to be paid by the Municipality.   
 
4.3 The Municipality understands and agrees that the County has no funds other than 

the USEPA grant funds to pay for services under this agreement.  All costs other 
than USEPA funds associated with these services under this agreement will be the 
responsibility of the Municipality. 

 
4.4 The Municipality shall be responsible and pay for any cost for services authorized 

by the Municipality, which exceed the total budget described herein. 
 
4.5 The Municipality further agrees that if there is any amount due and owing to the 

County under this Contract, which is still unpaid at the time the County distributes 
funds to the Municipality from the Delinquent Tax Revolving Fund (DTRF), the 
County shall be entitled to reduce, set-off, and permanently retain any amount due 
to the municipality from Delinquent Tax Revolving Fund (DTRF) by any such 
amount then still due and owing the County pursuant to this Contract. 

 
 
 



 
 

 7

ARTICLE  V.  NO TRANSFER OF MUNICIPALITY LEGAL 
OBLIGATIONS TO COUNTY.    Except as expressly provided for in this Contract, the 
Municipality agrees that this Contract does not, and is not intended to, transfer, delegate, 
or assign to the County, and/or any County Agent or OCDC Personnel any civil or legal 
responsibility, duty, obligation, duty of care, cost, legal obligation, or liability associated 
with any governmental function delegated and/or entrusted to the Municipality under any 
applicable State or Federal laws or regulations. 
 
 
ARTICLE  VI. NO DELEGATION OR DIMINUTION OF ANY 
GOVERNMENTAL AUTHORITY. The Parties reserve to themselves any rights and 
obligations related to the provision of any and all of each Party's respective governmental 
services, authority, responsibilities, and obligations.  Except as expressly provided 
otherwise herein, this Contract does not, and is not intended to, create, diminish, delegate, 
transfer, assign, divest, impair, or contravene any constitutional, statutory, and/or other 
legal right, privilege, power, civil or legal responsibility, obligation, duty of care, 
liability, capacity, immunity, authority or character of office of either the Party to any 
other person or Party.  
 
6.1 The Parties further agree, notwithstanding any other term or condition in this 

Contract, that no provision in this Contract is intended, nor shall it be construed, 
as a waiver of any governmental immunity, as provided by statute or applicable 
court decisions, by either Party, either for that Party and/or any of that Party's 
County or Municipal Agents. 

 
 
ARTICLE  VII. LIABILITY.   The Municipality further agrees that the County 
shall not be liable to the Municipality for any and all Claim(s), except as otherwise 
expressly provided for in this Contract. 
 
7.1 The Parties agree that this Contract does not and is not intended to create or 

include any County warranty, promise, covenant or guaranty, either express or 
implied, of any kind or nature whatsoever in favor of the other Municipality, 
and/or any Municipality Agents, or any other person or entity, or that the 
County’s efforts in the performance of any obligation under this Contract will 
result in satisfying the Municpality’s obligations and requirements under the 
General Storm Water Permit, or obligations under State and Federal law and 
regulations. 

 
ARTICLE  VIII. INDEMNIFICATION.  The Municipality shall not be obligated 
to pay any portion of any court ordered judgment or award to a third party for which a 
court has determined that the County and/or any County Agent was solely negligent or at 
fault.  However, the Municipality agrees to, indemnify, defend and hold harmless the 
County and/or any County ‘Agent from any Claims, loss or damage connected to or 
resulting from any work done by the Municipality and/or any Municipality Agent under 



 
 

 8

this Agreement, unless such loss or damage is caused by the Municipality and/or 
Municipality Agents following direct instructions from County Agents.  
 
ARTICLE  IX.  MUNICIPALITY AGENTS AND COOPERATION WITH 
THE COUNTY.   The Municipality agrees that it shall be solely and exclusively 
responsible, during the term of this Contract, for guaranteeing that all Municipality 
Agents fully cooperate with OCDC Personnel in the performance of all Services under 
this Contract. 
 
Municipality shall use its best efforts to obtain and secure the right of access to all public 
and private property necessary for OCDC personnel or consultants to perform the 
services outlined in the attached Scope of Services.  Municipality shall be responsible for 
all costs or claims associated with securing rights of access to public or private property.  
The Municipality reserves the right to not secure a right of access where the Municipality 
determines, in its sole discretion, that obtaining the right of access is cost prohibitive.  
 
9.1 To the extent necessary in satisfying the conditions of this contract, the 

Municipality shall employ and assign qualified Municipality Agents, as necessary 
and appropriate to provide for any and all of Municipality's legal obligations 
under the General Storm Water Permit and/or applicable State and Federal laws 
and regulations.  Municipality Agents shall be employed and assigned based on 
appropriate qualifications and other factors as decided by the Municipality.  The 
Municipality agrees that it shall be solely responsible for furnishing all 
Municipality Agents with all job instructions, job descriptions and job 
specifications and shall solely control, direct, and supervise all Municipality 
Agents and shall be solely responsible for the means and manner in which 
Municipality's duties or obligations under General Storm Water Permit and/or 
applicable State and Federal laws and regulations are satisfied. 

 
9.2 The Municipality agrees that no County employee, agent, or consultant shall, by 

virtue of this Contract or otherwise, be considered to be an employee of the 
County and/or a County Agent.  This Contract does not grant or confer, and shall 
not be interpreted to grant or confer, upon any Municipal agent or employee the 
status, privilege, right or benefit of County employment or that of a County agent.   

 
ARTICLE  X. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR.  The Parties agree that at all 
times and for all purposes under the terms of this Contract, the County's and/or any and 
all County Agents' legal status and relationship to the Municipality shall be that of an 
Independent Contractor.  Except as expressly provided herein, each Party will be solely 
responsible for the acts of its own employees, Agents, and servants during the term of 
this Contract. No liability, right or benefits arising out of an employer/employee 
relationship, either express or implied, shall arise or accrue to either Party as a result of 
this Contract. 
 
ARTICLE  XI. COUNTY PRIORITIZATION OF COUNTY RESOURCES.  
The Municipality acknowledges and agrees that this Contract does not, and is not 



 
 

 9

intended to, create either any absolute right in favor of the Municipality, or any 
correspondent absolute duty or obligation upon the County, to guarantee that any specific 
number(s) or classification of County Agents will be present on any given day to provide 
County services to the Municipality. 
 
ARTICLE  XII. CANCELLATION OR TERMINATION OF THIS 
CONTRACT.  Except as follows, and notwithstanding any other term or provision in 
any other section of this Contract, either Party, upon a minimum of ninety (90) calendar 
days written notice to the other Party, may cancel and/or completely terminate this 
Contract for any reason, including convenience, without incurring any penalty, expense, 
or liability to the other Party. The effective date for any such termination is to be clearly 
stated in the notice. 
 
12.1 At 5:00 p.m. on the effective date of the cancellation of this Contract all 

Municipality and/or County obligations under this Contract, except those rights 
and obligations expressly surviving cancellation as provided for in this Contract, 
shall end. 

 
12.2 The Municipality agrees that any and all Municipality obligations, including, but 

not limited to, any and all indemnification and hold harmless promises, waivers of 
liability, record-keeping requirements, any Municipality payment obligations to 
the County, and/or any other related obligations provided for in this Contract with 
regard to any acts, occurrences, events, transactions, or Claim(s) either occurring 
or having their basis in any events or transactions that occurred before the 
cancellation or completion of this Contract, shall survive the cancellation or 
completion of this Contract. 

 
ARTICLE  XIII. EFFECTIVE DATE, CONTRACT APPROVAL, AND 
AMENDMENT.  The Parties agree that this Contract, and/or any subsequent 
amendments thereto, shall not become effective prior to the approval by concurrent 
resolutions of both the Oakland County Board of Commissioners and the Council for the 
City of Troy.  The approval and terms of this Contract, and/or any possible subsequent 
amendments thereto, shall be entered in the official minutes and proceedings of both the 
Oakland County Board of Commissioners and the Council for the City of Troy and shall 
also be filed with the office of the Clerk of the County and the Clerk for the City of Troy. 
 
ARTICLE  XIV. COMPLIANCE WITH "URBAN COOPERATION ACT OF 
1967". Pursuant to section 10(4) of the Urban Cooperation Act of 1967, as amended, 
being MCL 124.510(4), the Parties agree that this Contract, and/or any possible 
subsequent amendments, shall be filed with the Michigan Secretary of State and this 
Contract, and/or any possible subsequent amendments, shall not become effective prior to 
this required filing with the Secretary of State. 
 

 
ARTICLE  XV.  GOVERNING LAW. This Contract is made and entered into in 
the State of Michigan and shall in all respects be interpreted, enforced and governed 



 
 

 10 

under the laws of the State of Michigan.  The language of all parts of this Contract is 
intended to and, in all cases, shall be construed as a whole according to its fair meaning, 
and not construed strictly for or against any party.  As used in this Contract, the singular 
or plural number, possessive or non-possessive shall be deemed to include the other 
whenever the contest so suggests or requires. 
 
ARTICLE  XVI. CAPTIONS.  The section headings or titles and/or all section 
numbers contained in this Contract are intended for the convenience of the reader and not 
intended to have any substantive meaning and are not to be interpreted as part of this 
Contract. 
 
ARTICLE  XVII. NOTICES.  Except as otherwise expressly provided for herein, 
any and all correspondence, invoices, and/or any other written notices required, permitted 
or provided for under this Contract to be delivered to either Party shall be sent to that 
Party by first class mail.  All such written notices, including any notice canceling or 
terminating this Contract as provided for herein, shall be sent to the other Party's 
signatory to this Contract, or that signatory's successor in office, at the addresses shown 
in this Contract.  All correspondence or written notices shall be considered delivered to a 
Party as of the date that such notice is deposited with sufficient postage with the U.S. 
Postal Service. 
  
ARTICLE  XVIII. ENTIRE CONTRACT.  This Contract sets forth the entire 
agreement between the County and the Municipality and fully supersedes any and all 
prior agreements or understandings between them in any way related to the subject matter 
hereof.  It is further understood and agreed that the terms and conditions herein are 
contractual and are not a mere recital and that there are no other agreements, 
understandings, contracts, or representations between the County and the Municipality in 
any way related to the subject matter hereof, except as expressly stated herein.  This 
Contract shall not be changed or supplemented orally and may be amended only as 
otherwise provided herein. 



 
 

 11 

 FOR AND IN CONSIDERATION of the mutual assurances, promises, 
acknowledgments, warrants, representations, and agreements set forth in this Contract, 
and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and adequacy of which is 
hereby acknowledged, the undersigned hereby execute this Contract on behalf of the 
Parties, and by doing so legally obligate and bind the Parties to the terms and conditions 
of this Contract. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, ______________________,_________________of 
the City of Troy, hereby acknowledges that he has been authorized by a resolution of the 
Council  for the City of Troy, a certified copy of which is attached, to execute this 
Contract on behalf of the Municipality and hereby accepts and binds the Municipality to 
the terms and conditions of this Contract. 
 
EXECUTED: __________________________  DATE:  _______________ 
 
  __________________________ 
 
 
WITNESSED: __________________________  DATE: _______________ 
 ____________________, Clerk 
  City of Troy  
 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, _________________________, Chairperson, 
Oakland County Board of Commissioners, hereby acknowledges that he has been 
authorized by a resolution of the Oakland County Board of Commissioners, a certified 
copy of which is attached, to execute this Contract on behalf of the Oakland County, and 
hereby accepts and binds the Oakland County to the terms and conditions of this 
Contract. 
 
 
 
EXECUTED: __________________________  DATE:_______________ 

__________________________  
 Chairperson, Oakland County 

Board of Commissioners 
 
 
 
WITNESSED: __________________________  DATE: _______________  
  G. William Caddell,  

County of Oakland Clerk/Register of Deeds  
 
 
 



EXHIBIT A 
 
 
 

SCOPE 
 

ROUGE RIVER MAIN 1-2 SUBWATERSHED 
INVENTORY STUDIES PROJECT 

 
 
 
 
 

OAKLAND COUNTY, MICHIGAN 
 
 
 
 

PREPARED BY: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THE OFFICE OF THE OAKLAND COUNTY DRAIN COMMISSIONER 
JOHN P. McCULLOCH, DRAIN COMMISSIONER 

BUILDING 95 WEST 
ONE PUBLIC WORKS DRIVE 

WATERFORD, MICHIGAN 48328-1907 
 

JANUARY 6, 2004 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



H:\agenda\OCDC Exhibit A10604.doc 
 

Page 2 of 6 

Background 
 
Stormwater Detention Pond Study 

 
Oakland County communities have required that most new developments retain 
stormwater on-site.  This requirement spawned the building of detention ponds 
throughout the Rouge River Watershed.  These basins effectively reduce peak flooding 
and reduce pollutant loads from stormwater runoff.  However, opportunities exist to 
improve the performance of constructed stormwater detention basins by improving 
pollutant removal efficiencies and reducing the initial downstream flow. 

 
A well-designed detention pond provides three main functions:  

 
1. Prevention of downstream flooding by detaining and slowly releasing captured 

runoff, 
2. Recharge ground water, and  
3. Physical, chemical and biological interactions, which improve the quality of water of 

detained water before it is discharged into streams, rivers and lakes. 
 
The purpose of this project is to identify, prioritize, and make recommendations for 
detention pond maintenance and design improvements of existing detention facilities in 
the Main 1-2 Subwatershed.  The goal of these improvements is to minimize flow 
variability and to increase detention pond pollutant removal efficiency. 

 
The total project cost for all communities is estimated at $145,920.  This includes 
$121,600 for consulting services, $12,160 for OCDC project administration, and 
$12,160 project contingency.  A USEPA grant of $54,350 has been received as part of 
the Rouge River National Wet Weather Demonstration Project.  The communities 
project cost will be determined based on the number of streambank miles and detention 
ponds evaluated.  The Oakland County Drain Commissioner’s Office, in cooperation 
with the following communities, will implement this project: the Cities of Southfield, 
Rochester Hills, and Troy; the Townships of West Bloomfield and Bloomfield; the 
Villages of Bingham Farms and Beverly Hills, and the County of Oakland. 

 
Main 1-2 Streambank Inventory Study 

 
The Rouge River Watershed is under pressure from urbanization, making it vulnerable 
to heavy loading of non-point source pollutants.  One such pollutant is excessive 
sediment.  Although sediment loading is a natural part of a river system, excessive 
loading can degrade fish and wildlife habitat, destroy wetlands, and reduce the 
recreational and aesthetic appeal of the river system.  In addition, substances such as 
oils, salts, and nutrients can enter the system attached to sediment particles causing 
eutrophication and a general decrease in water quality in hydraulically connected lakes 
and ponds. 

 



H:\agenda\OCDC Exhibit A10604.doc 
 

Page 3 of 6 

The purpose of this project is to identify and prioritize stream bank erosion sites in the 
Rouge Main 1-2 Subwatershed (excluding the Franklin Branch) and to make 
recommendations that will incorporate best management practices to decrease 
sediment loading to the river. See attached map 

 
The total project cost is estimated at $120,000.  This includes $100,000 for consulting 
services, $10,000 for OCDC project administration, and $10,000 project contingency.  A 
USEPA grant of $49,645 has been received as part of the Rouge River National Wet 
Weather Demonstration Project.  The Oakland County Drain Commissioner’s Office in 
cooperation with the Cities of Southfield, Farmington Hills, Troy, Birmingham, 
Bloomfield Hills, and the Townships of West Bloomfield and Bloomfield, and the Villages 
of Bingham Farms and Beverly Hills will implement this project. 

 
Scope of Services 
 
Oakland County Drain Commissioner’s (OCDC) Office 
OCDC will provide overall grant administration services including project billing, project 
meeting attendance, coordination with consultant and communities, financial 
accounting, coordination with Wayne County and Interagency Agreement 
administration. 
 
Municipality 
Each municipality will participate and coordinate with the consultant and OCDC to allow 
the consultant to complete the project as outlined in the following sections.  This 
includes providing verbal and written information, as requested by the consultant. 
 
Consultant 
The consultant will complete the following items as outlined in the OCDC Standard 
Professional Services Agreement. 
 
Stormwater Detention Pond Study 
The consultant will communicate with the communities to determine the existing 
detention facilities in the Subwatershed.  The estimated number of ponds in all 
participating communities is about 381.  The inventory will consist of the following, or 
related items as agreed-upon between the community and consultant that meet the 
objectives of the grant. 
 
§ Compile existing data including location maps, copies of original design drawings, 

drainage area, 
§ Verification of owner/responsible party for maintenance, 
§ Verify location and obtain GPS coordinates for each facility, 
§ The local unit of government’s records relative to drainage, facility construction and 

maintenance and any other records available for the facility will be collected. 
 



H:\agenda\OCDC Exhibit A10604.doc 
 

Page 4 of 6 

The collected data will be compiled in an electronic database that includes a location 
map of all existing facilities and will be accessible using ArcView.  The database will be 
provided for all partnering communities and the Oakland County Drain Office. 
 
Assessment: 
An assessment of each the existing detention facilities will be performed, consisting of 
the following: 
§ A field assessment to determine the physical and hydraulic characteristics of each 

facility including detention volume, outlet flow control, quantity and size of the inlet 
and outlet structures, permanent pool depth; and stormwater quality enhancement 
capabilities, 

§ A review of design plans, maintenance and other records for the facility to determine 
if it was built and is functioning as designed, 

§ Verification of the type of development in the drainage area, 
§ Characteristics relating to the existing condition of each facility including the 

presence of slope erosion, degree of sediment build-up, existing vegetation and 
condition of the infrastructure, 

§ Age and years in service. 
 
All collected data will be added to the previously created database and distributed to the 
Oakland County Drain Office.  Each community will receive only the data that pertains 
to facilities within their jurisdictional boundaries. 
 
Evaluation & Ranking:   
The data collected for each facility during the Inventory and Assessment will be 
evaluated.  The evaluation will consider all of the collected data, and identify needed 
improvements and maintenance at each facility.  In addition, recommendations will be 
made for retrofitting measures that would improve outlet water quality, function, and 
ground water recharge. 
 
The findings and recommendations from the evaluation will be added to the previously 
created database and distributed to the Oakland County Drain Office and the 
communities.  Each community will receive only the data that pertains to facilities within 
their jurisdictional boundaries. 
 
Final Report: 
A summary of field findings and the accompanying recommendations, including 
construction cost estimates, will be included in a comprehensive report.  The report and 
database will be arranged so that each community can easily access the information 
that applies to the detention facilities within their jurisdictional boundaries. 



H:\agenda\OCDC Exhibit A10604.doc 
 

Page 5 of 6 

Main 1-2 Streambank Inventory Study 
Streambank Inventory:   
An inventory of the streambanks will be performed for the Rouge Main 1-2 
Subwatershed, including all tributaries and open county drains, but excluding the 
Franklin Branch and it’s tributaries (which are covered under another project). The 
consultant will communicate with the communities to determine which branches and  
tributaries of the approximately 100 miles (all communities) of river are sizable enough 
to be inventoried.  The inventory will be performed using the existing Michigan 
Department of Environmental Quality (MDEQ) approved inventories for Mitchell Creek, 
Au Sable River and Clinton River Watersheds as models.  
 
Physical data and photographs will be collected at each erosion site, including the 
following, or related items as agreed-upon between the community and consultant that 
meet the objectives of the grant: 
 
§ Location identified by global positioning system, 
§ Complete site photographs, 
§ Bank condition, 
§ Apparent cause of erosion, 
§ Amount of erosion, length & width, amount of sediment in river 
§ Slope ratio, 
§ River conditions, 
§ Soil type & texture 
 
The collected data will be compiled in an electronic database that includes a location 
map of all inventory sites and will be accessible using ArcView.  The database will be 
provided for all partnering communities and the Oakland County Drain Office. 
 
Hydraulic/Hydrologic Study:   
An assessment of the hydraulic/hydrologic characteristics of the Rouge Main 1-2 
drainage area will be performed using HEC-2, HEC-RAS or similar models taken from 
existing FEMA flood insurance studies.  The study will include reviewing 2, 10, 50 and 
100-year storm flow velocity and river stages.  The cross-sections that are considered in 
the study will be located on a watershed map.  The results of the study will be 
summarized for inclusion in the final report, and will be used to determine appropriate 
site stabilization techniques.  For areas without FEMA studies, simple flow estimates 
and calculations will be used. 
 
Site Prioritization:  
Erosion sites identified in the inventory will be scored and ranked into minor, moderate 
and severe categories.  The severity index that will be used was developed for the 
Northwest Michigan Streambank Erosion Inventory and has been used extensively by 
river restoration committees elsewhere in Michigan as a basis to prioritize sites for 
restoration work.  Based on the ranking, an overall prioritized list will be created.  A 
prioritized list will also be created, specific to each community. 
 



H:\agenda\OCDC Exhibit A10604.doc 
 

Page 6 of 6 

Conceptual Drawings & Cost Estimates:  
Conceptual site drawings will be prepared for each severely ranked site.  The site 
drawings will include site characteristics and the recommended Best Management 
Practices (BMP) necessary for site stabilization.  
 
Accompanying cost estimates will be developed for each severely ranked site.  These 
cost estimates will consider the types of BMPs to be implemented, the accessibility of 
the site, the size of the site, engineering design and construction oversight.  A cost 
summary table will be developed for the entire subwatershed, as well as for each 
community. 
 
Final report:   
A summary of the field investigations, cost estimates, site drawings and the hydrologic 
study will then be included in one report.  The report will be arranged so that information 
is easily accessible by each separate community. 









TO: Mayor and Members of Council 
 

FROM: John Szerlag, City Manager 
Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
Gary Shripka, Assistant City Manager for Services 
Steve Vandette, City Engineer 
Mark Miller, Planning Director 
Susan M. Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
 

DATE: January 28, 2004 
 

  
  

SUBJECT: Old Troy, L.L.C. v. City of Troy, et. al. 
 

 
 
 Under state statute, any modification to a plat requires the initiation of a 
lawsuit, where all neighboring property owners within a 300- foot radius are named 
as defendants.  In addition, the City, State, and utility companies are also required 
defendants.  Old Troy, L.L.C. has initiated such a complaint, seeking vacation of a six 
(6) foot public utility easement on the Torpey Acres plat and the placement of that 
easement at a different location.  Previously, Old Troy LLC filed similar complaints, 
seeking modification of other elements of the plat, which have been approved.   

 The State of Michigan has authorized the entry of the proposed attached 
Consent Judgment, which terminates the utility easement on the current plat.  The 
Consent Judgment also requires that an amended plat include a ten (10) foot private 
easement for public utilities on the same parcel.  Through our intervention, we have 
preserved the right of the City to approve the amended plat prior to approval by the 
Michigan Department of Consumer and Industry Services, Office of Land Survey and 
Remonumentation.  Due to past errors in this process, the preservation of this right 
provides one additional safeguard to the process.    

 Mark W. Sadecki, Esq., the attorney for Old Troy, L.L.C, represents that all 
property owners within 300 feet of the property have been served with the Complaint.  
Our review shows that none of the property owners have appeared or filed an 
Answer to the Complaint.  In addition, there have been no telephone calls or 
correspondence from any of the neighbors objecting to the requested relief.  Default 
Judgments have been entered against all residential defendants. A copy of the 
informational letter sent by Mr. Sadecki is attached for your review.   

We are requesting approval of the attached Consent Judgment, and 
authorization to execute the Consent Judgment on behalf of the City of Troy. 

 If you have questions concerning the above, please let us know.  

 

  

  

City of Troy
F-08



















 

 

CIVIL SERVICE COMMISSION (ACT 78) 
MINUTES - Final 

Thursday, September 25, 2003 - 7:30 AM 
 
A Meeting of the Civil Service Commission (Act 78) was held Thursday, September 25, 2003, 
at Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Road in the Lower Level Conference Room. Chairman 
McGinnis called the meeting to order at 7:34 AM. 
 
ROLL CALL 
   PRESENT:  Chairman Donald E. McGinnis, Jr.   
     Commissioner Patrick Daugherty 
     Commissioner Norman (Don) Michaelson 
     Commissioner David Cannon 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Lori Bluhm - City Attorney, Peggy Clifton - Human Resources 

Director, Police Chief Charles Craft, Captain Dane Slater, Officer 
Andrew Breidenich - TPOA President, Barbara A. Holmes - 
Deputy City Clerk, Sharalyn Arft - Human Resources Specialist, 
Jeanette Menig - Human Resources Specialist  

 
Chair McGinnis acknowledged Troy City Council’s September 22, 2003 reinstatement of 
Commissioner Cannon’s term.  On behalf of the Civil Service Commission, Chair McGinnis 
extended his appreciation to Mr. Don Michaelson for his contribution to the Commission 
during Commissioner Cannon’s military leave of absence. 
 
Approval of Minutes of January 30, 2003: 
 
Resolution #CSC-2003-09-002 
Moved by Daugherty 
Seconded by Cannon 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the meeting of January 30, 2003 be APPROVED as 
presented. 
 
Yes: All-3 
 
Petitions and Communications: None 

 
New Business:  
 
1 Approval of Job Qualifications, Posting and Test Battery for Police Sergeant 

and Lieutenant 
 
Peggy Clifton informed the Commission that the City was requesting approval of the 
recruitment process for police officer and the promotional process for Police Sergeant and 
Police Lieutenant. Ms. Clifton indicated that the recommended process is the same as was 
utilized in the last recruitment and promotional cycle. She further informed the Commission 
that the Michigan Municipal League (MML) endorses EMPCO, Inc as a police department 

City of Troy
G-01



Civil Service Commission (Act 78) – Minutes – Final September 25, 2003 
 

2 

promotional and entry level testing service. Ms. Clifton also confirmed that EMPCO, Inc. 
adheres to the regulations outlined in Act 78. 
Officer Andy Breidenich raised a concern regarding a change made to the last contract 
agreement related to the “Service Ratings” for Police Sergeant. According to a “Letter of 
Understanding” he received after the last contract was ratified, he understood that the 10% 
weight under “Service Ratings” had been reduced. 
 
There was consensus of the Commission to table the Approval of Qualifications, Posting and 
Test Battery for Police Sergeant and Lieutenant in order to provide Human Resources with 
the opportunity to research the concern raised by Officer Breidenich. 
 
2 Approval of Job Qualifications, Posting and Test Battery for Recruitment of 

Police Officers 
 
Resolution #CSC-2003-09-003 
Moved by Cannon 
Seconded by Daugherty 
 
RESOLVED, That the Civil Service Commission (Act 78) hereby APPROVES the job 
qualifications, the posting and the test battery for the recruitment of Police Officers as 
PRESENTED. 
 
Yes: All-3 
 
1 Approval of Job Qualifications, Posting and Test Battery for Police Sergeant 

and Lieutenant (Con’t) 
 
After confirmation, the Human Resources Department corrected the Police Sergeant posting 
reflecting an increase in the “Assessment Center” from a weight of 30% to 35% and a 
reduction in the “Service Ratings” from a weight of 10% to 5%. 
 
Officer Breidenich agreed that the Commission should move forward with the approval of the 
posting as corrected. 
 
Resolution #CSC-2003-09-004 
Moved by McGinnis 
Seconded by Cannon 
 
RESOLVED, That the Civil Service Commission (Act 78) hereby APPROVES the job 
qualifications as PRESENTED, the posting as CORRECTED pursuant to the contract, and the 
test battery as PRESENTED for the recruitment of Police Sergeants. 
 
Yes: All-3 
 
Resolution #CSC-2003-09-005 
Moved by McGinnis 
Seconded by Daugherty 
 



Civil Service Commission (Act 78) – Minutes – Final September 25, 2003 
 

3 

RESOLVED, That the Civil Service Commission (Act 78) hereby APPROVES the job 
qualifications, the posting, and the test battery for the recruitment of Police Lieutenants as 
PRESENTED. 
 
Yes: All-3 
 
Resolution #CSC-2003-09-006 
Moved by Cannon 
Seconded by Daugherty 
 
RESOLVED, That the Civil Service Commission (Act 78) hereby APPROVES the selection of 
EMPCO, Inc. to provide police lieutenant and sergeant promotional testing, and entry level 
police officer testing. 
 
Yes: All-3 
 
Old Business: None 
 
Adjournment:  The meeting was adjourned at 7:44 AM. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Donald E. McGinnis, Jr., Chairman  Barbara A. Holmes, CMC - Deputy City Clerk 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL DECEMBER 2, 2003 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chairman Littman at 7:30 p.m. on December 2, 2003, in the Council Board Room of the 
Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: 
Gary Chamberlain 
Dennis A. Kramer 
Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz 
Walter Storrs 
Thomas Strat 
Mark J. Vleck 
David T. Waller 
Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Amalfi Parker, Student Representative (arrived 7:45 p.m.) 
Kathy Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
Allan Motzny introduced himself.  The Commission welcomed him. 
 

2. MINUTES 
 
October 28, 2003 Planning Commission Joint Meeting with City Council 
 
Mr. Waller questioned the wording of bullet #5 (i.e., authorization) listed under the 
Options for the Issue Maintain Culture of Professionalism on page 4.   
 
A brief discussion followed with respect to the Planning Commission’s intent of the 
option.  It was the consensus of the Commission to confirm (1) the wording and its 
designation on the board at the meeting, and (2) the City Council’s approval of the 
minutes as published.  
 
Resolution # PC-2003-12-058 
Moved by:  Littman 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, To table the October 28, 2003 Joint City Council/Planning 
Commission Meeting minutes to the December 9, 2003 Regular Meeting. 
 
Yes: Littman, Kramer, Schultz, Storrs, Strat, Vleck, Waller, Wright 
No: None 
Abstain: Chamberlain 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

City of Troy
G-01



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL DECEMBER 2, 2003 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

November 4, 2003 Special/Study Meeting 
 
Mr. Waller requested that on Page 7, Item 14, Selection of Representatives to the 
Tri-Party Interest Based Bargaining Sub-committee, be inclusive of his comments 
as follows: 
 

“Mr. Waller stated that some thought should be put into how the sub-
committee should be organized and its processes and its bylaws should be 
documented; i.e., committee name, legal opinion.“ 

 
Resolution # PC-2003-12-059 
Moved by:  Schultz 
Seconded by: Vleck 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the November 4, 2003 Special/Study Meeting minutes as 
corrected. 
 
Yes: Kramer, Schultz, Storrs, Strat, Vleck, Waller 
No: None 
Abstain: Chamberlain, Littman, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
November 11, 2003 Regular Meeting 
 
Mr. Storrs requested the following revisions. 
 
Page 6, Item 4, Proposed Rezoning (Z-597D), replace paragraph 6 with the 
following:   
 

“Mr. Storrs indicated to the petitioner that he was personally aware of 
residents coming forward and requesting additional condominiums in Troy so 
that empty nesters could remain in Troy close to family and not have to be 
burdened with external maintenance.  He then asked the petitioner what 
rationale he had that said the area needed additional B-2 zoning.  The 
petitioner did not have a response.” 

 
Page 15, Item 10, Site Plan Review (SP 216-B) for Maggiano’s Restaurant, insert 
the following paragraph as discussion on the final motion:   
 

“Mr. Storrs asked the petitioner if the motion on the floor would fulfill his 
needs.  The petitioner responded affirmatively.” 

 
Resolution # PC-2003-12-060 
Moved by:  Storrs 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the November 11, 2003 Regular Meeting minutes as 
corrected. 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL DECEMBER 2, 2003 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

Yes: Littman, Kramer, Schultz, Storrs, Strat, Vleck, Waller 
No: None 
Abstain: Chamberlain, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

4. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 
 
Mr. Miller reported on the following items. 
 
• CN Railroad Pedestrian Crossing Study – At their December 1, 2003 meeting, 

City Council authorized Hubbell, Roth & Clark to conduct a feasibility study with 
respect to providing an overpass or underpass for pedestrian access to the 
proposed train station on the west side of the railroad tracks near the southwest 
corner of Maple and Coolidge (Mid-Town Square). 

 
The Commission discussed the City of Birmingham’s “rail district”, the type of 
pedestrian access, the area’s walkability, the parking deck referenced at the 
Maple Road bus tour, grant possibilities, and other considerations related to the 
railroad pedestrian crossing.  Mr. Miller said he would attempt to obtain more 
information on this matter and also confirm the acreage of land involved.   

 
• Future Planning Commission Special/Study Meeting – Mr. Miller will schedule 

Real Estate & Development Director Doug Smith to provide an updated 
development report.   

 
• January 6, 2003 Special/Study Session – Michelle Hodges, President, Chamber 

of Commerce, is scheduled to attend the January 6, 2003 Special/Study Meeting 
to present the Troy Chamber of Commerce’s position on the Civic Center 
Development and Regional Conference Facility. 

 
• Lord & Taylor Site Plan at Oakland Mall (SP 38-E) – The revised site plan was 

provided for the Commission’s review.  The petitioner, per the conditions of site 
plan approval, redesigned the parking lot, provided sidewalks per approval of the 
City Engineer, and is proceeding with a traffic study.  Mr. Miller will confirm with 
the Traffic Engineer the parameters of the traffic study and provide details and 
copies of the traffic study to the Planning Commission.   

 
• Height Limits for Amateur Radio Antennas (ZOTA 180) – City Council has 

directed the City Management to draft a Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment for 
the December 15, 2003 Regular City Council Meeting that would permit amateur 
radio antenna support structures up to a height of 75 feet.  Four conditions to 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL DECEMBER 2, 2003 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

City Council’s resolution were discussed with respect to the requirement of 
bonds for licensed radio operators, the determination of setbacks, and the 
applicability to accessory and/or main structures.   

 
• Parking Requirements (ZOTA 198) – At their November 24, 2003 Regular 

Meeting, City Council approved zoning text amendments to the parking 
requirements.  The sharing of joint parking and land banking amendments were 
approved, as recommended by the Planning Commission.  Mr. Miller highlighted 
the changes adopted by City Council.  A public hearing notification was mailed 
to all non-residential property owners, apartments and condominiums.  The 
Planning Department is available to review parking requirements further (i.e., 
guest parking, parking for larger uses, etc.) should the Commission feel it is 
appropriate.   

 
• Sterling Corporate Center (PUD #002) – The PUD received preliminary approval 

by City Council at their November 24, 2003 meeting.  Chairman Littman 
commended the Commission for a job well done.  

 
• Michigan Society of Planning 2004 Annual Conference – Mr. Miller asked that 

any Planning Commissioner who has an interest in a panel presentation on 
Planned Unit Developments at the next annual MSP conference to contact him. 

 
• Wyngate Subdivision – Wyngate Subdivision received tentative preliminary plat 

approval by City Council at their November 24, 2003 meeting.   
 
• Michigan Economic Development Corporation (MEDC) – City Manager John 

Szerlag and State Senator Shirley Johnson have arranged to meet with the 
MEDC to discuss the funding sources for the conference center.   

 
• Commercial Vehicles (M-1 Zoning District) – At their December 1, 2003 meeting, 

City Council directed City Management and the Planning Commission to draft a 
text amendment allowing up to 500 outside storage spaces in M-1 districts.  Mr. 
Miller said City Council is trying to (1) cut down their time on commercial appeals 
and (2) make it easier for residents to store commercial vehicles. 

 
The Commission discussed at length the current available space, use of 
commercial vehicle storage by non-residents, disbursement of locations 
throughout the City, parking necessity at the storage locations, and fencing and 
security of the area.   
 

• Tri-Party Interest Based Committee – The consensus of the Commission is to 
postpone this matter until a legal opinion is rendered by the City Attorney with 
respect to the creation of sub-committees by City Council.  Mr. Motzny will check 
on the status of the legal opinion.   

 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL DECEMBER 2, 2003 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

• Planning Commission Representation at City Council Public Hearings – City 
Council public hearings will be placed on Planning Commission agendas, at 
which time the Commission can represent their opinion.   

 
• Isso Rezoning Request for a Gas Station (Z-686) located on the northwest 

corner of Wattles and Dequindre Roads – Mr. Motzny announced the lawsuit on 
this matter has been dismissed with prejudice.   

 
 

5. BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS REPORT 
 
Mr. Kramer reported there were no significant matters heard at the November 18, 
2003 meeting of the Board of Zoning Appeals.   
 
 

6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 
 
Mr. Miller reported on the following items discussed at the November 19, 2003 
Downtown Development Authority meeting. 
 
• Big Beaver Road Landscaping and Grading  – The DDA feels strongly that all 

landscaping along the Big Beaver Road corridor should be top-notch 
(“Disneyland-like”).  The Planning Commission discussed briefly the selection 
process of landscape contractors.  The Planning Department will provide to Mr. 
Strat a map designating the DDA boundary.   

 
• PUD Sterling Corporate Center – A presentation of the Sterling Corporate 

Center PUD was given to the DDA by Mr. Miller.  
 
• Urban Design along Big Beaver Road – The DDA is requesting City 

Management to come forward with an urban design for the Big Beaver Road 
corridor in an effort to formalize future urban changes along Big Beaver Road 
and to create a landscaping concept.   

 
 

Ho, Ho, Ho  –  An unexpected visit was made by Kris Kringle of the North Pole.  Mr. 
Kringle wished everyone a very merry holiday.  

 
 
• Detroit Crains Article – The October 17, 2003 article referencing Oakland County 

funding support for projects was distributed. 
 
• Public Comments – Public comment made by Mr. Chamberlain referenced (1) 

evergreens and trees that are overgrown after 10 years are a danger and hazard 
to pedestrian walkways; (2) gateway signage; and (3) the DDA’s active 
participation in the review and potential revamping of the PUD ordinance 
language.     

 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL DECEMBER 2, 2003 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

• Ford Motor Company Conference and Event Center in Dearborn – The City 
Council accepted the invitation from DDA Chairman to visit the Ford Motor 
Company Conference Center in June 2004. 

 
 
7. SUB-COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 
CR-1 
After a final review of the draft language by committee members, the final proposed 
text ordinance language will be provided for the January 6, 2003 Special/Study 
Meeting.  Mr. Miller said the Legal Department has provided its comments and he 
anticipates getting comments from City management prior to going to public 
hearing.   
 
Tree Preservation / Landscaping / Walls 
Mr. Savidant said there is nothing new to report. 
 
Gateway / Beautification 
Mr. Savidant displayed the Gateway Concepts A and B, designed by a landscape 
architect from Professional Engineers Associates, that were forwarded to the Parks 
& Recreation Director for review and comments.  Mr. Savidant reported that the 
Parks & Recreation Director, Carol Anderson, is not in favor of either concept.  Ms. 
Anderson also questioned the financing aspect of providing gateway signage for the 
City.  Mr. Savidant clarified that the gateway signage is a part of the approval 
process of two proposed Planned Unit Development projects and financing the 
signage should not be a consideration.   
 
Discussion followed with respect to the actual designs and the responsibility of final 
approval of the design.   
 
Mr. Strat commented that the design concepts are amateurish with no related 
theme to the City.  He said the design concepts are not representative of the “City of 
Tomorrow Today”.   
 
Resolution # PC-2003-12-061 
Moved by:  Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Waller 
 
RESOLVED, To forward Gateway Concepts A and B to the City Council for review 
at its December 15, 2003 Regular Meeting, with the explanation that the design 
comprises three parts (primary, secondary and tertiary) for all entrances of the City 
of Troy, that the gateway signage is to be completed in the future when funds 
become available from various sources, and that the timing for approval of the 
gateway signage is of extreme importance because of the impending Planned Unit 
Development projects and the Downtown Development Authority streetscape plan.   
 
Yes: Chamberlain, Kramer, Littman, Storrs, Waller 
No: Schultz, Strat, Vleck, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL DECEMBER 2, 2003 
  
 
 

 - 7 - 
 

Mr. Wright said both designs are horrible. 
 
Mr. Schultz agreed and said he could not support sending the designs to anyone. 
 
Mr. Strat suggested that the design could have been presented to local universities 
as a competition.   
 
Mr. Vleck said he would have preferred to have seen the designs sooner so more 
time could have been given to coming up with an appropriate design.   
 
Ms. Parker suggested that the City of Troy Library might be a good resource for 
design concepts.   
 
Special Use 
Mr. Chamberlain questioned the status of the typing to be provided by the Planning 
Department.   
 
Mr. Miller said the workload of the Planning Department has been extremely high 
due to six agenda deadlines per month.  The Planning Department will handle the 
typing as time becomes available.   
 
Mr. Savidant stated for the record that no work has been buried, nor has he been 
instructed to bury any work.   
 
Indoor Commercial Recreation 
Chairman Littman requested the Planning Department to eliminate the Indoor 
Commercial Recreation.  Mr. Miller said he believed the item should remain on the 
agenda because the petitioner’s request is pending.   
 
 

8. BACK TO THE FUTURE VIDEO 
 
The video Back to the Future was viewed. 
 
Discussion and comments followed with respect to new urban planning. 
 
 

9. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 199) – Article 03.40.00 Site 
Plan Approval 
 
Mr. Miller reported City Council adopted a resolution that referred the matter back to 
the Planning Commission for further review.  He indicated that City Council gave no 
specific direction, but noted that a lot of discussion was on snow removal.   
 
Mr. Miller addressed three minor revisions recommended by City Management.   
 
1. City Management recommends that a wetlands determination be submitted 

only when the Natural Features Map indicates the possibility of wetlands, and 
further that the authority be given to the Planning Director to waive the 
wetlands determination requirement.    



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL DECEMBER 2, 2003 
  
 
 

 - 8 - 
 

The Commission was in concurrence with the recommendation. 
 

2. City Management recommends eliminating the requirements of submitting floor 
plans, building elevations and grading plans with the Preliminary Site Plan 
application.   

 
It was the consensus of the Commission that preliminary floor plans, 
preliminary building elevations and proposed grading plans should be a 
requirement for Preliminary Site Plan application.   

 
3. City Management recommends that the methods used to remove snow and 

the location of on-site snow storage areas should not be required to be shown 
on the site plan.   

 
The Commission agreed to eliminate snow removal from site plan approval 
requirements because snow removal is now incorporated in off-street parking 
requirements.   

 
Mr. Motzny confirmed that a public hearing would not be necessary for the language 
revisions agreed to this evening because the revisions were not substantial.  
 
Chairman Littman requested the Planning Department to prepare the revised 
language for the January meeting. 
 
 

10. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 182) – Article 12.00.00 and 
30.10.08 R-1T One Family Cluster 
 
Mr. Miller reported City Council adopted a resolution that referred the matter back to 
the Planning Commission for further review of sidewalks, safety walks and the snow 
removal plan.   
 
Mr. Miller addressed three minor revisions recommended by City Management.   
 
1. City Management recommends changing the verbiage of Section 12.50.05 to 

require sidewalk and safety path connections wherever feasible, and 
requested clarification that “planned safety paths” are delineated on the City of 
Troy Transportation Plan. 

 
 Mr. Miller said the City Council questioned the impact of safety paths and had 

a concern with the public utilizing private walks. 
 

The Commission concurred that the verbiage should be revised to read:  
“pedestrian interconnectivity shall be provided.” 

 
2. City Management recommends eliminating Section 12.50.07 that requires the 

preparation of a Snow Removal Plan.   
 
 The Commission agreed to eliminate Section 12.50.07, Snow Removal Plan. 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL DECEMBER 2, 2003 
  
 
 

 - 9 - 
 

3. City Management recommends eliminating Section 12.50.08 that lists guest 
parking requirements for R-1T developments. 

 
 The Commission concurred to eliminate Section 12.50.08.   
 

4. City Management recommends amending Section 12.50.09 to eliminate the 
possibility of interconnectivity between an internal private street in an R-1T 
development with an internal public street in an adjacent neighborhood, and 
further eliminate the requirement of common access drive for abutting 
developments.   

 
 It was the consensus of the Commission that Section 12.50.09 should remain 

as originally proposed.   
 
 

11. REVIEW OF DECEMBER 9, 2003 REGULAR MEETING  
 
Items briefly discussed were: 
 
• Proposed Crestwood Site Condominium (Revised Plan), 23 units proposed, North 

side of Wattles, East of Livernois, Section 15 – R-1C 
 
• Proposed Fleming’s Steakhouse & Wine Bar, South side of Big Beaver, West of 

Coolidge  (3001 W. Big Beaver), Section 30 – O-S-C 
 
 

12. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 
 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
Mr. Strat asked to share his experience from his attendance at the “Integrating Water and 
Natural Resources Protection into the Planning Process” seminar and also his knowledge 
of architectural contract standards.   
 
Chairman Littman suggested to place Mr. Strat on the January 6, 2003 Special/Study 
meeting agenda to discuss both items.  Mr. Strat agreed.   
 
Mr. Miller brought to the Commissioner’s attention that an updated version of the By-laws 
was provided in their meeting packet.  Mr. Miller inadvertently did not place the proposed 
voting requirement revisions (ZOTA 203) on tonight’s agenda.  It was agreed to place the 
item on the December 9, 2003 Regular Business Meeting.   
 
Mr. Waller referenced the petitioner’s provision of 1100 linear feet of sidewalk in the right-
of-way for the proposed Maggiano’s restaurant.  He said this concept should be viewed as 
setting a new standard for any project that comes forth in the City of Troy including any 
City of Troy project.  



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL DECEMBER 2, 2003 
  
 
 

 - 10 - 
 

 
Mr. Kramer referenced an e-mail message sent by Mr. Storrs regarding the Civic Center 
Task Force and said he appreciated the summary.   
 
Chairman Littman requested the Planning Department to place the Civic Center Task 
Force under the sub-committee reports.   
 
There was a brief discussion on the Planning Commission term limits.  The terms are 
limited to 3 three-year terms.   
 
Mr. Strat requested the colored, graphic portions of the Urban Design booklet that was 
provided to the Commission.   
 
 
 
 
 
ADJOURN 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission was adjourned at 11:00 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Lawrence Littman, Chairman 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\MINUTES\2003 PC Minutes\Final\12-02-03 Special Study Meeting_Final.doc 
 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – DRAFT  December 3, 2003 

 1

A Regular Meeting of the Troy Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities was 
held Wednesday, December 3, 2003, at the lower level conference room at City Hall.  
Leonard Bertin called the Meeting to order at 7:06 P.M. 
 
Present:  L Bertin, member  S. Burt, member 
   A. Done, member  K. Gauri, member   
   T. House, member  N. Johnson, member  
   P. Manetta, member D. Pietron, member 
   M. Pritzlaff, alternate 
 
Present: M. Grusnick, staff 
   K. Jearls, staff 
 
Absent: C. Buchanan, member D. Kuschinsky, member 
   J. Shah, alternate  G. Yau, student 
 
ITEM B – APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF MEETING OF NOVEMBER 5, 2003 
 
Bertin made a motion that the Minutes of November 5, 2003 be approved.  Supported 
by House.  All voted in favor. 
 
ITEM C – VISITORS, DELEGATIONS AND GENERAL PUBLIC 
 
Barbara Holmes, Assistant City Clerk, was in attendance to swear in members House, 
Pritzlaff, Done and Burt.  Barbara was given Polling Accessability Surveys provided by 
Michigan Protection and Advocacy Service.  She thought the surveys would be helpful 
in reviewing Troy’s voting precincts.  All members of the Committee volunteered to 
assist her in reviewing Troy’s voting precincts. 
  
ITEM D – NEW BUSINESS 
 
All members will come to next meeting with objectives on what initiatives to address in 
the coming year. 
 
Ability Expo - Due to an overloaded schedule and a possible move, Bertin will pass on 
some Committee duties.  Burt will handle mailing list and letters of announcement.  A 
change in location of the vendor area was discussed such as a closer travel path, 
adjacent to hard surface, and expanding hours.  Bertin will list what needs to be 
addressed and tasks will be delegated at the next meeting. 
 
ITEM E – REGULAR BUSINESS 
 
Pritzlaff will attend Council Meeting on 12/15 and Pietron will attend 1/5 meeting. 
 
 
 

City of Troy
G-01



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – DRAFT  December 3, 2003 

 2

 
ITEM F – OLD BUSINESS 
 
Gauri attended the Council Meeting on 12/1 as a representative of this Committee 
where he was presented a proclamation declaring 12/3/03 International Day of Persons 
With Disabilities. 
 
House and Burt took the preliminary plans for new City parks home and will pass on to 
other members for review before the next meeting.   
 
ITEM G – INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 
 
Dick Kuschinsky will be taking chemotherapy for colon cancer and wants to be kept 
informed.  Bertin moved to excuse Dick, House seconded, all in favor. 
 
Dr. Lawrence Selaty, Director of Special Education for Troy School District, passed 
away in a car accident.  Bertin moved Troy City Council give recognition to his wife and 
daughter, Manetta seconded.  All in favor.  Done will send card on behalf of Advisory 
Committee and follow up on keeping special needs children working. 
 
Done shared business cards from a Doctor that makes house calls. 
 
ITEM H - ADJOURN 
 
House made a motion to adjourn at 8:20 p.m.  Done seconded.  All voted in favor. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                                                         _______________________________ 
                   Leonard Bertin, Chair 
 
 
        ________________________________ 
           Kathy Jearls, Recording Secretary                            
 



City of Troy
G-01





ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – FINAL                            Dec. 4, 2003 

1 

Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
 

A Regular meeting of the Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens was held on Thursday, 
December 4, 2003 at the Troy Community Center.  Chairman David Ogg called the meeting to 
order at 10 AM. 
 
Present: David Ogg, Chairman JoAnn Thompson, Member       
 Ed Forst, Vice-Chairman Jane Crowe, Member  
 Bill Weisgerber, Member Merrill Dixon, Member    
 Steven Banch, Member Carla Vaughan, Staff   
   
Absent:      Jo Rhoads - excused 
   
Visitors:   Mary Kerwin, Mary Beth Halushka  
 
Approval of Minutes   
 
Resolution # SC-2003-12-001 
Moved by Merrill Dixon 
Seconded by Marie Hoag 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of Nov. 6, 2003 be approved as submitted. 
 
Yes:  7   
No:  1   
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Addition of Rochester Senior Center item to agenda  
 
Resolution # SC-2003-12-002 
Moved by  Marie Hoag  
Seconded by  Bill Wesigerber   
 
RESOLVED, That an item about the Rochester Senior Center be added under old business. 
 
Yes:  8   
No:  0   
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Addition of Senior Budget item to agenda under old business.  
 
Resolution # SC-2003-12-003 
Moved by Bill Weisgerber  
Seconded by Ed Forst  
 
RESOLVED, That an item about the senior budget be added under old business.  
 

City of Troy
 

City of Troy
G-01



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – FINAL                            Dec. 4, 2003 

2 

Yes:  8   
No:  0   
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Visitor Comments 
 
Mary Kerwin introduced Mary Beth Halushka, the newest member of the Troy School Board.  
She invited seniors to attend any of the upcoming free holiday concerts at their local school 
and provided ticket information about this Friday’s Chenille Sisters concert. 
 
Old Business: 
 
Civic Center Task Force:   David Ogg reported that the task force will present their proposal 
to City Council in January.  It includes ice skating and sledding, gardens, fountains, pathways, 
and an amphitheater.  He also discussed the April ballot issue regarding selling some land for 
commercial use.   
 
Resolution # SC-2003-12-004 
Moved by Steve Banch 
Seconded by Marie Hoag 
 
RESOLVED, That the Senior Advisory Committee schedule a presentation about the 
convention center ballot proposal during their regular meeting on January 8 at 9:30 a.m.  David 
Ogg will invite speakers to present both sides and work with Carla to publicize the meeting. 
 
Yes:  8   
No:  0   
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Rochester Senior Center:   Marie Hoag reported that the building is beautiful but very big.  
David Ogg will arrange a tour for the committee in January. 
    
Separate Senior Budget:  Bill Weisgerber and Merrill Dixon reported on their meeting with 
Carol Anderson and Larry Jose and their findings about the senior budget.  Carla will put this 
information in the January newsletter. 
 
New Business 
 
Date of January Meeting:  Since the first Thursday in January is New Year’s Day, the 
committee will hold their January meeting on the second Thursday and begin at 9:30 a.m. to 
allow time for the Civic Center presentation.       
 
 
 
 
 
Reports 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – FINAL                            Dec. 4, 2003 

3 

 
Park Board:  Merrill Dixon reported that they were introduced to Erika Poplar, a new staff 
person who will work on sponsorships and promotion.   
 
Medi-Go:  No report.  
 
Lunch Attendance:  Carla reported that she has still not received a report from Emerald for 
September, October or November.  The committee would like the menu printed in the 
newsletter and David Ogg will call Kim at Emerald Food Service about this.    
 
Senior Program Report:  Carla reported that Creative Endeavors senior store has reached 
two milestones:  sales have surpassed $15,000 and there are now over 100 vendors.  The 
emergency cell phone program has been in existence for a year now, and we have given out 
over 300 phones. 
    
OLHSA:  No report.  
 
Suggestions:  A senior has suggested that the water cooler be kept out during bingo.  Carla 
has asked JoAnn to do this although JoAnn feels that there will be a problem with the seniors 
spilling the water.       
 
Member Comments 
 
JoAnn Thompson handed out applications for the spring session of the Citizens Academy.  Bill 
Weisgerber asked if the televisions at the Community Center could be kept on the City channel 
all the time.  Carla will discuss this with the building supervisor.   
 
The meeting was adjourned at noon. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
David Ogg, Chairman 
 
 
Carla Vaughan, Secretary 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL  DECEMBER 9, 2003 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chairman Littman at 7:30 p.m. on December 9, 2003, in the Council Chambers of the Troy 
City Hall. 
 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Dennis A. Kramer Gary Chamberlain 
Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz 
Walter Storrs 
Thomas Strat 
Mark J. Vleck 
David T. Waller 
Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Kathy Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2003-12-062 
Moved by:  Schultz 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That Mr. Chamberlain be excused from attendance at this meeting.   
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Chamberlain 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. MINUTES 
 
Mr. Miller confirmed that the word “authorization” was written on the memo pad for 
bullet #5 listed under the Options for the Issue Maintain Culture of Professionalism. 
 
Resolution # PC-2003-12-063 
Moved by:  Wright 
Seconded by: Storrs 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the October 28, 2003 Joint City Council/Planning 
Commission Meeting minutes as published. 

City of Troy
G-01



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL  DECEMBER 9, 2003 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Chamberlain 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

SITE CONDOMINIUM SITE PLAN 
 
Chairman Littman extended apologies to the abutting homeowners who received notifications 
of the proposed Crestwood Site Condominium development at such a late date.   
 
Mr. Waller requested a legal opinion as to whether or not Item 4, Crestwood Site 
Condominium, should be tabled because notifications were not received in a timely manner.   
 
Mr. Motzny responded there is no legal requirement to table the item and no reason why the 
Commission cannot proceed at this time; however, the Commission has the discretion to 
table the item if it wishes.   
 
4. SITE PLAN REVIEW – Proposed Crestwood Site Condominium (Revised Plan), 23 

units proposed, North side of Wattles, East of Livernois, Section 15 – R-1C 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed Crestwood Site Condominium.  Mr. Savidant reported that it is the 
recommendation of the Planning Department to approve the preliminary site plan 
application subject to four conditions:  (1) redesign the street layout to replace unit 
12 with a direct vehicular connection onto Wattles Road; (2) dedicate the detention 
basin to the City of Troy and construct a 12-foot wide paved driveway for future 
maintenance; (3) provide a walkway to connect Wattles Road and the proposed 
street; and (4) clearly mark the “open space” on the site plan as “future convertible 
area” as required by the Condominium Act.   
 
Mr. Kramer asked for clarification on the Planning Department’s recommendation to 
provide a public walkway.   
 
Mr. Miller explained that should the proposed development be approved with no 
connection to Wattles Road, the Planning Department recommends that a 
pedestrian connection be provided, which could be combined with the access to the 
storm water retention basin.   
 
Mr. Strat asked for confirmation that the Fire Department reviewed the proposed 
plan, noting the dead end road situation. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL  DECEMBER 9, 2003 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

Mr. Savidant confirmed the plan was reviewed by the Fire Department and noted 
the Fire Department’s preference would be to have a cul de sac.  The Fire 
Department gave approval of the plan because the plan is well designed to handle 
the turning radius and weight requirements of emergency vehicles, and it is 
understood that the road is temporary because the applicant has indicated his 
intention for future development. 
 
Mr. Miller stated that the possibility of future development has posed a problem with 
respect to whether designations on the site plan are temporary or permanent. 
 
Mr. Strat asked if some creativity, character or ambience could be used in the 
construction of the public walkway that is also to be used for access to the retention 
basin.  
 
Mr. Miller agreed and encouraged Mr. Strat to ask the petitioner how and if that 
could be accomplished. 
 
Mr. Miller requested the Assistant City Attorney to address “convertible areas” within 
site condominium developments. 
 
Mr. Motzny said the Condominium Act allows for a “convertible area” and provided 
the definition of “convertible area” as defined in the Condominium Act.  Mr. Motzny 
read the specific requirements of a “convertible area” as stipulated in Section 31 of 
the Condominium Act.   
 
There was a brief discussion on the location of the temporary construction access 
road.  Mr. Miller said it is the suggestion of the Planning Department to locate the 
construction access road between units 8 and 9, and noted the petitioner has 
indicated the access would not be located in the wetlands area.   
 
The petitioner, Mike Lamb of RWT Building LLC, 2065 Livernois, Troy, was present.  
Mr. Lamb thanked the Planning Department and others for their assistance in the 
long development process for this piece of property.  Mr. Lamb addressed the 
construction road access.  He indicated the existing road located on the highest 
point of the property would be used, and the open space would remain undisturbed.   
 
Mr. Lamb agreed to provide a public walkway with access onto Wattles Road and an 
8-foot wide sidewalk along Wattles Road, as recommended by the Planning 
Department.  Mr. Lamb proposed an alternate plan to provide an asphalt pathway 
through the open space, if it is feasible.   
 
Mr. Lamb said that the access to the retention basin for maintenance purposes would 
be provided as directed by the Engineering Department.   
 
Mr. Lamb addressed the limited common area.  Mr. Lamb said it was originally 
intended to provide the future access to Livernois as a compromise measure between 
the homeowners, the Planning Commission and the recommendations of the City.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL  DECEMBER 9, 2003 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

Should the City desire a connection to Wattles Road, there would be space available 
and language would be provided in the condominium documents to allow the City to 
provide the connection.  Mr. Lamb stated that for potential future development, he 
would like the ability to continue the road to Livernois and provide more lots.  He 
stated that currently it is not financially feasible because of the retention pond and 
wetlands area.  Mr. Lamb stated that the flood plain would remain as a natural area for 
the enjoyment of residents, now and in the future.   
 
Mr. Kramer asked if the site plan as displayed on the tripod is the site plan for approval 
by the Commission, with the only modification being the slight movement of the 12-
foot wide detention access.   
 
Mr. Lamb responded in the affirmative.  He indicated that his attorney would provide 
the “convertible area” language required to be clearly marked on the site plan.   
 
Mr. Waller asked the petitioner if he intends to make the public walkway access along 
the north side of the retention pond coming out to Wattles Road a little further to the 
west.   
 
Mr. Lamb responded in the affirmative.  He indicated he would pursue the feasibility of 
providing an asphalt pathway around the perimeter of the retention pond and providing 
a picnic area.   
 
Mr. Waller said he is in support of that concept because it would create a different 
shape to the natural area and would eliminate the proposed walkway from the 
western-most lot. 
 
Mr. Kramer asked the petitioner to address water issues in relation to the finished 
grade of the property with the existing grade along the north property line.   
 
Mr. Lamb confirmed there should be no drainage concerns because of the number of 
catch basins that are being provided.   
 
Mr. Strat questioned if the petitioner has conducted any studies with respect to what 
might happen to existing trees if the water table is changed.   
 
Mr. Lamb confirmed that he conferred with the City’s Landscape Analyst in this 
respect.  
 
Mr. Strat asked the petitioner if he realized that the probability of future development in 
the area as relates to the flood plain would not be good.   
 
Mr. Lamb responded that he believes it would be a 50-50 proposition; that the flood 
plain could be easily diminished and the wetlands area is eligible for re-evaluation in 
two years.   
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL  DECEMBER 9, 2003 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

Chairman Littman asked the petitioner why he decided to come back to the Planning 
Commission with a new site plan, noting that the previous plan submitted did not 
include a connection to Tallman and was approved by the City Council.  That plan 
included much discussion at both the Planning Commission and the City Council 
levels.   
 
Mr. Lamb responded that he was not a part of the discussions for the original plan 
before the Planning Commission and the City Council.  He said that although the 
thought behind the original approved plan was genuine, the financial considerations of 
the original plan after engineering review were tremendous.  He cited a difference of 
$200,000 between the original plan and the plan before the Commission tonight, and 
also noted that the revised site plan allows for the possibility of future development.   
 
Mr. Wright said that in comparing the original approved plan with the plan before the 
Commission tonight, it appears the detention basin relocation is not a problem on 
either plan and that there is the same number of lots along Wattles Road.  
 
Mr. Lamb said that two future lots, at a value of $100,000 each, were eliminated.  He 
confirmed that the lot count is the same. 
 
Mr. Wright asked the petitioner if it is the $200,000 improvements along Wattles Road 
that he would rather avoid making.   
 
Mr. Lamb said they do not want to make the improvements along Wattles Road and 
that there are other issues with regard to the street layout.    
 
Mr. Wright said he recalled the January meeting at which a lot of abutting residents 
were adamantly opposed to any additional traffic coming through their subdivision, 
and that was the primary reason for the Planning Commission to approve the 
original site plan with the connection to Wattles Road.  He voiced concern with 
those same residents not having ample notice to voice their concerns at tonight’s 
meeting.   
 
Mr. Lamb said that there have been discussions with most of the residents over the 
past year, and noted that most of the residents have resigned themselves to the fact 
that there will be a development going in behind their homes.  Mr. Lamb said it is 
poor planning to build a subdivision where parents must drive 1.5 miles to get to a 
school that is located one quarter of a mile away.  He said that parties who buy 
houses on dead-end streets should realize that the property owner who owns the 
property at the dead-end street is entitled to have access to the public utilities and 
public streets.  Mr. Lamb said that he believes the proposed development will 
provide a better community.     
 
Chairman Littman opened the floor for public comment. 
 
Bruce Bloomingdale of 4264 Tallman, Troy, was present.  Mr. Bloomingdale stated he 
just received the notice on the proposed development in today’s mail.  In that 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL  DECEMBER 9, 2003 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

approximate four-hour time span, Mr. Bloomingdale contacted 13 of his neighbors 
who expressed that their positions on the proposed development have not changed.  
Mr. Bloomingdale recalled that several months ago, the Chambers was filled, both at 
the Planning Commission meeting and the City Council meeting, with neighbors who 
were present to voice their objections to the proposed development.  He said it was 
unfortunate that the neighbors were not given enough notice tonight to make their 
presence.  Mr. Bloomingdale assured the Commission that the affected neighbors are 
adamantly and vehemently opposed to the development connecting to Tallman.   
 
Mr. Bloomingdale strongly urged the Commission to take the same position as it 
previously did and to made a recommendation of denial to the City Council on the 
basis of connecting the development to Tallman.  Mr. Bloomingdale expressed 
concerns with the wetlands area, increase in traffic congestion, traffic cutting through 
the subdivision, and emergency vehicle accessibility.  Mr. Bloomingdale stated that he 
is opposed to the developer’s and the City’s stands on interconnectivity.  He said that 
the residents who live on Leetonia, Randall, Tallman and Longfellow will not support 
nor endorse connecting the proposed development to Tallman and are totally opposed 
to interconnectivity.  Mr. Bloomingdale thinks that the original compromise to provide 
access on Wattles Road is the best development plan.   
 
Mr. Storrs asked Mr. Bloomingdale if he would be in favor of the east-west road 
ending in a cul de sac if it did not connect to Wattles. 
 
Mr. Bloomingdale said that would help, and noted that he has no problem with the 
development as long as it does not tie into Tallman. 
 
Chairman Littman asked Mr. Bloomingdale if he objects to the connection to Tallman if 
there is no way to get out to Wattles. 
 
Mr. Bloomingdale said he objects to the development tying into Tallman in any way, 
shape or form.  He said that tying the development into Wattles is the logical and 
proper way to do it, and said he absolutely objects to connecting the development to 
both Tallman and Wattles.    
 
The floor was closed. 
 
Mr. Storrs said the Commission struggled a lot with the connection to Tallman and 
to Wattles.  He noted the subdivision has a lot of long straight streets that could 
become a racetrack, and that was the reason why the Commission did not like the 
connection to Wattles.  Mr. Storrs thinks the revised site plan is a better option if it 
ended in a cul de sac, or something that does not go out to Wattles.  He said it does 
make the grand shortcut through that square mile. 
 
Mr. Kramer said there are several sides of the argument.  Mr. Kramer said he 
sympathizes with the neighbors’ concern of the racetrack traffic, as he can attest to 
it himself because he used to live in the area.  Mr. Kramer noted it would not be 
favorable to make another curb cut on Wattles Road, which would add to the traffic 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL  DECEMBER 9, 2003 
  
 
 

 - 7 - 
 

backup that already exists, particularly during evening hours.  Mr. Kramer feels that 
the future residents in the subdivision should have the same access to Leonard 
Elementary School and the open space, as the current subdivision residents.  For 
those reasons, Mr. Kramer does not support a connection to Wattles.  He believes 
the connection to Tallman would be the lesser of two evils. 
 
Mr. Wright said that the Commission previously approved a perfectly good plan and 
he sees no reason to change it.   
 
Mr. Waller said he supports Mr. Kramer’s observations.  With respect to tabling the 
matter, Mr. Waller suggested that the Commission make a recommendation to the 
City Council this evening to spare the concerned residents having to attend two 
meetings to voice their opinions.   
 
Mr. Strat asked for the opinion of the Planning Department. 
 
Mr. Miller said that City Management would hold steadfast for interconnectivity in 
the subdivision unless a clear cut-through is created.  He noted the item was 
discussed at an administrative development committee meeting, and it is the 
opinion of the Transportation Engineer that the proposed development would not 
create a direct cut-through.  Mr. Miller reported that the Planning Department would 
prefer a connection to Wattles Road, but if the Commission opts for no connection 
to Wattles Road, the Planning Department would like to ensure that a pedestrian 
connection to Wattles Road is provided.  Mr. Miller said he likes the petitioner’s 
suggestion for a pathway.   
 
Mr. Strat asked if the Planning Department would support a cul de sac, in lieu of a 
dead-end street. 
 
Mr. Miller said that the Planning Department would want a cul de sac should future 
development not go any further to the west.   
 
Resolution # PC-2003-12-064 
Moved by:  Waller 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, that the Planning Commission recommends to City Council that the 
Preliminary Site Plan as requested for Crestwood Site Condominium, including 23 
units, located north of Wattles Road and east of Livernois Road, Section 15, within the 
R-1C zoning district be granted, subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. Detention basin shall be dedicated to the City of Troy for future maintenance.  A 

12-foot wide paved driveway shall be constructed on this property for the 
purpose of detention pond maintenance from Wattles Road, to be located along 
side Wattles Road at the restrictor end of the detention pond. 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL  DECEMBER 9, 2003 
  
 
 

 - 8 - 
 

2. A walkway connection shall be provided to connect Wattles Road and the 
proposed street, extending along side the north side of the detention pond to the 
west end of the detention pond as proposed by the applicant. 

 
3. The “open space” shown on the site plan shall be clearly marked as “Limited 

Common Area – Open Space – Future Site Condominium Development “ on all 
drawings and also all appropriate condominium documents shall reference this 
same future use. 

 
4. The construction or access road as shown on the drawing shall be removed and 

the existing crushed grave l driveway further to the east would be the access 
road as indicated by the applicant. 

 
5. That a temporary cul de sac be constructed at the west end of the street with the 

understanding that it would be removed if at any time in the future the lot 
development was extended to the west.   

 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Miller suggested that condition #3 reference the “Limited Common Area” as 
“Convertible Area”.   
 
Mr. Motzny was in agreement because “Convertible Area” is the term used in the 
Condominium Act. 
 
Mr. Waller moved to amend the motion to reflect the appropriate language as 
recommended by the City legal representative.  Mr. Schultz seconded the motion as 
amended.   
 
Mr. Schultz requested to include in the motion that it is the Commission’s 
recommendation if the area to the west of the proposed temporary cul de sac is 
developed in the future, that there shall be no interconnection to Wattles Road from 
that development. 
 
Mr. Waller agreed to amend the motion as such.   
 
Chairman Littman noted that the petitioner indicated he is not 100% sure that he 
can place the walkway around the detention basis as indicated in the motion.  He 
asked Mr. Waller if he would like to provide in the motion some flexibility in providing 
the walkway.   
 
Mr. Waller responded in the negative.  Mr. Waller requested that should the 
petitioner not be able to provide the walkway around the detention basis, that the 
matter come back to the Planning Commission with a written explanation from City 
Management or staff as to the reasons why it cannot be provided.   
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL  DECEMBER 9, 2003 
  
 
 

 - 9 - 
 

Mr. Storrs noted the motion, as amended, does not say the cul de sac has to remain 
where it is.  If the lots would be developed in the future, the cul de sac could shift 
west as long as the connection does not go down to Wattles Road.  Mr. Storrs is in 
favor of this addition to the motion.   
 
Mr. Schultz requested that the motion reflect that the site plan shall come back for 
review by the Planning Commission should there be any substantial change to the 
site plan.   
 
Mr. Waller agreed to amend the motion as such.   
 
Resolution # PC-2003-12-064 (as amended) 
Moved by:  Waller 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, that the Planning Commission recommends to City Council that the 
Preliminary Site Plan as requested for Crestwood Site Condominium, including 23 
units, located north of Wattles Road and east of Livernois Road, Section 15, within the 
R-1C zoning district be granted, subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. Detention basin shall be dedicated to the City of Troy for future maintenance.  A 

12-foot wide paved driveway shall be constructed on this property for the 
purpose of detention pond maintenance from Wattles Road, to be located along 
side Wattles Road at the restrictor end of the detention pond. 

 
2. A walkway connection shall be provided to connect Wattles Road and the 

proposed street, extending along side the north side of the detention pond to the 
west end of the detention pond as proposed by the applicant; and further, should 
the applicant not be able to provide the walkway as proposed, a written 
explanation from City Management or staff as to the reasons why it cannot be 
provided shall be provided to the Planning Commission.   

 
3. The “open space” shown on the site plan shall be clearly marked as “Convertible 

Area “ on all drawings and also all appropriate condominium documents shall 
reference this same future use. 

 
4. The construction or access road as shown on the drawing shall be removed and 

the existing crushed gravel driveway further to the east would be the access 
road as indicated by the applicant. 

 
5. That a temporary cul de sac be constructed at the west end of the street with the 

understanding that it would be removed if at any time in the future the lot 
development was extended to the west.   

 
6. That if the area to the west of the proposed temporary cul de sac is developed in 

the future, there shall be no interconnection to Wattles Road from that 
development. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL  DECEMBER 9, 2003 
  
 
 

 - 10 - 
 

 
7. That should there be any substantial change to the site plan, the site plan shall 

come back before the Planning Commission for review and approval.   
 
Vote on the motion as amended.   
 
Yes: Kramer, Schultz, Storrs, Strat, Vleck, Waller 
No: Littman, Wright 
Absent: Chamberlain 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Wright said the City had a perfectly good plan in place, and he has not heard 
satisfactory justification in changing the plan.  He noted the prime discussion at earlier 
meetings was the length of the straight street runs that would create an easy cut-
through in the subdivision.   
 
Chairman Littman voted against the site plan for the same reasons.  He noted the 
Commission listened to the residents’ concerns, and the Commission and the elected 
officials on the City Council thought the original plan was a great plan.  He thinks the 
original plan should be kept in place.   
 
 

SITE PLAN 
 

5. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 218-B) – Proposed Fleming’s Steakhouse & Wine Bar, 
South side of Big Beaver, West of Coolidge (3001 W. Big Beaver), Section 30 – O-
S-C 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed Fleming’s Steakhouse & Wine Bar.  Material and building samples were 
circulated.  Mr. Savidant reported in detail the parking situation and noted the 
applicant is willing to go before the City Council for a variance in the number of 
parking spaces.  Mr. Savidant reported that it is the recommendation of the 
Planning Department to approve the site plan as submitted, with the condition that 
the applicant receives a variance from the Troy City Council to reduce the number 
of parking spaces provided on site when the parking lot is redesigned to 
accommodate 9.5-foot wide spaces.   
 
The width of the parking spaces and discrepancy in the count of the parking spaces 
were discussed at length.  Topics discussed were:  (1) the existing underground 
parking area; (2) the timeframe and agreement to re-stripe the parking lot to meet 
City ordinance; (3) the differentiation in parking space widths between parking 
decks and surface parking; (4) the reason for the parking space width 
differentiation; (5) review of the City ordinance with respect to parking space width 
and in relation to the purpose of the user.   
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL  DECEMBER 9, 2003 
  
 
 

 - 11 - 
 

Mr. Miller provided clarification on the location of the required 8-foot sidewalk.   
 
Mr. Schultz said he thinks it’s a great project. 
 
Mr. Strat concurred. 
 
Mr. Waller said he is confident that the negotiations reached between the petitioner 
and staff with respect to sealing, asphalting and re-striping the parking lot are 
reasonable. 
 
The petitioner, Larry Nemer of 26877 Northwestern Highway, Suite 101, Southfield, 
was present.  Mr. Nemer introduced Ken Neumann, Project Architect, Tim Gavigan, 
representative of Fleming’s Steakhouse & Wine Bar, and Robert Carter, 
representative from Fleming’s architectural group.  Mr. Nemer addressed the 
parking matter, and assured the Commission that the parking lots would be 
appropriately re-striped to accommodate the required 9.5-foot width in the next two 
summers.  He indicated that the Planning Department informed him that the option 
of utilizing the City’s new shared parking ordinance may be an alternative solution to 
the parking matter.  Mr. Nemer stated that the office complex has an abundance of 
parking because it started with the highest parking requirement at its onset.  Mr. 
Nemer noted that Fleming’s Steakhouse would be a valuable amenity to their 
complex in attracting new tenants and keeping existing tenants and would bring 
much needed life to the corner of Big Beaver and Coolidge.  Mr. Nemer stated that 
improvements to the east side of the complex were made; i.e., upgrade of the 
entrance, additional landscaping around the building and berm.  Mr. Nemer said it 
was of utmost importance to them to have the new restaurant look as much a part 
of the original design as it could, and he is very happy with the end product.   
 
Mr. Neumann of Neumann Smith & Associates, 400 Galleria, Southfield, gave a 
brief presentation.  A color rendering was displayed.  Mr. Neumann said the darker 
brick is from the original manufacturer, and the lighter brick is of a slight variation 
and a different color on purpose to give the building some variety.  He indicated that 
negotiations were made to keep the identity, spirit and character of Fleming’s 
Steakhouse and to create a building that is compatible with the existing building.  
The same glass and window frames of the existing building are proposed for the 
restaurant, and the majority of the restaurant building has the same color of brick as 
the existing building.  Mr. Neumann said a champagne color that is harmonious with 
the bricks is proposed to replace the existing orange color metal.   
 
Mr. Kramer said the proposed restaurant is a beautiful project for the City of Troy.  
He asked the petitioner if glass is still being stored on the west side of the building. 
 
Mr. Nemer responded in the negative.  
 
Mr. Strat commended Mr. Neumann on his presentation.  He said that this is the 
way he would like to see presentations made for site plan approval.  Mr. Strat cited 
that Mr. Neumann, an outstanding architect, has won several national and local 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL  DECEMBER 9, 2003 
  
 
 

 - 12 - 
 

awards.  Mr. Strat said he respects the architect’s opinion as relates to the material 
selection. 
 
Chairman Littman said that he has worked with Mr. Neumann on two buildings he 
was in charge of getting built.   
 
Resolution # PC-2003-12-065 
Moved by: Storrs 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, that pursuant to Section 26.25.01, the site plan provides a logical 
extension of the floor plan of the principal structure, and utilizes exterior materials 
similar to or harmonious with the principal structure; 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that Preliminary Site Plan Approval, as requested for 
Fleming’s Steakhouse & Wine Bar, located on the south side of Big Beaver and 
west of Coolidge, located in section 30, within the O-S-C zoning district, is hereby 
granted, subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. The applicant shall seek and receive a variance from the City Council for the 

number of parking spaces that the applicant may be deficient after re-striping the 
development parking lot to 9.5-foot parking spaces, or come back to the 
Planning Commission for consideration of shared parking. 

 
2. The City of Troy is responsible for the replacement of the trees along Big Beaver 

Road that were removed during the road-widening project.  
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Chamberlain 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 
 
6. PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 203) – 

Article 02.00.00 – Changes, Amendments and Approvals, edit text to replace 
Chapter 40 of the City Code (to be repealed) and include language regarding Voting 
Requirements 
 
Mr. Miller reviewed the proposed text amendment that would list the Planning 
Commission powers and duties and voting requirements in the City of Troy Zoning 
Ordinance.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL  DECEMBER 9, 2003 
  
 
 

 - 13 - 
 

PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2003-12-066 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Storrs 
 
RESOLVED, that the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City Council 
that ARTICLE II (CHANGES, AMENDMENTS AND APPROVALS) of the Zoning 
Ordinance, be amended as printed on the Planning Commission recommended 
amendment, dated 12/04/03. 
 
Yes: Kramer, Littman, Schultz, Storrs, Vleck, Waller, Wright 
No: Strat 
Absent: Chamberlain 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Strat said he would have preferred more time to review the matter.   
 
Mr. Schultz said that Section 01.10.04 (FINANCES) may have to be addressed in 
the future based on the Planning Commission budgetary process that was 
discussed at the recent joint meeting with the City Council and City Management.   
 
Mr. Strat agreed that his primary concern with the text amendment was Section 
01.10.04 (FINANCES).   
 
 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
Mr. Savidant circulated two gateway concept designs that were created by the Parks & 
Recreation Department.  Mr. Savidant said he is not sure what the timeline is to present 
the concept designs to the City Council. 
 
Mr. Vleck commented that the designs created by Parks & Recreation are a great 
improvement.   
 
Messrs. Wright and Waller agreed and specified their choices.   
 
Chairman Littman said it has been requested that Mr. Kramer represent the Planning 
Commission at the December 15, 2003 City Council Meeting for the agenda item relating 
to the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment for radio antenna height limits.   
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL  DECEMBER 9, 2003 
  
 
 

 - 14 - 
 

Mr. Kramer said that if that is the purview of the Planning Commission and if the Planning 
Commission still feels the same about the recommendation, he would be available to 
attend the December 15th City Council meeting. 
 
Resolution # PC-2003-12-067 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Storrs 
 
RESOLVED, that Dennis Kramer attend the December 15, 2003 City Council Meeting to 
represent the Planning Commission with respect to its recommendation on the proposed 
zoning ordinance text amendment for radio antenna height limits.   
 
Yes: Kramer, Littman, Schultz, Storrs, Strat, Waller, Wright 
No: Vleck 
Absent: Chamberlain 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Chairman Littman questioned the difference in the site plan approval process related to 
harmonious external building materials for the proposed Fleming’s Steakhouse and 
Maggiano’s Restaurant. 
 
Mr. Miller said the building owner for the proposed Fleming’s Steakhouse worked with the 
architect in full knowledge of the type of restaurant proposed.  The building owner of 
Maggiano’s Restaurant had a franchise restaurant lined up at the very beginning and the 
corporate architects became involved at the beginning of the site plan process.   
 
Mr. Strat further explained that the external building materials were of a different type.   
 
Mr. Schultz reiterated that the Planning Commission and the City Council should review 
the requirement for 9.5-foot wide surface parking spaces in the City of Troy. 
 
Mr. Miller welcomed Mr. Motzny to his first Regular Meeting.  With respect to the proposed 
gateway signage, Mr. Miller explained that City Management plans to submit all the design 
concepts (i.e., old designs on file, Burton/Katzman designs, and in-house designs) and the 
option to hire a design firm, tentatively to City Council.   
 
Mr. Miller wished everyone a happy holiday and said he would see everyone next year. 
 
Mr. Motzny wished everyone a happy holiday. 
 
Chairman Littman wished all a happy holiday and a happy new year. 
 
 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL  DECEMBER 9, 2003 
  
 
 

 - 15 - 
 

 
ADJOURN 
 
The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission was adjourned at 9:28 p.m. 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Lawrence Littman, Chairman 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 
G:\MINUTES\2003 PC Minutes\Final\12-09-03 Regular Meeting_Final.doc 
 



City of Troy
G-01









 1 

LIBRARY BOARD MINUTES - FINAL DECEMBER 11, 2003 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Library Board was held Thursday, December 11, 2003 at 
the Office of the Library Director.  Joanne Allen, Chairman, called the meeting to order 
at 7:30 P.M.   
 
ROLL CALL PRESENT: Joanne Allen 
   Brian Griffen 
   Nancy Wheeler 
   Audre Zembrzuski 
   Steve Zhang, Student Rep. 
   Brian Stoutenburg, Library Director 
         
The Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was given. 
 
Resolution #LB-2003-12-001 
Moved by Zembrzuski 
Seconded by Griffen 
 
RESOLVED, That Lynne Gregory’s absence be excused 
Yes:  4—Allen, Griffen, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No:  0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
Resolution #LB-2003-12-002 
Moved by Wheeler 
Seconded by Griffen 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of November 13, 2003 be approved as amended 
Yes:  4—Allen, Griffen, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No:  0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
Reviewed Agenda entries 
 
Resolution #LB-2003-12-003 
Moved by Wheeler 
Seconded by Zembrzuski 
 
RESOLVED, That the Agenda be approved 
Yes:  4—Allen, Griffen, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No:  0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

City of Troy
G-01

City of Troy
 



 2 

REGULAR BUSINESS 
Resolution #LB-2003-12-004 
Moved by Griffen 
Seconded by Zembrzuski 
 
 
RESOLVED, That the 2004 Board Meeting Dates be approved 
Yes:  4—Allen, Griffen, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No:  0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
   
 
REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS 
Director’s report.  
Approval to upholster 272 chairs and 9 stools will be requested of City Council at their 
next meeting.  The low bidder was Michigan State Industries at a cost of $30,803.50.  
We have filled the 6 vacancies at the Circulation Department and when they get trained 
we will be doing a pilot program of checking out materials from the Youth Library around 
the Story Program times to see if it reduces the congestion in the lobby. 
 
Board Member comments.   
• Griffen asked about the different color of library cards currently being used and what 

their difference was.  We will have two colors until we have updated everyone’s to the 
newer blue color. 

• Zembrzuski related an instance of a Troy resident’s account being brought up on the 
computer as a sister-in-law’s with the exact same name who resides in Frasier.  This 
is why it is important to check out items using one’s library card. The account is tied 
directly to the unique bar code on the card.  This particular patron may have simply 
given her name to bring up her account. 

• Griffen asked about the percentage of non-residents who use our library.  
Approximately 15% of registered borrowers do not reside in Troy.  Some of these 
non-residents work in Troy.  As to the number of non-residents who enter the library, 
we haven’t tracked that.  We would have to check residency of each person entering 
the library. 

• Griffen asked that Board Members be kept abreast of issues involving the library.  He 
cited the newspaper article about Bloomfield Hills resident’s use of our library being 
published prior to being notified of this.  The circumstances surrounding this issue 
were reported, and that an effort to inform them of issues prior to newspaper articles 
will be made in the future. 

• Griffen made comments on two personnel issues that he was made aware of. 
• Zembrzuski commented that her daughter’s artwork had been exhibited at the library 

and as a result she sold several of her works.  She commented on the value of such 
exhibits to both the library and the artist. 

• Wheeler asked about the issue of the display methods of the Friend’s Gift Shop.  It 
was decided to draft three ideas for the Friend’s to consider regarding the 
showcases. 

• Allen asked about the newspaper coverage of the Bloomfield Township/Bloomfield 



 3 

Hills contract issue.  Our position in this was to remain neutral.  Our non-resident card 
procedure has been in place for many years. 

• Wheeler commented on a patron stating to her that our staff was very helpful and 
nice. 

• Wheeler suggested that shelves be put in the public bathrooms so that patrons could 
place their items while using the facilities.   

• Griffen suggested, and the Board agreed that the statistical reports and the Staff 
Changes report be given to the Board on a quarterly basis. 

 
Friends of the Library.   
There was no report.   
 
Monthly Reports (November).  Circulation for the month of November compared with 
the same time period a year ago showed an increase of 9.8%. There was a decrease 
for the month in Patron visits by 4.3%.  Program attendance was up 23.2% for the 
month.  The number of library programs offered was up 1.9% for the month.     
 
Staff Changes. 
Resignation:  Mary Newton, Substitute Librarian. 
 
Gifts.    
No gifts were received 
 
Informational Items.   
December TPL Calendar   
 
Contacts and Correspondence.    
15 written comments from the public were reviewed. 
 
Public Participation.  There was no public participation. 
 
The Library Board meeting adjourned at 9:00 P.M. 
 

 
 
                  
Joanne Allen 
Chair 
 
 
 
Brian Stoutenburg 
Recording Secretary 



 

 

Final 
Meeting Minutes 

 
A meeting of the Downtown Development Authority was held on Wednesday, 
December 17, 2003, in the Lower Level Conference Room of Troy City Hall, 500 W. 
Big Beaver Troy, Michigan.  Alan Kiriluk called the meeting to order at 7:35 a.m. 
 
PRESENT:  Michael Culpepper 

Michele Hodges 
William Kennis 

   Alan Kiriluk 
   Daniel MacLeish 
   Carol Price 
    Matt Pryor 
   Ernest Reschke 
   Marc Rosenow 
   Douglas Schroeder 

    
    
ABSENT:  Stuart Frankel 

Harvey Weiss  
   Fred Wong 

G. Thomas York 
       
ALSO PRESENT: John Szerlag    
   John M. Lamerato   

Gary A. Shripka   
   Lori Grigg Bluhm   
   Mark Miller 

Doug Smith 
Robert Nix, Kerr, Russell & Weber 
    

 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Resolution: DD-03-20 
Moved by: MacLeish 
Seconded by: Kennis 
 
RESOLVED, that the minutes of the November 19, 2003 regular meeting be 
approved. 
 
Yeas:  All (10) 
Absent: Frankel, Weiss, York 
 
 
 

City of Troy
G-01



 

 

OLD BUSINESS 
 
Big Beaver Bond Project 
 
John Lamerato reviewed the sources and uses of the Big Beaver Bond Issue 
 
Strategy for Enhancement of Existing Landscaping and Big Beaver Corridor 
Comprehensive Streetscape 
 
Attached to the minutes will be a listing of items that was discussed. 
 
Ford Motor Company Conference and Event Center Visit 
 
City Council has postponed their visit to the center pending the April election outcome.  The 
DDA and others may wish to visit the center before the election. 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Subordination, Nondisturbance and Attornment Agreement 
 
Resolution: DD-03-21 
Moved by: MacLeish 
Seconded by:  Kennis 
 
RESOLVED, that the Board authorize Alan Kiriluk, Ernest Reschke, John Lamerato 
and Robert Nix to review the Agreement, and if acceptable, authority is granted to 
Alan Kiriluk to execute the Agreement. 
 
Yeas:  All (10) 
Absent:  Frankel, Weiss, York 
 
 
EXCUSE ABSENT MEMBERS 
 
Resolution: DD-03-22 
Moved by: Culpepper 
Seconded by: Price 
 
RESOLVED, That Frankel, Weiss, Wong and York be excused. 
 
Yeas: All (10) 
Absent: Frankel, Weiss, York 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
No comment    
 



 

 

  
The meeting was adjourned at 8:45 a.m. 
 
Next Meeting:  January 21, 2004 @ 7:30 a.m. 

 
         
 
 __________________________________________ 

      Alan Kiriluk, Chairman 
 
 

________________________________________
__ 

      John M. Lamerato, Secretary/Treasurer 
 
JL/pg 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL - FINAL MINUTES   December 17, 2003 
 
 

 1 

A meeting of the Troy Youth Council (TYC) was held on Wednesday, December 17, 2003 at 
7:00 PM at the Community Center (Room 503), 3179 Livernois Road.  Eric Gregory called the 
meeting to order at 7:04 p.m. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Emily Burns 

Allister Chang 
Chris Cheng  
Min Chong 
Monika Govindaraj 
Eric Gregory  
Catherine Herzog (arrived 7:06 PM) 
Maniesh Joshi  
Andrew Kalinowski 
Matthew Michrina 
Manessa Shaw  
YuJing Wang 

MEMBERS ABSENT: Juliana D'Amico (excused) 
Raymond Deng 
Christina Krokosky (excused) 
David Vennettilli (excused) 

ALSO PRESENT:   Laura Fitzpatrick, Assistant to the City Manager 
     
                                        
1. Roll Call 
2. Approval of Minutes 
 
Resolution # TY-2003-12- 014 
Moved by Chong 
Seconded by Cheng 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of 11/12/03 be approved. 
 
Yes:  All – 12 
No:  None 
Absent:         D’Amico, Deng, Krokosky, Vennettilli 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
3. Attendance Report: Noted and Filed 

This meeting: 12 present, 4 absent – 3 gave prior notification. 
4. Motion to Excuse Absent Members 
 
Resolution # TY-2003-12- 015 
Moved by Kalinowski 
Seconded by Wang 
 
RESOLVED, That D’Amico, Krokosky, and Vennettilli. 
 
Yes:  All – 12 

City of Troy
G-01



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL - FINAL MINUTES   December 17, 2003 
 
 

 2 

No:  None 
Absent:         D’Amico, Deng, Krokosky, Vennettilli 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
5. Civic Center Priority Task Force: Report from Shaw & Herzog: Presentation will be made 

to City Council in February, date TBA.  The CCPTF is requesting that an ongoing task force 
be established. 

 
6. 2004 Michigan Youth Symposium: to be held near Grand Rapids this year – too far away 

for participation by Troy. 
 
7. The World Café Forum:    Community dialogue event sponsored by the Chamber of 

Commerce; Thursday 12/18/03 6-9 PM @ the Community Center.  Govindaraj and Gregory 
plan to attend part of it. 

 
 
8. Plans for 2004: 

Review Accomplishments from first 18 months 
TYC Accomplishments 2002-2003  
(Since inception of TYC on 5/02 – 18 months) 
 
Reports  
§ Youth Leisure Time re: Spring 2000 Survey 
§ General Comments re: Civic Center Site 
§ Reduce Size of TYC 
§ Request to have Monthly Meetings Televised 
§ Input re: Boys and Girls Club of Troy New Facility (youth area ideas) 
§ City Web Site Tips 

 
Presence in the Community 
 
§ Meetings televised (as a result of making the request to City Council) 
§ Marched in Troy Daze Parade 
§ Volunteered at Troy Daze Welcome Booth 
§ Attended opening of Teen Resource Center at Library 
§ Attended Festival of the Arts Ceremony (Grant) at Library 
§ Attended City Council Meeting re: Televising Meetings 
§ Posters on display at City Hall and Community Center 
§ TYC appeared in several newspaper articles 
§ Assembled charity holiday boxes of groceries for a needy family 
§ Designed & adopted a logo (featured in t-shirts, agendas, etc.) 
§ Four members attended 2003 MI Youth Symposium in Dearborn 

 
Advised on Areas of City Government/Involved in City Government 
 
§ A TYC Members serves on the Civic Center Priority Task Force 
§ TYC as a whole provided input to CCPTF report 



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL - FINAL MINUTES   December 17, 2003 
 
 

 3 

§ Went on tour of new Police Department and learned about Police Operations 
§ Four members served on the Cool Cities Initiative Advisory Group; all discussed resulting 

report 
§ Provided input on: 

§ Library Teen Section 
§ Community Center Teen Room 
§ Aquatic Center Advertising 
§ Troy Daze Festival (Ethni-City Event and reps attended monthly meetings) 
§ City Web Site 

 
 
 
Note City Council Goals and Objectives: TYC Members were given copies of these 
 
 
 
Brainstorm 2004 Objectives and Tasks: 
 

• Internship (unpaid or paid) for high school students in the business community: 
Fitzpatrick to inquire with Chamber of Commerce – many students will work for free to 
gain experience 

• Voter registration awareness: Get TYC issues to 18-year olds 
• Have a joint meeting with City Council 
• Civic Center Site Issues: Continued involvement with issues; advise as to youth 

relevance as need arises 
• School newspaper publicity: this is an old idea that never developed; Fitzpatrick to create 

a fact sheet/article template for TYC members to distribute to school newspaper writers. 
• New poster to display in City Buildings and possibly at schools 
• Repeat: Troy Daze Parade and Holiday Charity Basket 
• City Politics Awareness – have a TYC member be a liaison of sorts to City Council, 

keeping up on the issues 
• Gregory suggests more discussion outside of meetings may be valuable – an electronic 

discussion board? 
• New members – selection process – TYC wants more input re: who is recommended 

o A diverse selection of members – especially age diversity (so a large group does 
not graduate at one time) and diversity of opinions. 

o Form a selection committee that will review anonymous essays and applications 
o Details for selection of new members to be solidified this winter/spring 

• Size of TYC is still a concern – A 16-member board is still too big to be effective.  4 
members will graduate this year.  The largest board/committee in the City has 13 
members, with the average number of members being 7.  (TYC not included in average.) 

 



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL - FINAL MINUTES   December 17, 2003 
 
 

 4 

 
 
 
 
 
Resolution # TY-2003-12- 016 
Moved by Gregory 
Seconded by Cheng 
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy Youth Council hereby amends its bylaws, reducing its membership 
from sixteen members to  thirteen members effective August 2004.  This reduction will happen 
through attrition when four members graduate in Summer 2004. 
 
Yes:  All – 12 
No:  None 
Absent:         D’Amico, Deng, Krokosky, Vennettilli 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

Reminder Next Meeting: 1/21/04 7:00 P.M. 
Location: TBA, probably Community Center 

 
 
 
 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:12 p.m. 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Eric Gregory, Co-chair 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Laura Fitzpatrick, Assistant to the City Manager 



TROY ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD – DRAFT                         January 6, 2004 
 
Call to Order 
 
The regular meeting of the Ethnic Issues Advisory Board was called to order on January 6, 2004 
at 7:05 p.m. in Conference Room C at Troy City Hall. 
 
Roll Call 

Present: Anju Brodbine  Charles Yuan 
  Amin Hashmi   Jeff Hyun 

Oniell Shah  Katie Beyer, Student Rep  
Tom Kaszubski Kara Huang, Student Rep 

  Padma Kuppa  Cindy Stewart, City Liaison  
  Flora Tan   

  
Absent: Excuse Hailu Robele; Motion by Kuppa support by Yuan 

 
Approval of Minutes 
 
Motion by Yuan, support by Brodbine to approve December 9, 2003 minutes.  Approved 
unanimously. 
 
Correspondence 
 
Oakland Press article from December 9, 2003: “Arab population surging, census says” 
 
New Business 
 

A. EthniCity 
Introduce Troy Daze Board members: Jim Cyrulewski, Bob Berk, Cele Dilley, Cheryl 
Whitton 
Explanation about EthniCity - EthniCity originally started as separate idea, but added 
to Troy Daze as an event under a tent, with stage entertainment showcasing ethnic 
diversity, with parade participation and food, a bit disjointed. 
The Troy Daze Board is asking EIA re: assistance & ideas to help them provide a 
focus to showcase EthniCity. What is the best mechanism to do this? Is there more 
to do at other events? What level of participation would the EIA like to take? 
Before 2004 Troy Daze preparation takes place, thought they’d ask EIA’s advice and 
ask them to lend assistance re: diversity.  
 
EthniCity came into existence in 1997 and came out of the Futures Report. Thought 
was to grow it within Troy Daze and eventually have separate ethnic festival (May or 
June) in the City. 
How can the Troy Daze Board work effectively with EIA Board to have a stronger 
partnership? 
Is entertainment the best we can offer?  
Should EIA have booth in main tent or EthniCity tent? 
Does EIA have a vision for EthniCity as a stand-alone festival? 
Is our publicity reaching the right audiences? 
 
Wanted to steadily increase number of different countries represented.  First year 12-
15, past year about 25. Can’t seem to get past this number.  Is a 4-day festival too 
long? Brainstorm with family and friends.  Check EIA Board’s contacts re: Ethnic 
food, entertainment. 
 

City of Troy
G-01



TROY ETHNCI ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD – DRAFT                         January 6, 2004 
 
 

 2 

OS – Suggests the EIA Board brainstorm ideas and get together again at a special 
meeting. 

AB – Suggests shorter time span for entertainment.  Audiences might be too small 
and disheartening for performers.   
 
 
 
 
EIA has taken resource list from EthniCity chairperson and is expanding on this re: 
guide for entire community, new residents 
 
Other questions asked of EIA Board to consider… 
What should happen with EthniCity? Stay with Troy Daze? Formed as own festival? 
What is role of EIA Board in Troy Daze whether part of Troy Daze or separate entity? 
What improvements can you see are needed? 

Publicity, EthniCity tent flow, more ethnic involvement, fundraising ideas 
(EthniCity costs are about $10,000 not including infrastructure) 
 
Meet again at March 2 meeting with Troy Daze Board and EthniCity co-chairs or 

maybe schedule a special study session if agenda is too full that evening. 
 

 
B. Kaleidoscope 

Does the EIA Board want to have a booth at the Community Kaleidoscope event on 
Saturday, January 24 from 12-4 pm.   Booth could distribute flyers, have info on EIA 
Board.  Board agreed to have a booth.  Schedule as follows:  
Amin: 12-1p, Anju: 1-2p, Padma: 2-3, Oniell: 3-4p.  Jeff can help with set-up. 
 

 
C. Adoption support groups: 

Board to try and get info on organizations, which offer assistance to help families 
who adopt children from other countries.  Include information in the resource list. 
 

 
D. Holiday Tree Lighting: 

Why not other holiday songs besides Christmas related ones?   Padma will contact 
Dan Stevens re: incorporating other songs from around the world next year. 
 

 
E. Sights & Sounds of China 

Introduced Frank Jiang, Greater Chinese Association and James Sheng, Principal at 
DoArt School, representatives for Sights & Sounds of China event.  The February 7th 
event will be represented by  
Chinese Association of Greater Detroit, Detroit Dance Club, American Chinese 
Association for Cultural and Art Exchange, Detroit Oriental Art School, and American 
Chinese School of Greater Detroit.  The day will include a Fashion show, martial arts, 
dance, paper cutting, calligraphy. 
On Sunday, January 11 at 1:30 pm, the committee will hold a meeting at Community 
Center to assign tasks. Set up similar – need yellow balloons & helium tank. 
Possible to get extra rooms for displays (301-302)?  Get our rooms earlier –10 am 
for setup 
 



TROY ETHNCI ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD – DRAFT                         January 6, 2004 
 
 

 3 

 
F. Future Sights & Sounds give Edith’s # to Padma for Germany.  For the March event, 

Flora will call Dr. Ernie Mack and Tom will call Willie Hernandez re: Philippines.  Middle 
East - Mayda invited to February meeting and Greece - Eugenia coming to March 
meeting 

 
 
G. Resource List: 

 Continue compiling information and send to Cindy. 
 

 
H. Diversity Week: 

Email Anju previous letters to be redone 
 
 

 
Motion by Hyun, seconded by Hashmi to adjourn.  Meeting adjourned at 9 pm. 
 
 
 
 

_______________________________________ 
Tom Kaszubski, EIA Board Chairman 

 
 
 

_______________________________________ 
Cindy Stewart, Recording Secretary 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT JANUARY 6, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chairman Littman at 7:30 p.m. on January 6, 2004, in the Council Board Room of the Troy 
City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: 
Gary Chamberlain 
Lynn Drake-Batts 
Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz 
Walter Storrs 
Thomas Strat 
Mark J. Vleck (arrived 7:38 p.m.) 
David T. Waller 
 
Absent: 
Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Kathy Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2004-01-001 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That Mr. Wright be excused from attendance at this meeting. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Vleck (arrived 7:38 p.m.), Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Chairman Littman welcomed Ms. Drake-Batts to the Commission.  Ms. Drake-Batts 
gave a brief synopsis of her professional background. 
 
Chairman Littman announced the scheduled presentation by Joe Maniaci and 
Robert Gibbs, agenda item 8, has been postponed to the January 27, 2004 
Special/Study Meeting. 

City of Troy
G-01



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT JANUARY 6, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

2. MINUTES 
 
Mr. Waller requested that the December 2, 2003 Special/Study Meeting minutes be 
revised as follows.  
 

Under the Good of the Order, 4th paragraph, the second sentence to read:  
“He said this concept should be viewed as setting a new standard for any 
project that comes forth in the City of Troy including any City of Troy project.” 

 
Resolution # PC-2004-01-002 
Moved by:  Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Storrs 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the December 2, 2003 Special/Study Meeting minutes as 
amended. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Vleck (arrived 7:38 p.m.), Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2004-01-003 
Moved by:  Storrs 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the December 9, 2003 Regular Meeting minutes as 
published. 
 
Yes: Drake-Batts, Littman, Schultz, Storrs, Strat, Waller 
No: None 
Abstain: Chamberlain 
Absent: Vleck (arrived 7:38 p.m.), Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

4. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 
 
Mr. Miller reported on the following: 
 
• Saleen Facility Site Visit – The site visit is scheduled for the January 27, 2004 

Special Meeting at 6:00 p.m.  Doug Smith, Real Estate and Development 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT JANUARY 6, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

Director, will be present at the tour and is also scheduled to speak at the 7:30 
p.m. Special/Study Meeting.   

 
§ ZOTA 180 Height Limits for Amateur Radio Antennas – The text amendment 

adopted by City Council at its January 5, 2004 Meeting was distributed.  
 
§ Site Plan 38-E Lord & Taylor (Oakland Mall) – The traffic study was submitted 

and reviewed by the City’s Traffic Engineer who determined the traffic study was 
sufficient.  It came to the attention of the Planning Department that (1) the site 
has more parking spaces than originally presented and (2) 28 parking spaces 
fall within the State of Michigan highway right-of-way.  Mr. Miller said the site 
would have the required parking spaces should the parking spaces be removed 
from the right-of-way.  The Planning Department continues to work with the 
petitioner to design appropriately sized parking spaces for the site. 

 
§ Tri-Party Interest Based Bargaining Sub-Committee – A memorandum from 

John Szerlag, City Manager, was circulated.  Mr. Szerlag requested that the 
Planning Commission select its members to serve on the joint committee.  It was 
the consensus of the Commission to postpone the selection of committee 
members to its January 27, 2004 Special/Study Meeting. 

 
§ Joint Municipal Planning Act (House Bill No. 4284) – Copies of the newly 

enacted act were distributed.   
 
§ Planning Commission Appointment – Mr. Miller reported that the City Council 

made no new appointments to the Planning Commission at its January 5, 2004 
meeting. 

 
§ City-Owned Surplus Parcels – At its January 5, 2004 Meeting, the City Council 

directed staff to work with the Parks and Recreation Board and the Planning 
Commission to review City-owned surplus properties.  Mr. Miller said he would 
provide the Commission with a map designating the City-owned surplus 
properties, as well as an overlay of safety paths and existing and proposed 
parks, in their January 27, 2004 Special/Study Meeting packets.    

 
Chairman Littman asked that Doug Smith be reminded to provide the Commission 
with a list of vacancies within the M-1 zoning district throughout the County.   
 
Mr. Waller asked if the Information Technology Department could give a GIS 
presentation to the Planning Commission, similar to the one presented to City 
Council at their January 5, 2004 Meeting.   
 
Mr. Miller noted that the GIS software is becoming available on the Internet to the 
general public in the future.   
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT JANUARY 6, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

5. BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS REPORT 
 
Mr. Vleck reported on the December 16, 2003 BZA meeting.   
 
§ Request for Reconsideration of Denial of Variance, Harry and Sunnie Kwon, 

38921 Dequindre – Approved 
 
§ Variance Request, Paul Fleck, 2805 Ranieri – Denied 
 
 

6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 
 
Mr. Miller had no report available for the December 17, 2003 Downtown 
Development Authority meeting.   
 
 

7. SUB-COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
CR-1 
Discussed under agenda item 11. 
 
Tree Preservation / Landscaping / Walls 
No report. 
 
Gateway / Beautification 
Mr. Miller will confirm the date that the Downtown Development Authority and City 
Council will consider the gateway design concepts.  The four options for City 
Council consideration are:  (1) designs prepared by the Parks & Recreation 
Department from previous years; (2) designs created by Burton/Katzman 
consultants; (3) designs recently prepared by the Parks & Recreation Department; 
and (4) hiring outside design consultants. 
 
Mr. Waller suggested that consideration be given to the readability and illumination 
of the gateway signage. 
 
Mr. Chamberlain expressed his concern in getting the gateway signage concepts 
approved prior to the Downtown Development Authority work on Big Beaver Road, 
scheduled for spring 2004. 
 
Special Use 
Mr. Chamberlain will meet with Mr. Savidant this week to discuss revisions to the 
documents that were prepared by the sub-committee and typed by the Planning 
Department.   
 
Indoor Commercial Recreation 
No report. 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT JANUARY 6, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

Civic Center Priority Task Force 
Mr. Storrs reported the Task Force, scheduled to meet again on January 23, 2004, 
is in its final preparation of a briefing and written report to be provided to the City 
Council.   
 

8. PRESENTATION BY JOE MANIACI AND ROBERT GIBBS – Historic Lorna Stone 
Village Planned Unit Development, Northeast corner of Adams Road and South 
Boulevard, Rochester Hills, Michigan 
 
Agenda item postponed to the January 27, 2004 Special/Study Meeting. 
 
 

9. PLANNING WORK PROGRAM 
 
Work items discussed in depth were: 
 
§ Budget 
§ Final Site Plan (Deceleration Lanes, Detention) – Determined to delete the 

reference to deceleration lanes and detention 
§ Site Plan Review of Public Projects – Determined to include school districts 
§ Setback Requirements – Determined to define as zoning district transition and 

open space 
§ Certify Future Land Use Plan 
§ Cellular Towers – Determined to define as dead zones 
§ Maple Road Study 
 
Items to be added to work program are: 
 
§ EIS Requirements 
§ Dumpsters 
§ Performance Based Zoning 
 
The priority sequence of the work program items will be discussed at a future study 
session. 
 
 

Chairman Littman announced that agenda item 14 would be taken out of agenda 
sequence to accommodate the presence of Michelle Hodges, President of Troy Chamber 
of Commerce.   
 

14. TROY CHAMBER OF COMMERCE – Position on Civic Center Development and 
Regional Conference Center – Michelle Hodges 
 
Ms. Hodges was present to address the Chamber of Commerce position on the 
development of a conference/hotel facility on the seven acres of the Troy Civic 
Center site.  Ms. Hodges distributed a Fact Sheet on the proposed development 
and confirmed that on the Fact Sheet is an exact representation of the April 5 ballot 
proposal. 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT JANUARY 6, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

Ms. Hodges stated that research conducted by a third-party demonstrates a very 
strong market need for a conference/hotel facility in the Troy area.  She highlighted 
the following positive facts for developing a conference/hotel facility. 
 
§ Creation of a community-oriented campus with a strong sense of place. 
§ Economic vibrancy with a projected annual $168M, spin-off benefit to local 

industry and an offset in urban sprawl. 
§ Tax advantages. 
§ Higher degree of city services and quality of life. 
§ City Council affirmation that it will not utilize local tax dollars. 
 
Ms. Hodges’ presentation referenced the site selection process, funding of the 
development, the Request for Proposal process and the downfalls should the 
proposal fail.  She stated that the current cost of maintaining the property is 
$250,000 annually.  Ms. Hodges said the desirable approach for hotel management 
would be a private-public partnership.  Ms. Hodges welcomed any support and 
assistance in the promotion of the development.  She can be reached at 
248.641.0197 or via e-mail at michele@troychamber.com.   
 
Mr. Miller noted that the City will release a non-positional informational brochure to 
residents prior to the April 5 th election day. 
 

___________ 
 
Chairman Littman requested a recess at 9:00 p.m. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 9:10 p.m. 

___________ 
 
 

10. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 202) – Article 28.30.02 
Outdoor Storage of Commercial and Recreational Vehicles in M-1 Light Industrial 
District 
 
Mr. Miller reviewed the latest modified draft ordinance text relating to outdoor 
storage of commercial and recreational vehicles in the M-1 zoning district.   
 
Discussion followed with respect to Section 28.30.02.D.2.  The section relates to 
screening from abutting non-M-1 properties and abutting rights-of-way; i.e., 6-foot 
high screen wall versus a berm.  There was further discussion with respect to 
performance specifications wherein the petitioner would determine the appropriate 
screening.   
 
Mr. Miller said a Special Use Request for a proposed commercial kennel is on the 
January 13, 2004 Regular Meeting agenda.  He noted that the Special Use will 
involve sharing an easement access with the abutting storage yard, and 
encouraged the Commissioners to inspect the site (1300 Souter).   
 
After a short discussion, it was the consensus of the Commission to delete 
references to the security plan (28.30.02.D.6.) and vehicle repair (28.30.02.D.3.). 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT JANUARY 6, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 7 - 
 

 
11. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 200) – Article 11.00.00 CR-1 

One Family Cluster 
 
Mr. Savidant reviewed the draft ordinance text developed by the CR-1 sub-
committee.   
 
There was discussion on Section 34.70.06.B. that relates to the setback provisions.   
 
There was further discussion on (1) creating a mechanism in the approval process 
that would provide continued funding for future maintenance, (2) enforcement of 
deed restrictions and (3) open space agreements.   
 
Chairman Littman stated that this item would be reviewed further at the January 27, 
2004 Special/Study meeting. 
 
 

12. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 199) – Article 03.40.00 Site 
Plan Approval 
 
Mr. Miller reviewed the draft ordinance text that incorporates the Planning 
Commission comments from their review and discussion at the December 2, 2003 
Special/Study Meeting.  He noted that the Planning Department added text to 
Section 03.41.07 requiring that applications for Final Site Condominium Approval 
shall include four (4) copies of the Condominium Master Deed and Condominium 
Bylaws.   
 
Mr. Vleck commented that the 1,000 square feet in area or greater for the 
development or construction of any accessory uses or structures, as referenced in 
Section 03.40.03.(5), may be excessive.   
 
Mr. Miller noted the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment is scheduled for a 
Public Hearing at the February 10, 2004 Regular Meeting. 
 
 

13. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 182) – Articles 12.00.00 and 
30.10.08  R-1T  One Family Cluster 
 
Mr. Miller reviewed the draft ordinance text that incorporates the Planning 
Commission comments from their review and discussion at the December 2, 2003 
Special/Study Meeting.  Mr. Miller noted that the proposed text has not substantially 
changed from the text that City Council referred back to the Commission. 
 
Sections 12.50.05 and 12.50.07 were discussed briefly.   
 
Mr. Schultz suggested that the last sentence under Section 12.50.05 with reference 
to pedestrian interconnectivity be deleted.  The Planning Commission did not reach 
a consensus on this suggestion. 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT JANUARY 6, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 8 - 
 

Mr. Miller noted the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment is scheduled for a 
Public Hearing at the February 10, 2004 Regular Meeting. 
 
 

14. TROY CHAMBER OF COMMERCE – Position on Civic Center Development and 
Regional Conference Center – Michelle Hodges 
 
Agenda item addressed earlier in meeting; refer to page 5. 
 

 
15. REVIEW OF JANUARY 13, 2004 REGULAR MEETING 

 
Items briefly discussed were: 
 
• Site Plan Review (SP-904) – 1071 Wheaton Building Proposed Industrial Building 

Addition, East of Stephenson Highway, North side of Wheaton, M-1 – Petitioner 
requested postponement 

 
• Special Use Approval (SU 322) – Proposed Commercial Kennel (Camp Bow 

Wow), East side of Souter, South of Maple, M-1 
 
§ ZOTA 202 – Outdoor Storage of Commercial & Recreational Vehicles in M-1 

Light Industrial District 
 
§ Election of Planning Commission Officers 

 
 

16. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
Mr. Chamberlain addressed four items.  (1) The screening of dumpsters with shrubbery, as 
implemented in South Carolina; (2) PUD 1 concerns with elevation and width of walkway 
for emergency vehicle access; (3) the City’s need to have an increase in its business and 
commercial tax base; and (4) a request to see the written law that relates to the sale of 
park space, i.e., civic center site.   
 
Mr. Miller confirmed that emergency vehicle access and pedestrian connection has been 
provided in the PUD 1 project.  Mr. Miller will provide the plan for the Commission’s review.   
 
Mr. Vleck questioned the procedure that is followed for the election of officers.   
 
Mr. Miller stated that nominations for the Chair and Vice Chair are received and voted on 
by the Commission at the first Regular Meeting of the year.  Nominations for 
representative and alternate representative to the Board of Zoning Appeals are received 
and voted on by the Commission, and forwarded to the City Council as a recommendation 
for approval.   



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT JANUARY 6, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 9 - 
 

 
Mr. Strat addressed the possibility of providing a buffer for the parking area on the 
northeast corner of Big Beaver and Crooks Roads, and asked the procedure to follow to 
get support from the DDA.   
 
Mr. Chamberlain suggested that Mr. Strat attend a DDA meeting and voice his comment.  
He noted that DDA members are very responsive and receptive of public comments. 
 
Mr. Waller distributed copies of the Wall Street Journal article dated December 24, 2003, 
titled “What’s New Urbanism Worth?”.  Mr. Waller also asked to see details and a copy of 
the traffic study submitted for the Lord & Taylor site plan.   
 
Mr. Schultz requested a copy of the Lord & Taylor traffic study also.   
 
Mr. Miller reported that the Shell service station located on the northwest corner of Crooks 
and Big Beaver Roads has been boarded up.  The Planning Department has not received 
any site plans for redevelopment of this location.   
 
 
 
 
 
ADJOURN 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission was adjourned at 10:40 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Lawrence Littman, Chairman 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\MINUTES\2004 PC Minutes\Draft\01-06-04 Special Study Meeting_Draft.doc  
 



City of Troy
G-01









ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – DRAFT                           Jan. 8, 2004 

1 

Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
 

A Regular meeting of the Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens was held on Thursday, 
January 8, 2004 at the Troy Community Center.  Chairman David Ogg called the meeting to 
order at 9:30 AM. 
 
Present: David Ogg, Chairman JoAnn Thompson, Member       
 Ed Forst, Vice-Chairman Steven Banch, Member  
 Jo Rhoads - Member Merrill Dixon, Member    
 Marie Hoag, Member Carla Vaughan, Staff   
   
Absent:    Bill Weisgerber, excused;  Jane Crowe    
   
Visitors:   Mary Kerwin, Gloria Dixon, James Berar  
 
Approval of Minutes   
 
Resolution # SC-2004-1-001 
Moved by Jo Rhoads 
Seconded by JoAnn Thompson 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of Dec. 4, 2003 be approved as submitted. 
 
Yes:  6   
No:  0   
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
Old Business: 
 
Rochester Senior Center Tour:   David Ogg reported that his calls to the Rochester Senior 
Center have not been returned and he will not be arranging a tour for the committee. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 9:45 a.m. followed by a presentation on the Civic Center with 
Michelle Hodges from the Troy Chamber of Commerce and Brain Wattles from Troy Citizens 
United.  Approximately 30 persons attended this informational session.   
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
David Ogg, Chairman 
 
 
Carla Vaughan, Secretary 

City of Troy
G-01



 1 

LIBRARY BOARD MINUTES - DRAFT JANUARY 8, 2004 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Library Board was held Thursday, January 8, 2004 at the 
Office of the Library Director.  Joanne Allen, Chairman, called the meeting to order at 
7:30 P.M.   
 
ROLL CALL PRESENT: Joanne Allen 
   Lynne Gregory 
   Brian Griffen 
   Nancy Wheeler 
   Audre Zembrzuski 
   Steve Zhang, Student Rep. 
   Brian Stoutenburg, Library Director 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was given 
 
Resolution #LB-2004-01-001 
Moved by ZembrzuskiD 
Seconded by Wheeler 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of December 11, 2003 be approved 
Yes:  5—Allen, Gregory, Griffen, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No:  0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Reviewed Agenda entries 
 
Resolution #LB-2004-01-002 
Moved by Wheeler 
Seconded by Gregory 
 
RESOLVED, That the Agenda be approved as amended adding 8 H.  SLC Report 
Yes:  5—Allen, Gregory, Griffen, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No:  0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS 
Reviewed the net cost figures for a Troy household for library service ($129) and the 
Suburban Library Cooperative current non-resident fee of $100, and the expectation 
that it will double shortly to $200.  Also reviewed that of the 57,624 cardholders at the 
library, 75% were Troy residents.  The remaining 25% is comprised of people who 
either work in Troy, go to school in Troy, live in an area with which we have reciprocity 
with the local library, or have purchased a non-resident card. 
 
REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS 
Director’s report. 
New lights are being installed in the Youth Services Area; Rhonda Gowler Greene who 

City of Troy
G-01



 2 

is the author of the book selected for the Michigan Reads! 2004 program will visit out 
library on April 17th before the statewide kickoff. 
 
Board Member comments.   
• Zembrzuski asked about where the donation money goes.  The donor can give to 

the Friends of the Library or directly to the City.  If it is given to the City, it goes into 
the General Fund. 

• Griffen said that he was planning on attending the next Friends of the Library 
meeting.  

• Wheeler asked about the Memorial donation procedures and for the Library to 
review them and make changes necessary to insure promptness in notification to 
parties affected.  

 
Friends of the Library.   
A Finance Committee has been appointed to address issues of efficiency of procedures.  
Three Board Member positions will be vacant April 1, 2004.  The Gift Shop has changed 
its display approach now that the holiday season is over.   
 
Gifts.    
Seven gifts totaling $685.00 were received. 
 
Informational Items.   
None.   
 
Contacts and Correspondence.    
11 written comments from the public were reviewed. 
 
Public Participation.  There was no public participation. 
 
SLC Report. 
The SLC Board approved a $500 extra payment for the Systems Librarian who covered 
for the Director during maternity leave.  The annual leave and sick leave policies were 
revised.  Changes were made to the evaluation procedure for the SLC Director. 
 
The Library Board meeting adjourned at 8:20 P.M. 
 

 
 
                  
Joanne Allen 
Chair 
 
 
Brian Stoutenburg 
Recording Secretary 



Parks and Recreation Advisory Board - DRAFT                                     January 8, 2004 

PARKS AND RECREATION ADVISORY BOARD 
 
A regular meeting of the Troy Parks and Recreation Advisory Board was held Thursday, 
January 8, 2003 at the Troy Community Center, room 503.  Chairperson, Kathleen 
Fejes called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m. 
 
Present:  Kathleen Fejes, member  Merrill Dixon, member 
   Ida Edmunds, member  Doug Bordas, member 
   Tom Krent, member   Jeff Stewart, member 
   Janice Zikakis, member  Stu Alderman, staff 
   Jeff Biegler, staff   Carol K. Anderson, staff 
    
 
Absent:  Meaghan Kovacs, Amy Kerns, Orestes Kaltsounis. 
 
Visitors:  Doug Smith, Michelle Hodges, Kimberly Kovac 
 
Resolution # PR - 2004 - 01 - 001 
Moved by Krent 
Seconded by Zikakis 
 
RESOLVED, that the minutes from November 13, 2003 be approved as submitted.   
 
Yeas:   All 
Nays:   None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
A. Surplus Parcels - Doug Smith spoke to the Board about City owned remnant parcel 
land sales.  The City owns about 50 small parcels of land that were remaining from road 
projects.  Some may add value to the park property bank while most would be difficult to 
maintain and serve few people.  Park Board members should contact Carol Anderson or 
Doug Smith to offer input on the potential sale of these properties.   
 
B. Creating A Campus - Troy Civic Center - Michelle Hodges and Kimberly Kovac from 
the Chamber of Commerce spoke regarding the Civic Center site and building a hotel 
and conference center on it.  Michelle distributed a hand-out listing the advantages to 
the City if one were built.   
 
C. Community Center Fees - City Council has authorized the City Manager to set fees 
for the Community Center recreation passes using the distributive method.  Absent any 
objection from Council, the fees will be raised 10% to help cover expenses.   
 
Resolution # PR - 2004 - 01 - 002 
Moved by Krent 
Seconded by Bordas 

City of Troy
G-01



Parks and Recreation Advisory Board - DRAFT                                     January 8, 2004 

 
RESOLVED, that the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board endorses managements 
action in setting the recreation fee at the new rate.   
 
Ayes:    All 
Nays:    None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
A. Soccer Field Usage - This item was postponed until the February meeting.   
 
Staff Reports 

1) Directors Report - At the annual conference of the Michigan Recreation and 
Parks Association in February, Carol Anderson will be accepting the facility design 
award for the Community Center.   
 
 The Cricket Association will be informing staff of their proposed contribution for 
development of a field on the Livernois site.  The football organization considered the 
site but found it inadequate due to the limited parking.  City Council will be updated on 
this matter in February.   
 
 On Tuesday, January 13, 2004 we will host a “Sports Day Event” in which we will 
be celebrating and recognizing groups, organizations and individuals that have 
contributed to the pursuit of athletics and sports in Troy.   
 

2) Recreation Report - Community Kaleidoscope will be at Smith Middle School 
on January 24, 2004.  Various departments are involved in this event.   
 

3) Parks Report - The landscape project on Big Beaver and Rochester Roads 
has been completed.   
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 9:35 p.m. 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Kathleen Fejes, Chairperson 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Mary Williams, Recording Secretary 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT                     January 12, 2004 

Page 1 of 3 

 
A regular meeting of the Liquor Advisory Committee was held on Monday, January 12, 
2004 in the Lower Level Conference Room of Troy City Hall, 500 West Big Beaver 
Road.  Chairman Max K. Ehlert called the Meeting to order at 7:01 p.m. 
  
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
  PRESENT: Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
    Henry W. Allemon 
    Alex Bennett 
    Anita Elenbaum 
    W. Stan Godlewski 
    James C. Moseley 
    James R. Peard 
    Emily Polet, Student Representative 
    Carolyn Glosby, Assistant City Attorney 
    Sergeant Thomas J. Gordon 
    Pat Gladysz 
 
  ABSENT: None 
 
 
Resolution to Approve Minutes of December 8, 2003 Meeting  
 
Resolution # LC2004-01-001 
Moved by Allemon 
Seconded by Godlewski 
 
RESOLVED, that the Minutes of the December 8, 2003 meeting of the Liquor Advisory 
Committee be approved. 
 
Yes:  All-7  
No:  None 
Absent: None 
 
_____________________________________________________________________  
 
Agenda Items: 
 
1. FOX & HOUND OF MICHIGAN, INC., requests to transfer ownership of 2003 

Class C licensed business, located at 1937 W. Maple, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland 
County, from Housefield, LLC; transfer location to 1965 W. Maple, Troy, MI 
48084, Oakland County; and requests a new entertainment permit and new 
official permit (food).  [MLCC REQ ID#233626] 

 The proposed new restaurant would be called Bailey’s Pub & Grille 

City of Troy
G-01



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT                     January 12, 2004 

Page 2 of 3 

 
Present to answer questions from the committee were Gary Judd, Scott Edwards, and 
Tina Adle.   
 
A restaurant called “Bailey’s Pub & Grille” will open soon in a 9,670 square foot tenant 
space in Cambridge Crossings.  This company currently has two Michigan 
establishments, located in Canton (which opened in 1998) and Dearborn (which 
opened in 2000).  They will offer a full-service, mid-priced menu.  The floor plan shows 
three different rooms, with availability of reserving a room for a private party.  There will 
be seating for 288 patrons.  They will offer entertainment in the form of billiard tables, 
large-screen televisions, and golf games.  There will be no live entertainment or 
dancing.  They plan to employ approximately 30-40 servers, all of which will be trained 
in the TIPS/TAMS program.  All employees are required to maintain a “drink log” on 
each patron.  When a guest orders his fifth drink, the drink will not be served until a 
manager assesses the situation (length of visit, amount of food consumed).  The 
information is logged and reviewed by upper management on an ongoing basis.   
 
Sgt. Gordon stated that the tenant space is undergoing renovation and final inspections 
from the Building Department have not been performed. 
 
Resolution #LC2004-01-002 
Moved by Moseley 
Seconded by Godlewski 
 
RESOLVED, that FOX & HOUND OF MICHIGAN, INC. be allowed to transfer 
ownership of the Class C licensed business, located at 1937 W. Maple, Troy, MI 48084, 
Oakland County, from Housefield, LLC to 1965 W. Maple, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland 
County, and be granted a new entertainment permit and new official permit.    
 
Yes:  All-7  
No:  None 
Absent: None  
 
 
____________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
Carolyn Glosby, assistant City Attorney, brought one item to the attention of the 
Committee. 
 
State of Michigan Attorney General, Michael Cox, recently issued an Opinion on the 
MLCC regulation that illuminated alcohol-related signs cannot be displayed in certain 
retail establishments.  In his Opinion, he stated that this provision is unconstitutional. 
 
 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT                     January 12, 2004 

Page 3 of 3 

Sgt. Gordon discussed two Informational Items from the Agenda.  
  

6.    KNIGHTS OF COLUMBUS, ST. JOSEPH CHALDEAN COUNCIL NO. 
9154, requests to transfer location (governmental unit) of 2003 Club 
licensed business from 35220 Mound, Sterling Heights, MI 48310, 
Macomb County, to 36949 Dequindre, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County.   
[MLCC REQ ID# 233780]   Current site of Asia Mart market 

 
This item will most likely be on next month’s agenda. 
 
7. HAN MI ORIENTAL MART, INC., requests a New Specially Designated 

Distributor - New Specially Designated Merchant License located at 5060 
Rochester Rd, Troy, MI, 48085, Oakland County.  [MLCC REQ ID# 
235659]  

 
  There is a SDD/SDM license available at this time. 
 
 
 
The Meeting adjourned at 7:31 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
      __________________________________ 
      Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
 
 
 
      __________________________________ 
      Patricia A. Gladysz, Clerk-Typist 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT JANUARY 13, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chairman Littman at 7:30 p.m. on January 13, 2004, in the Council Chambers of the Troy 
City Hall. 
 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Gary Chamberlain Walter Storrs 
Lynn Drake-Batts 
Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
Mark J. Vleck 
David T. Waller 
Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Kathy Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2004-01-004 
Moved by:  Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That Mr. Storrs be excused from attendance at this meeting.   
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Storrs 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

SPECIAL USE REQUEST 
 
3. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU 322) – Camp Bow Wow, 

Proposed Commercial Kennel, East side of Souter (1300 Souter), South of Maple, 
Section 34 – M-1 

City of Troy
G-01



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT JANUARY 13, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed Camp Bow Wow Commercial Kennel.  Mr. Savidant reported that it is the 
recommendation of the Planning Department to approve the special use and site 
plan applications as submitted.   
 
The petitioners, Robert and Ann Roth of 1305 Kenilworth Place, Clawson, were 
present.   
 
Heidi Flammang, Camp Bow Wow franchise representative, 11070 Lincoln Avenue 
#153, Parker, Colorado, was also present. 
 
Discussion was held with regard to the type of fencing that was proposed.  It was 
the recommendation of Mr. Chamberlain that the petitioner provide separate posts 
for the chain link and cedar fencing so that the fences would be able to withstand 
wind load.   
 
Mr. Roth agreed.  He noted the perimeter of the site would be fenced for the 
purposes of screening the dogs’ visibility and providing a sound barrier.   
 
Chairman Littman informed the petitioners that because they did not specify 
grooming or obedience as special uses for the facility at this time, they would be 
required to come before the Commission should they desire to incorporate those 
special uses in the future.   
 
Ms. Flammang provided a brief background of the Camp Bow Wow franchise and 
highlighted features of the dog care and kennel facility.   
 
Mr. Chamberlain asked if the building is one or two stories.   
 
Mr. Roth replied that one section of the building is two-story but that section is not 
associated with the use of the kennel facility.  Mr. Roth indicated they would be 
using that section as a break room for employees. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Scott Evans, co-owner of F.A.T.S., Inc., 1330 Souter, was present.  Mr. Evans said 
F.A.T.S., Inc. owns the building adjacent to the proposed Special Use and the 
vacant lot to the rear.  Mr. Evans spoke on behalf of himself and a business partner 
who was in the audience but unable to speak because of an illness.  Mr. Evans said 
their concern is the safety of the dogs and owners during drop-off and pick-up 
times, noting the easement provides limited space for the dogs and their owners.  
He also indicated that heavy truck traffic is present in the area.  They believe the 
proposed Special Use puts a burden on the easement and creates a safety factor. 
 
Mr. Miller reported that City ordinance specifically exempts M-1 districts from the 
requirement of a 5-foot walkway. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT JANUARY 13, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

Ms. Flammang commented that three out of four of their franchise facilities are 
located on busy, major streets, and noted their clientele are very focused on the 
safety of their dogs.  Ms. Flammang said that she was confident the petitioners 
would responsibly communicate any safety concerns to their potential clients. 
 
Discussion followed with respect to providing a concrete or asphalt sidewalk along 
the ingress/egress easement to the front entrance.  It was determined that should 
the petitioners provide the sidewalk, the landscaping requirements would still be 
met. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Mr. Roth displayed several photographs of the proposed building and plan layout.  
He indicated that it is their intention to remove the vestibule area that would allow 
some space for a walkway on the north side of the building.   
 
Mr. Schultz asked for clarification on the number of canines that can be 
accommodated for boarding and day care.   
 
Ms. Roth replied that the facility could accommodate the boarding of 60 canines.  
She does not anticipate having more than 60 canines at one time, but the facility 
could accommodate up to 100 canines for day care.  Ms. Roth confirmed that there 
is a back door from the building for the dogs to exit to the outdoor play area and 
outdoor run.   
 
Resolution # PC-2004-01-005 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That the Special Use Approval, pursuant to Section 28.30.08 of the 
Zoning Ordinance, as requested for the proposed Camp Bow Wow Commercial 
Kennel, located on the east side of Souter, south of Maple Road, Section 34, within 
the M-1 Zoning District, be granted, subject to the following condition: 
 
1. That a sidewalk or paved area from the parking on the north side of the building 

to the front entrance be provided between the building and the cross access 
easement for the ingress/egress of the neighbors.   

 
Discussion on the motion. 
 
Chairman Littman asked Mr. Evans if the provision of a paved area eases his 
concerns.   
 
Mr. Evans said the paved area as proposed still does not provide a safe area for the 
clientele and their dogs during drop-off and pick-up times.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT JANUARY 13, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

Chairman Littman responded that the petitioners and clientele are very concerned 
with the safety of the dogs, and he encouraged Mr. Evans to continue to work with 
the petitioners for a good solution to the safety concern.   
 
Vote on the motion. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Storrs 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2004-01-006 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That the Preliminary Site Plan Approval, as requested for the 
proposed Camp Bow Wow Commercial Kennel, located on the east side of Souter, 
south of Maple Road, Section 34, within the M-1 Zoning District, be granted, subject 
to the following condition: 
 
1. That a sidewalk or hard-surfaced area from the parking on the north side of the 

building to the front entrance be provided between the building and the 30-foot 
wide easement for access to the rear of the building.   

 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Storrs 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 
 

4. PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 202) – 
Outdoor Storage of Commercial and Recreational Vehicles in M-1 Light Industrial 
District. 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the two draft versions of the proposed zoning 
ordinance text amendments relating to the outdoor storage of commercial and 
recreational vehicles in the M-1 light industrial district.  Mr. Miller reported that the 
updated version dated 01-08-04 incorporates proposed language with respect to 
screening that is the standard ordinance screening text for all outdoor storage 
facilities.  He noted the proposed text provides flexibility to the Planning 
Commission to base its screening determination on usage.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT JANUARY 13, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

Chairman Littman noted the lettering and numbering of the proposed text in the 
Updated Version dated 01-08-04 is incorrect.  Appropriate corrections will be made 
by the Planning Department.   
 
Mr. Strat questioned if the intent of the proposed ordinance text is to provide 
flexibility for parking in the M-1 district in general or only in mini-warehouse or self-
storage developments.  He also voiced concern about the mechanism for a 
screening system; i.e., screening for various heights of vehicles.  He suggested that 
the proposed verbiage provide the petitioner with the discretion of providing 
appropriate screening.   
 
Mr. Miller explained that the proposed text under discussion tonight addresses 
flexibility in parking for mini-warehouse and self-storage developments only.  An 
effort is coming forward that relates to City Council’s direction to review existing 
parking lots in the M-1 zoning district for the purpose of providing storage for 
commercial vehicles.   
 
A lengthy discussion was held with respect to the type of screening; i.e., natural 
barrier, wall, or berm.   
 
Mr. Miller stated that because the proposed text relating to screening is the 
standard ordinance text for all outdoor storage facilities, he recommended that all 
zoning ordinance text relating to screening for all zoning districts be revisited should 
the Commission choose to revise the text for mini-warehouse and self-storage 
developments.   
 
Resolution # PC-2004-01-007 
Moved by: Waller 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That Article 28.30.02, Article 40.21.83 and Article 04.20.128 of the 
Zoning Ordinance be tabled for thirty (30) days to allow the Planning Department to 
research and bring back to the Commission all the relevant Zoning Ordinance text 
that should be revisited with respect to berm, wall and/or evergreen screening; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Public Hearing remains open until that 
time.     
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
 
Chairman Littman announced that the Public Hearing would remain open for the 
thirty (30) day postponement should  the motion on the floor be approved.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT JANUARY 13, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

Vote on the motion. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Storrs 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Miller suggested that screening requirements for the M-1 district, as discussed, 
be reviewed by the Tree Preservation/Landscaping/Walls sub-committee.   
 
 

5. ELECTION OF PLANNING COMMISSION OFFICERS - 2004 
 
Resolution # PC-2004-01-008 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That David Waller and Gary Chamberlain be nominated to serve as 
Chair and Vice Chair of the Planning Commission, respectively, for 2004, and that 
Thomas Strat and Robert Schultz be recommended to the City Council as the 
Commission’s Board of Zoning Appeals representative and alternate, respectively, 
for 2004; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That nominations be closed and that these officers 
be elected and representatives recommended, as indicated.   
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Storrs 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

6. ESTABLISHMENT OF MEETING SCHEDULE – 2004 
 
Mr. Miller noted that the Planning Department’s written explanation for the 
establishment of the Planning Commission meeting schedule incorrectly states that 
it is in accordance with the Planning Commission By-Laws.  It should read in 
accordance with the Open Meetings Act.   
 
Mr. Waller requested that the Public Notice of Planning Commission meeting dates 
specify the third column as “Special/Study” meeting dates rather than simply “Study” 
meeting dates.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT JANUARY 13, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 7 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2004-01-009 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Planning Commission hereby establishes the 
following schedule for their meetings during the calendar year 2004: 
 
1. Regular Meetings will be held on the second Tuesday of each month. 
2. Special/Study Meetings will be held on the first and fourth Tuesday of each 

month, as necessary, with the exception of June 1st, July 6th, September 7th, 
and December 28th. 

3. If additional Special/Study Meetings become necessary, Alternate 
Special/Study Meeting dates may be set at the discretion of the Commission.   

 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Storrs 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
Mr. Miller reported on the following items: 
 
§ City Council made no reappointment to the Planning Commission at their January 

12, 2004 Meeting; one Planning Commission term remains open for reappointment.  
§ The legal opinion on the establishment of a Joint Committee was an informational 

item to City Council at their January 12, 2004 Meeting.  The item received no 
response from City Council.  It is Mr. Szerlag’s intention to go forward with the 
process.  Mr. Szerlag would like the Planning Commission to appoint three or four 
members to the Joint Committee, the number to be determined by the Planning 
Commission.  City staff assigned to the Joint Committee are:  Assistant City 
Manager-Services, Planning Director, Real Estate & Development Director and 
Building & Zoning Director.   

§ A tour of the Saleen Facility is scheduled at 6:00 p.m. on Tuesday, January 27.  The 
Special/Study Meeting will begin at 7:30 p.m. 

 
Mr. Chamberlain addressed the adjacent property to the Camp Bow Wow Commercial 
Kennel that was approved tonight.  He reported that the adjacent property contains junk 
and tires that could contribute to the West Nile Virus by providing a breeding place for 
mosquitoes.  He said he hopes the City has the leverage to inspect the property and issue 
violation notices to the property owner that would effectuate a general cleanup of the 
property and a clearing of all devices that could potentially breed mosquitoes.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT JANUARY 13, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 8 - 
 

Mr. Waller said he received an e-mail message relative to the Governor signing a bill that 
provides increased power to municipalities and units of government to clean up blighted 
areas.  Mr. Waller said he would provide the information at the next meeting. 
 
Mr. Strat suggested that the Fire Marshall inspect the property for potential fire hazards. 
 
Mr. Strat spoke with respect to the legal opinion on the Joint Committee.  He said it was 
his intent, as well as he thought was the Planning Commission’s intent, to create a special, 
small and temporary committee, not a standing committee.  He asked if the Legal 
Department would consider revising its legal opinion, as it appears the legal opinion relates 
only to a standing committee.   
 
Mr. Motzny said that research for the legal opinion was initiated by determining the 
purpose of the Joint Committee.  He noted a standing committee was not defined in the 
Charter.  The Legal Department utilized and based its legal opinion on information 
received from the City Manager.  It was understood that the Joint Committee would 
continue to meet on a regular basis to discuss various issues, more in line with the 
definition of a standing committee.  Mr. Motzny indicated that a more definite opinion might 
be provided should the purpose of the Joint Committee be clearly defined.    
 
Discussion followed.  It was the consensus of the Commission that the purpose of the Joint 
Committee is to create a temporary committee wherein communication on current specific 
issues and procedural concerns would be discussed, wherein the bodies would work 
together as a means of “meeting the minds” and a “think tank”.  It was also the consensus 
of the Commission to postpone the appointment of any Commission members until the 
guidelines of the Joint Committee are established.   
 
Mr. Wright suggested that a rotation of City Council members attending the Joint 
Committee would eliminate the Joint Committee as being defined as a standing committee.   
 
Mr. Motzny said he would review the legal opinion regarding the Joint Committee and 
provide further information at the January 27, 2004 Special/Study Meeting. 
 
Mr. Schultz announced that in light of the Planning Commission’s intent to review and have 
input in the Planning Commission budget process, he would like to bring forward a 
proposal that would change the title and responsibilities of “Vice Chair” to “Vice 
Chair/Treasurer”.   
 
It was determined that this revision would require a change in the By-Laws.  City 
Management will review the Planning Commission By-Laws and prepare appropriate 
language to incorporate the proposed revision in the By-Laws.   
 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT JANUARY 13, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 9 - 
 

 
ADJOURN 
 
The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission was adjourned at 8:35 p.m. 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
David T. Waller, Chair-Elect 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 
G:\MINUTES\2004 PC Minutes\Draft\01-13-03 Regular Meeting_Draft.doc  
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                         JANUARY 20, 2004 

 1

The Chairman, Mark Maxwell, called the meeting of the Board of Zoning Appeals to 
order in Council Chambers, at 7:30 P.M., on Tuesday, January 20, 2004. 
 
PRESENT:  Kenneth Courtney    
   Marcia Gies        
   Michael Hutson        
   Matthew Kovacs 
   Mark Maxwell 
    
ALSO PRESENT: Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
   Carolyn Glosby, Assistant City Attorney 
   Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ABSENT:  Christopher Fejes 
   Mark Vleck 
 
Motion by Maxwell 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to excuse Mr. Fejes from this meeting as he is out of town. 
 
Yeas:  5 – Gies, Hutson, Kovacs, Maxwell, Courtney 
Absent: 1 – Vleck 
 
MOTION TO EXCUSE MR. FEJES CARRIED 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF DECEMBER 16, 2003 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Hutson 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of December 16, 2003 as written. 
 
Yeas:  5 – Gies, Hutson, Kovacs, Maxwell, Courtney 
Absent: 2 – Fejes, Vleck 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – APPROVAL OF ITEMS #3 THROUGH #5 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to approve Items #4 and #5 in accordance with the suggested resolutions 
printed in the Agenda Explanation, and to approve Item #3 for a period of nine (9) 
months. 

City of Troy
G-01



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                         JANUARY 20, 2004 

 2

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
ITEM #3 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  BRB PROPERTIES JOINT VENTURE, 1655 W. 
BIG BEAVER, for relief of the Zoning Ordinance to have a 6’ high wood fence in lieu of 
the 6’ high screening wall required along portions of the south property line. 
 
The petitioner is requesting relief of portions of the 6’ high masonry-screening wall 
required by Section 39.10.01 of the Zoning Ordinance along the south property line 
where the site abuts residentially zoned property.  The petitioner has constructed a 6’ 
high wood fence in lieu of the masonry wall in certain areas where they are trying to 
preserve trees.  This Board has granted this relief on a yearly basis since January 1984.  
This item last appeared before this Board at the meeting of January 2001 and was 
granted a three (3) year renewal at that time.  Mr. Stimac further stated that the trees for 
which the variance was originally granted are no longer on the site. 
 
MOVED, to grant BRB Properties Joint Venture, 1655 W. Big Beaver, a nine (9) month 
renewal of relief of portions of the 6’ high masonry-screening wall required by Section 
39.10.01 of the Zoning Ordinance along the south property line where the site abuts 
residentially zoned property. 
 

• To allow the petitioner the opportunity to install the 6’ high screening wall 
required along portions of the south property line. 

• Trees are no longer on the site. 
 
ITEM #4 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  CATS BUILDING, 2100 W. BIG BEAVER, for 
relief of the 6’ high masonry-screening wall required along the north end of the west 
property line. 
 
The petitioner is requesting relief of the requirement to erect a 6’ high masonry-
screening wall along the west property line at the north end of this site.  The northern 
73’ of this property abuts residential zoning to the west and a 6’ high masonry-screening 
wall is required along that portion of the property by Section 39.10.01 of the Zoning 
Ordinance.  This Board originally granted relief for this wall in 1983, based on the fact 
that the adjacent land was undeveloped and used as a retention pond.  In January 
2001, this Board granted a three (3) year renewal of this variance.  Conditions remain 
the same and we have no objections or complaints on file. 
 
MOVED, to grant CATS Building, 2100 W. Big Beaver, a three (3) year renewal of a 
variance for relief of the required 6’ high masonry-screening wall required along the 
north end of the west property line. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not cause an adverse effect to surrounding property. 

 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                         JANUARY 20, 2004 

 3

ITEM #5 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  FAITH APOSTOLIC CHURCH, 6710 CROOKS, 
for relief of the 4’-6” high masonry screening wall required along the north, east and 
south sides of off-street parking area, which abut residentially zoned property. 
 
The petitioner is requesting renewal of a variance granted by this Board since July 
1981, for relief of the 4’-6” high masonry wall required by Section 39.10.01 of the Zoning 
Ordinance on the north, east and south sides of their off-street parking areas, which 
abut residential zoned property.  This item last appeared before this Board at the 
meeting of January 2001 and was granted a three (3) year renewal at that time. 
Conditions remain the same and we have no objections or complaints on file. 
 
MOVED, to grant Faith Apostolic Church, 6710 Crooks, a three (3) year renewal of a 
variance for relief of the 4’-6” high masonry screening wall required along the north, east 
and south sides of off-street parking areas, which abut residentially zoned property. 

 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 

 
Yeas:  5 – Hutson, Kovacs, Maxwell, Courtney, Gies 
Absent: 1 – Vleck 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE ITEMS #3 THROUGH #5 CARRIED 
 
ITEM #6 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  JOHN POTVIN, 5648 CLEARVIEW DR., for 
relief of Section 30.10.02 of the Zoning Ordinance to construct a family room addition, 
which would result in a 28’ rear yard setback where 45’ is required. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Zoning Ordinance to 
construct a family room addition.  The site plan submitted indicates a family room 
addition at the rear of the home with a proposed 28’ rear yard setback.  Section 
30.10.02 requires a 45’ minimum rear yard setback in R-1B Zoned Districts. 
 
This item last appeared before this Board at the meeting of November 18, 2003 and 
was postponed to allow the petitioner the opportunity to meet with his builder and 
determine if this addition could be made smaller; and also, to allow the petitioner the 
opportunity to explore the possibility of constructing this addition along the north wall of 
this home.  The petitioner has submitted a revised plan, which indicates a smaller 
addition resulting in a 32’ rear yard setback.   
 
Mr. Potvin was present and stated that this was his third appearance before the Board 
and he had worked with his architect and determined that this location was the best 
place for this addition, and also was able to make it smaller. They had determined that 
the addition could not be placed on the north wall. Mr. Potvin said that he believes he 
has a hardship with the land due to the fact that when his home was constructed it was 
setback as far as possible from the front of his lot, and therefore, he does not have a  
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                         JANUARY 20, 2004 

 4

ITEM #6 – con’t. 
 
large setback at the back of the lot.  Mr. Potvin also indicated that he wished to put in 
this addition to provide a TV room for his family.  
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are two (2) written approvals on file.  There is one (1) written objection on file. 
 
Mr. Hutson stated that he thought Mr. Potvin had a beautiful home; however, he did not 
feel that there was a hardship with the land, which would justify such a large variance. 
 
Mr. Potvin stated that he had received approval from the Beach Forest Association for 
this addition. 
 
Mr. Maxwell asked Mr. Potvin what would be unique with the conformation of his 
property.  Mr. Potvin stated that he feels that the hardship is due to the fact that his 
home was constructed approximately 70’ from the roadway, and therefore, does not 
allow for a large amount of space at the back of his property. 
 
Mrs. Gies stated that she also felt this was a very large variance request and did not 
see a hardship with the land and also pointed out that there was not a full board 
present. 
 
Mr. Maxwell asked Mr. Potvin if he wished to table this request to allow for the 
opportunity of a full board, but Mr. Potvin stated he would rather proceed with this 
request. 
 
Mr. Kovacs stated that he thought Mr. Potvin had a magnificent home; however, could 
not find a reason in the special findings to justify such a large variance request. 
 
Motion by Kovacs 
Supported by Hutson 
 
MOVED, to deny the request of John Potvin, 5648 Clearview Drive, for relief of Section 
30.10.02 of the Zoning Ordinance to construct a family room addition, which would 
result in a 32’ rear yard setback where 45’ is required. 
 

• Petitioner did not demonstrate a hardship running with the land. 
• Unable to find any special findings, which would support this variance request. 

 
Yeas:  4 – Kovacs, Courtney, Gies, Hutson 
Nays:  1 – Maxwell 
Absent: 1 – Vleck 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                         JANUARY 20, 2004 

 5

ITEM #6 – con’t. 
 
MOTION TO DENY REQUEST CARRIED 
 
ITEM #7 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  HARRY & SUNNIE KWON, 38921 
DEQUINDRE, for relief to install a 6’ high wood fence in lieu of a 6’ high masonry 
screen wall for a 35’ long portion of the west property line where the property borders 
residential zoned property.  The 6’ high screen wall is required by Section 39.10.01 of 
the Zoning Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief to install a 6’ high wood 
fence in lieu of a 6’ high masonry screen wall for a 35’ long portion of the west property 
line where the property borders residential zoned property.  This portion of the site has 
an underground pipeline easement.  The 6’ high screen wall is required by Section 
39.10.01 of the Zoning Ordinance. 
 
This item was heard before this Board at the meeting of September 17, 2003 and was 
denied based on a determination of the City Attorney’s office that the “right of way” 
agreement did not prohibit the construction of a structure on this easement.  On 
December 16, 2003 the Board voted to reconsider this item based upon some new 
easement documents that were found.  At the December 16, 2003 meeting action on 
this item was postponed to allow for the publication of a new Public Hearing based on 
the vote to reconsider.  New hearing notices have been sent out regarding the request. 
 
Mr. Kwon was present and stated that he is willing to comply with the Zoning 
requirements and will abide by the decision of this Board.  Mr. Kwon also said that he 
would have put up the wall; however, Sun Oil would not allow the construction of a 
permanent structure in the easement.  Sun Oil has agreed to allow Mr. Kwon to put up a 
6’ high fence as long as this section could be removed if they had to have access to the 
pipeline. 
 
Mr. Hutson asked Mr. Kwon about the construction of the fence.  Mr. Kwon informed Mr. 
Hutson that originally they wished to put up a landscaped berm, but Sunoco would not 
allow a berm in the easement. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Michael Sucharski attorney for the development company of the land behind this 
property was present.  Mr. Sucharski stated that they object to this variance due to the 
fact that the developer does not feel a wood fence in the middle of the masonry wall 
would be aesthetically pleasing and also expressed concern over the maintenance of 
the wood fence.  Mr. Sucharski stated that a brick wall would be on either side of the 
wood fence, and feels that the future owner of the lot backing up to this property would 
object to the looks of this fence.  Mr. Sucharski also suggested that perhaps footings 
could be put in on either side of the pipeline and then perhaps the brick wall could be 
put in supported by some type of beam.   



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                         JANUARY 20, 2004 

 6

ITEM #7 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked for clarification regarding what Mr. Sucharski is looking for regarding 
aesthetics.  Mr. Sucharski said that they would like to see one look on this property 
rather than two different types of fencing.   Mr. Sucharski was concerned because they  
would have approximately four (4) lots, which would back up to this wall and he felt that 
it would not be aesthetically pleasing. 
 
Mr. Maxwell asked if this Board could recommend a landscaped berm along the entire 
property.  Mr. Stimac indicated that although he was not involved in the original 
negotiations with Sun Oil, he thought that a landscaped berm was one of the options 
investigated that Sun Oil would not allow on this easement. 
 
Mr. Kwon said that Sun Oil would not allow a berm in this easement because Sun Oil 
perceives this as a permanent structure.  Mr. Kwon further stated that the wooden fence 
was agreeable to Sun Oil, and would be able to be removed if Sun Oil needed to get to 
this pipeline.  Mr. Kwon also said that they were going to attempt to make this wooden 
fence match the masonry wall as much as possible, and stated that this was the final 
resolution agreed upon between Sun Oil and himself.  Mr. Maxwell stated that he would 
like to see some visual conformity along this wall.  Mr. Kwon said that they would make 
this fence look good on both sides and would try to make it look as much like the brick 
wall as possible.   
 
Mr. Kovacs said that he understood from Mr. Kwon’s comments that the wooden fence 
would look very much like the masonry wall.  Mr. Sucharski stated that he did not 
understand why the brick wall could not be put in, as the pipeline runs under the streets, 
and was also worried about the maintenance issue of the wood fence.  Mr. Kwon stated 
that there is nothing he can do, as Sun Oil dictates the requirements for this easement.  
Mr. Kovacs pointed out that the City has determined that Sun Oil has the right to limit 
what may be placed on this easement.  Mr. Maxwell stated that if this variance was 
granted, it would be on a renewable basis and any concerns regarding the appearance 
and/or maintenance of this fence would be addressed before it was renewed a second 
time.  
 
Mr. Stimac pointed out that many of the streets in the area pre-existed the easement , 
and there are certain regulations that the City must comply with regarding regulations of 
easement rights.  Mr. Stimac also stated that there are different requirements for public 
improvements compared to private property rights.  
 
No one else wished to be heard and the Public Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written approvals on file.  There is one (1) written objection on file. 
 
Mr. Stimac further stated that Mr. Kwon is proposing a wood fence, and he has not seen 
a wood fence that would exactly match a concrete wall.  He indicated that although it 
could be stained to come close to the look of the masonry wall, in his opinion you would  



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                         JANUARY 20, 2004 

 7

ITEM #7 – con’t. 
 
be able to tell them apart.  Mr. Stimac also said that he did not want the Board to think 
that this fence would look exactly like the brick wall. 
 
Mr. Maxwell asked if there was any way to build a brick type structure to match the rest 
of the wall.  Mr. Stimac said that it would be possible; however, he has not seen 
anything indicating that Sunoco would allow this type of structure.   Mr. Maxwell then  
said that it may be possible for this Board to grant a variance, which would not require 
any type of wall or screening.  Mr. Stimac confirmed that this Board could stipulate that  
nothing would be required.  Mr. Maxwell stated that he would be in favor of either just 
landscaping or absolutely nothing in this easement.  Mr. Hutson questioned Mr. Maxwell 
regarding his statement, and Mr. Maxwell clarified that he did not mean for Mr. Kwon to 
put in landscaping but that the future residents would put in the landscaping on their 
side of the property and if a screening wall was not required, at least it would be 
aesthetically pleasing. 
 
Mr. Kwon expressed concern about not having anything to separate this property from 
the residential property.  Mr. Kwon felt that the screen wall would protect the residents 
and was concerned about the liability involved if this property was not separated from 
the residential property. 
 
Mr. Hutson asked what would be required to grant a variance.  Mr. Stimac informed the 
Board that Section 39.10.04 of the Ordinance allows the Board of Zoning Appeals to ” 
… waive or modify the requirement of a screen wall where cause can be shown that no 
good purpose would be served and also that such modifications would not be 
detrimental to the surrounding property…”     
 
Motion by Hutson 
Supported by Courtney 
 
MOVED, to grant Harry & Sunnie Kwon, 38921 Dequindre a one (1) year renewable 
variance to install a 6’ high wood fence in lieu of a 6’ high masonry screen wall for a 35’ 
long portion of the west property line where the property borders residential zoned 
property. 
 

• Wooden structure to be as close in appearance as possible to the masonry-
screen wall required by the Ordinance. 

• Fence will comply with the dictates of Sun Oil regarding what may be constructed 
in this easement. 

• One-year time frame will allow Board to study both appearance and need for 
maintenance. 

 
Yeas:  5 – Maxwell, Courtney, Gies, Hutson, Kovacs 
Absent: 1 – Vleck 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                         JANUARY 20, 2004 

 8

ITEM #7 – con’t. 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE FOR ONE (1) YEAR CARRIED 
 
Mr. Kovacs stated that he believes that this is the best solution the Board could arrive at 
due to the restrictions put on this property by Sun Oil. 
 
ITEM #8 - VARIANCE REQUESTED.  MR. & MRS. STEPHEN SLAVIK, 2949 
VINEYARDS DR., for relief to construct a new, enclosed swimming pool addition on the 
rear of the existing home.  This addition would result in an 18’ rear yard setback where 
Section 30.10.01 requires a 45’ rear yard setback in R-1A Zoning Districts. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Zoning Ordinance to 
construct a new, enclosed swimming pool addition on the rear of the existing home.  
The site plan submitted indicates the addition will result in an 18’ rear yard setback to 
the south property line.  Section 30.10.01 requires a 45’ rear yard setback in R-1A 
Zoning Districts. 
 
Mr. Slavik was present and stated that he was the owner of this home as well as a 
Building Contractor.  Mr. Slavik explained that the reason they chose this home was to 
be close to the school his daughter was attending.  Mr. Slavik stated that his wife needs 
water therapy twelve months out of the year and that is the main reason they wish to put 
in this pool addition.  This home is situated on a corner lot, which is long and narrow.  
The neighbor on the west would not be affected by this addition and the addition would 
be approximately 47’ to the side entry of the garage of the neighbor directly to the south.  
Mr. Slavik did not feel this addition would affect either neighbor and furthermore the 
addition would sit down in a “hollow” and would not be visible from the street.   
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are four (4) written approvals on file.  There is one (1) written objection on file. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked what the setback requirements were to put in a pool and Mr. Stimac 
explained that an in-ground or aboveground-uncovered pool could be placed within 6’ 
from the side or rear property line and it is a recommendation that it be placed 10’ from 
the house. 
 
Mr. Maxwell asked what the height of the addition was and Mr. Slavik said that he 
thought it was about 17’  to the peak of the addition. 
 
Mr. Kovacs clarified that a pool was considered an accessory structure and therefore if 
uncovered could be placed within 6’ of the property line.  Mr. Kovacs said that he 
thought this was a very unique situation.  
 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                         JANUARY 20, 2004 

 9

ITEM #8 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Hutson stated that he thought Mr. Slavik had a magnificent home, but was unable to 
find a hardship that ran with the land, which would justify a variance.  Mr. Hutson said  
that he feels that perhaps this lot is too small to support this type of an addition.  Mr. 
Hutson also said that he felt this was a very large variance request and feels that it 
violates the principles of zoning. 
 
Mr. Slavik said that he could understand Mr. Hutson’s position, but stated that his 
neighbors did approve of this proposed addition, and do not feel it would have an  
adverse effect on them.  Mr. Slavik also said that he feels it would add to the value of 
the neighborhood and anyone would like to have an addition like this one in his or her 
neighborhood. 
 
Mr. Maxwell asked about the dimensions of this pool.  Mr. Slavik said the pool was 
relatively small, approximately 16’ x 24’ and he would not want it any smaller.  Mr. 
Slavik also said that they wished to improve the quality of his and his wife’s life and this 
is why he would like the pool this size.  Mr. Maxwell asked if they could make the pool 
smaller, and Mr. Slavik said he would rather not, as he would like to have the room to 
walk around it and also would like to be able to place plants around it. 
 
Mr. Kovacs did not feel that the Board of Zoning Appeals had the authority to make a 
determination on pool enclosures and thought that these pool enclosures should go 
before City Council.   
 
Mr. Stimac said that City Council ultimately has the right to debate the issue of what 
setbacks should be; however the Ordinance does not allow an addition to the main 
home to be built within 6’ of the property line. 
 
Mr. Slavik asked that his item be postponed to allow for the opportunity to put this 
request before a full Board. 
 
Motion by Hutson 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of Mr. Stephen Slavik, 2949 Vineyards, for relief of the 
Zoning Ordinance to construct a new, enclosed swimming pool addition on the rear of 
the existing home, resulting in a 18’ rear yard setback, where a 45’ rear yard setback is 
required by Section 30.10.01 to the meeting of February 17, 2004. 
 

• To allow the opportunity for a full Board. 
 
Yeas:  5 – Courtney, Gies, Hutson, Kovacs, Maxwell 
Absent: 1 – Vleck 
 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                         JANUARY 20, 2004 

 10

ITEM #8 – con’t. 
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE REQUEST UNTIL MEETING OF FEBRUARY 17, 2004 
CARRIED 
 
ITEM #9 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  MR. & MRS. ANDREW BEZENAH, 2020 
CUMBERLAND, for relief to construct an addition resulting in the expansion of a non-
conforming structure. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Zoning Ordinance to 
construct an addition to the existing home.  This lot is a double front corner lot.  As 
such, Section 30.10.04 requires a 30’ front setback along both Cumberland and John R.  
The mortgage survey submitted indicates the existing house has only a 28.1’ front 
setback to John R.  This condition makes the existing home a legal non-conforming 
structure.  The proposed garage expansion and second floor master suite addition 
would continue the 28.1’ non-conforming front setback.  Section 40.50.04 prohibits 
expansions of non-conforming structures in a way that increases the non-conformity. 
 
Mr. Carey Greenberg of Lori Greenberg Builders and Mr. Andy Bezenah were present.  
Mr. Greenberg stated that they are not going to encroach any further into the setback.  
The Bezenah is a family of six and still growing and Mr. Greenberg stated that this 
addition would not only help out the Bezenah family but would also enhance the home.  
Mr. Greenberg went on to say that the Bezenahs are very happy in this area and would 
like to remain here.  
 
Mr. Courtney asked when the setback requirements were changed.  Mr. Stimac stated 
that  this home was constructed under the “old” R-1C standards, which were a 40’ front 
yard setback and a 30’ rear yard setback.  In the early 70’s these requirements were 
changed and a 40’ rear yard setback and a 30’ front yard setback were required.  Mr. 
Stimac also went on to say that this home was built with a 28’ front yard setback, which 
was not permitted by Ordinance.  Mr. Courtney asked if a variance was required at that 
time, and Mr. Stimac said that there is no record of a variance being granted at the time 
of original construction. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are ten (10) written approvals on file.  There are no written objections on file. 
 
Motion by Kovacs 
Supported by Gies 
 
 
 
 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                         JANUARY 20, 2004 

 11

ITEM #9 – con’t. 
 
MOVED, to grant Mr. & Mrs. Andrew Bezenah relief of Section 30.10.04 of the Zoning 
Ordinance to construct an addition, continuing a 28.1’ front setback where 30’ is 
required; and relief of Section 40.50.04, which prohibits expansions of non-conforming 
structures in a way that increases the non-conformity. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• A variance is necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of substantial 

property rights possessed by the subject property. 
• The new addition will not extend out any further into the setback. 

 
Yeas:  5 – Courtney, Gies, Hutson, Kovacs, Maxwell 
Absent: 1 – Vleck 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #10 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  AMERICAN MSC, INC., 2451 ELLIOTT, for 
relief to maintain an addition constructed without the required Building Permit resulting 
in a rear yard setback of 14’-8”.  Section 30.20.09 of the Zoning Ordinance requires a 
minimum 20’ rear yard setback in the M-1 Zoning District. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Zoning Ordinance to 
maintain an addition constructed without the required Building Permit.  An inspection of 
this property determined that an addition has been constructed on the rear of the 
existing building without obtaining the required permits.  A review of the subsequent 
plans submitted with the permit application indicates that the addition results in a rear 
yard setback of 14’-8”.  Section 30.20.09 of the Zoning Ordinance requires a minimum 
20’ rear yard setback in the M-1 (Light Industrial) Zoning District. 
 
Mr. Jon Behlar, Operations Manager for American MSC, Inc. was present and stated 
that their business has been in this area for a number of years and expands about 10% 
a year.  Mr. Behlar explained that the engineer for American MSC thought it would be a 
good idea to move two (2) compressors out of the building and put them in their own 
structure, which would remove them from the area where the people are located and 
which would help to keep the noise and dirt levels down.  Mr. Behlar hired a contractor 
and assumed that he had obtained the necessary permits; however, no permit was ever 
obtained.  Mr. Behlar apologized to the Board and explained that they are not trying to 
do anything illegally, but would like to be able to complete this construction. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Mr. Niraj Sarda, from First Industrial Realty, owner of this building was present.  Mr. 
Sarda explained that they had given the petitioner a letter stating that they would  
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                         JANUARY 20, 2004 

 12

ITEM #10 – con’t. 
 
approve this construction as long as all permits were obtained, and if American MSC, 
Inc. does not renew the present lease; the addition would be removed in order for them  
to retain the value of the building.  Mr. Maxwell asked if this addition takes away from 
the value of the building.  Mr. Sarda explained that as landlords most of their leases are 
set up so that any additions to a building are removed at the time of expiration of the 
lease. 
 
No one else wished to be heard and the Public Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written approvals or objections on file. 
 
Mr. Maxwell asked Mr. Behlar to again explain the reason they need the addition.  Mr. 
Behlar said that their shop is full of machinery and by moving out the compressors, they 
have opened up space for storage and also to use as a “staging area” for parts that are 
going out.  Also, they would like to get the compressors away from the people in the 
shop.  Mr. Maxwell asked Mr. Behlar if he understood that the landlord would require 
this addition be removed at the end of the lease, and Mr. Behlar said he did. 
 
Mr. Hutson asked if it was possible to grant a temporary variance.  Mr. Stimac said this 
was not a temporary structure as the Ordinance usually only recognizes structures such 
as tents as temporary structures.  Mr. Hutson then asked what would happen if a 
variance was granted and then the structure was removed.  Mr. Stimac explained that 
the variance would no longer be in effect. 
 
Mr. Maxwell stated that he did not feel that this variance would have an adverse effect 
to any of the surrounding property. 
 
Mr. Courtney informed Mr. Behlar that demolition of this addition would also require a 
Building Permit. 
 
Mr. Stimac asked Mr. Behlar to clarify the fact that two (2) different site plans have been 
submitted to the Building Department.  Mr. Behlar stated that he is quite sure that the 
setback is 14’-8”. 
 
Ms. Gies asked if the Building Department had inspected this addition.  Mr. Stimac 
stated that the Building Department does not do inspections on a structure until the 
proper permits are obtained. 
 
Motion by Kovacs 
Supported by Courtney 
 
 
 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                         JANUARY 20, 2004 

 13

ITEM #10 – con’t. 
 
MOVED, to grant American MSC, Inc., 2451 Elliott relief of Section 30.20.09 of the 
Zoning Ordinance to maintain an addition resulting in a rear yard setback of 14’-8” 
where 20’ is required in the M-1 (Light Industrial) Zoning District. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance does not permit the establishment of a prohibited use. 
• Variance relates only to the property described. 
• Literal enforcement of the Ordinance precludes full enjoyment of this property. 

 
Yeas:  5 – Courtney, Gies, Hutson, Kovacs, Maxwell 
Absent: 1 – Vleck 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #11 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  A.J. BOWMAN, 5615 JOHN R., for relief of the 
Zoning Ordinance to construct a detached garage resulting in a 9.4’ front yard setback 
to the south property line along Abbotsford.  Section 30.10.04 requires a 30’ minimum 
front yard setback in R-1C Zoning Districts. 
 
The petitioner was not present at the meeting. 
 
Motion by Kovacs 
Supported by Hutson 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of A.J. Bowman, 5615 John R., for relief of the Zoning 
Ordinance to construct a detached garage resulting in a 9.4’ front yard setback to the 
south property line along Abbotsford.  Section 30.10.04 requires a 30’ minimum front 
yard setback in R-1C Zoning Districts until the meeting of February 17, 2004. 
 

• To allow the petitioner the opportunity to be present. 
 
Yeas:  3 – Hutson, Kovacs, Maxwell 
Nays:  2 – Gies, Courtney 
Absent: 1 – Vleck 
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE REQUEST UNTIL THE MEETING OF FEBRUARY 17, 2004 
CARRIED 
 
Mr. Maxwell stated that he and Mr. Fejes will not be able to attend the meeting of 
February 17, 2004 and asked if the Board members would be willing to change the date 
of this meeting. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Hutson 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                         JANUARY 20, 2004 

 14

MOVED, to change the date of the meeting for February 2004. 
 

• To allow for the opportunity of a full Board. 
 
Yeas:  5 – Gies, Hutson, Kovacs, Maxwell, Courtney 
Absent: 1 – Vleck 
 
MOTION TO CHANGE MEETING DATE CARRIED 
 
The Board of Zoning Appeals meeting adjourned at 8:58 P.M. 
 
 
 
 
 
              
      Mark Maxwell, Chairman 
 
 
 
 
              
      Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL - DRAFT MINUTES   January 21, 2004 
 
 

 1 

A meeting of the Troy Youth Council (TYC) was held on Wednesday, January 21, 2004 at 7:00 
PM at the Community Center (Room 503), 3179 Livernois Road.  Christina Krokosky called the 
meeting to order at 7:04 p.m. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Emily Burns 

Chris Cheng (arrived 7:05 PM) 
Min Chong 
Juliana D’Amico (arrived 7:35 PM) 
Monika Govindaraj 
Eric Gregory  
Catherine Herzog  
Maniesh Joshi  
Christina Krokosky 
Manessa Shaw (arrived 7:07 PM) 
YuJing Wang (arrived 7:15 PM) 

MEMBERS ABSENT: Allister Chang 
Raymond Deng 
Andrew Kalinowski (excused) 
Matthew Michrina (excused) 
David Vennettilli (excused) 

ALSO PRESENT:   Laura Fitzpatrick, Assistant to the City Manager 
     
                                        
1. Roll Call 
2. Approval of Minutes 
 
Resolution # TY-2004-01- 001 
Moved by Herzog 
Seconded by Shaw 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of 12/17/03 be approved. 
 
Yes:  All - 9 
No:  None 
Absent:         Chang, D’Amico, Deng, Kalinowski, Michrina,  Vennettilli, Wang 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
3. Attendance Report: Noted and Filed 

This meeting: 11 present, 5 absent – 3 gave prior notification. 
4. Motion to Excuse Absent Members 
 
Resolution # TY-2004-01- 002 
Moved by Herzog 
Seconded by Shaw 
 
RESOLVED, That Kalinowski, Michrina, and Vennettilli shall be excused. 
 
Yes:  All – 9 

City of Troy
G-01



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL - DRAFT MINUTES   January 21, 2004 
 
 

 2 

No:  None 
Absent:         Chang, D’Amico, Deng, Kalinowski, Michrina, Vennettilli, Wang 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
5. Visitor: Barbara Holmes, Deputy City Clerk, speaking about Student Election Inspector jobs: 

employment opportunity and government work experience 
 
6. Civic Center Priority Task Force – update from Herzog and Shaw: Report to be presented 

to City Council at their regular meeting on 2/16/04 
 
7. The World Café Forum – Report from Attendee Monika Govindaraj; held Thurs, 12/18 6-9 

PM 
 
8. Intent to Reduce Size of TYC to 13 – agenda item for 2/2/04 or 2/16/04 City Council 

Meeting; Fitzpatrick to advise TYC of date by email. 
 
9. Troy’s 50th Anniversary in 2005: Youth Involvement & Research Project opportunities; 

speaker from museum for February Meeting – start thinking about it now! 
      Flyer re: research project – more info next month 
 
10. Youth Council Comments 
 
11. Miscellaneous Announcements:  

• Next Meeting: Wed, 2/25/04 at City Hall, Lower Level Conference Room 7:00 PM 
• Boards & Committees Appreciation Banquet Sat, 2/14/04, 6:30 PM: Invites sent in 

mail.  RSVP by 2/6/04.  Bring a guest (friend, parent, sibling, date, etc.) – it is a 
good time! 

• Internships – submit resumes to Fitzpatrick and she will pass them along to the 
Chamber of Commerce Human Resources Council.  The Chamber is taking the 
internship suggestion under advisement. 

• February Meeting: Troy’s 50th Anniversary 
• February or March Meeting: Finalize Selection Process of new TYC members 
• Old Poster: Does anyone want the old poster? YuJing? 

12. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

Reminder Next Meeting: 2/25/04 7:00 P.M. 
Location: CITY HALL 

 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:44 p.m. 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Christina Krokosky, Co-chair 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Laura Fitzpatrick, Assistant to the City Manager 



TROY CATV ADVISORY COMMITTEE – DRAFT January 22, 2004 
 
Call to Order 
 
The regular meeting was called to order at 7:05 p.m.   
 
 
Roll Call 
 

Present: Bryan Wehrung  Richard Hughes 
  Jerry Bixby   Fan Lin, student rep 
  Kent Voigt     Cindy Stewart, City Liaison 

Penny Marinos 
 
Bob Victor, Guest 
 

Absent: Shazud Butt 
 
 
Introduction 
 

Bob Victor, Interested in filling the vacancy of Dick Minnick.  Bob is self-
employed in technological solutions.  His background is in the fields of radio 
and technology.  A graduate of Citizens Academy, he is a 27 year resident.  

 
 
Approval of Minutes 
 
Motion to approve minutes of October 15, 20032 by Voigt, second by Bixby. 
Approved unanimously. 

 
 

Correspondence 
 

A. WOW – Price Changes – October 29, 2003 Letter:  Price increases effective 
after 12/14/03.  Monthly price for Limited Basic Cable Service changing to 
$11.99, Basic Cable Service to $39.99, and Monthly price for Digital Cable 
changed to $17.99.  WOW Cable Modem is now $2.50. 

 
B. Comcast – Cable Guide Book No Longer Available – Nov. 14, 2003 Letter:  

They do offer an interactive on-screen guide, which appears to be a better 
alternative. 

 
C. Comcast – New Channel, Oxygen, added to digital lineup on 12/18, 2003. 

 
D. Comcast – Price Changes – Nov. 24, 2003 Letter 

Price Changes Old  New  Increase 
Digital Silver  64.99  67.99  4.4% 
Digital Gold   75.99  78.99  3.8% 
Digital Platinum 86.99  90.99  4.5% 
Starz Digital  9.95  14.95  50% 

City of Troy
G-01



TROY CATV ADVISORY COMMITTEE – DRAFT January 22, 2004 
 
 

 2

 
Board agrees that in recent years Comcast has taken steps to improve 
customer service. 

   
E. Comcast – New Channel, TV Orient added to digital lineup – 12/18/04 
 
F. Comcast – New Channel Additions (Cinemax HDTV, Starz Kids, Soapnet)  

& Channel Repositions (MTV Espanol, VH1 Soul, Nick Too) – 12/16/03.  
 

F. Resignation from CAC Member Richard Minnick dated Jan. 5, 2004 
 

 
New Business 
 
 

A. Cable Franchise Fee Lawsuit - City Attorney Lou Bluhm 
City of Troy and Royal Oak served first on 12/3/02.  Other cities named include 
Ann Arbor, Grand Rapids, Midland, Canton, Livonia, Muskegon, St. Clare 
Shore, Warren, Westland, and Kalamazoo. 
 
Troy is doing a joint a aggressive defense with Royal Oak, Warren, Midland, 
and St. Clare Shores.  Miller Van Eaton out of Washington D.C. is representing 
our communities.  
 
Argument: They pay 5% of gross revenues ($811,000 for Troy in 2002).  
Since we don’t channel the money directly into cable, but into the general fund, 
they say it constitutes a tax.  And their argument is you cannot tax residents 
without a ballot question.  The number #1 flaw is that it is not us, but cable 
companies with line item on bill.  5% is a rent of our infrastructures, not a tax. 
Flaw #2 - they sued the wrong people.  It should be cable companies 
challenging this, not the communities.  Communities spend lot of time 
negotiating franchise agreements.   
 
By January 23, 2004, the first motion will be filed asking for immediate 
dismissal.  They did not attach contracts and the cable companies, as 
necessary parties should be involved.  Not sure why Troy and Royal Oak sewed 
first.  
Other communities not served include Dearborn.  In Dearborn, all monies there 
are directly segregated and spent on cable.  They also count direct costs - 
infrastructure costs.  
 
These people-filing suit want a refund of the $811,000 to customers, but in 
reality in a class action lawsuit, the attorneys get the money. 
 
FCC says communities are entitled to franchise fees as negotiated in their 
agreements. 



TROY CATV ADVISORY COMMITTEE – DRAFT January 22, 2004 
 
 

 3

 
City Attorney does not want to see Troy defending class action lawsuit- it will 
cost community a substantial amount of money (punitive damages, attorneys 
fees, interest, etc).  Franchise fees are a rent for the use of infrastructure. 
 
In a similar Texas case it was proven that it was legal to charge franchise fees 
and that they were not a tax. 
 
Regarding the lawsuit: 
Cable is also an “elective service.” We do not have to have cable unlike water. 
 
How did the franchise fee as a line item get approved on bill?  Initially bills were 
shown to ICCA for review, but we ultimately had no control.  As a line item a 
FCC decision approved the franchise fee. 
 
Anything CAC can do to assist City Attorney?  CAC can make 
recommendations to city council and make sure cable companies are 
accountable. 
 
CAC members asked City Attorney to provide periodic summary re: lawsuit to 
Cindy for dissemination to the committee.  She will do this.  Troy’s judge in 
this case is Judge Patrick Brennan and for Royal Oak it is Judge Gene Schnelz. 
 
Do you recommend the City doing something such as segregate our franchise 
fees within the city budget for providing cable services? YES. 
 
Franchise agreements do not say that franchise fees must all be used to fund 
cable services.  It is a fee for the use of our rights of way.  
 
Board supports City Attorney’s work in settling this class action lawsuit.  
 

B. CMN 2002-2003 Annual Report – Cindy handed out corrected pages from 
CMN’s Director to their annual report. 

 
 
Old Business 
 

A. Cable Complaint Logs  
 
WideOpenWest:  July - December 2003  
Majority appears to be installation or equipment problems.  Doing much better 
than in past years.  WOW does better in their presentation of complaints. CAC 
could suggest Comcast streamline complaint reporting. 



TROY CATV ADVISORY COMMITTEE – DRAFT January 22, 2004 
 
 

 4

 
Board member ratings -  1- 5 (5 being the highest) 
JB PM BW KU RH FL BV Total 
3.6 4 4 4 5 4 3 3.9 WOW 
3.2 4 4 2 1 3 2 2.7 Comcast 

 
 

 
        IX.  Staff Report 

A. Awards for Cable Productions – Two Philo Awards - good job 
B. CAC Action at last meeting – asked if Council had any comments. No. 
C. Publication list – members will each start reading the publications and 

give reports at future CAC meetings.  All members will also check out 
tvguide.com and cmntv.org.  Cindy will resend publication list with each 
agenda with new listings. 

Kent- Broadcasting & Cable / TV broadcast 
Bob- Internet week 
Fan- Electronic Media 
Penny- New Media Magazine 
Jerry-  
Shazad-  
Red- Interactive Week 
Bryan- TV Technology and Digital Trends 

 
D. WTRY Cable Guide 
E. CMN Cable Guide 
F. ICCA Meeting Notes 
G. Next Meeting is Thursday, April 22 at CMN.  Send map with packet. 

 
Motion to send CAC recommendation to City Council to appoint Bob Victor to 
committee by Marinos, second by Voigt.  All in favor. 
 
 
Motion by Marinos, second by Voigt to adjoin.  Approved unanimously. 
Meeting adjourned at 9:10 pm 
 
 
 

_______________________________________ 
Bryan Wehrung, CAC Chairman 

 
 
 

_______________________________________ 
Cindy Stewart, Recording Secretary 

 



 

 

CIVIL SERVICE COMMISSION (ACT 78) 
MINUTES - Draft 

Thursday, January 22, 2004 - 7:30 AM 
 
 
A Meeting of the Civil Service Commission (Act 78) was held Thursday, January 22, 2004, at 
Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Road in the Lower Level Conference Room. Chairman 
McGinnis called the meeting to order at 7:42 AM. 
 
ROLL CALL 
   PRESENT:  Chairman Donald E. McGinnis, Jr.   
     Commissioner Patrick Daugherty 
     Commissioner David Cannon 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Lori Bluhm - City Attorney, Peggy Clifton - Human Resources 

Director, Police Chief Charles Craft, Captain Dane Slater, Captain 
Edward Murphy, Barbara A. Holmes - Deputy City Clerk, Jeanette 
Menig - Human Resources Specialist  

 
 
Approval of Minutes of September 25, 2003: 
 
Resolution #CSC-2004-01-001 
Moved by Daugherty 
Seconded by Cannon 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the meeting of September 25, 2003 be APPROVED as 
presented. 
 
Yes: All-3 
 
Petitions and Communications:  
 
(a) Approval of Eligible List – Police Officer 
 
Resolution #CSC-2004-01-002 
Moved by Cannon 
Seconded by Daugherty 
 
RESOLVED, That the Eligible List for Classification: Police Officer established on January 22, 
2004 be APPROVED as presented. 
 
Yes: All-3 

 
(b) Approval of Eligible List – Police Sergeant 

 
Resolution #CSC-2004-01-003 
Moved by Cannon 
Seconded by Daugherty 

City of Troy
G-01



Civil Service Commission (Act 78) – Minutes - Draft January 22, 2004 
 

 

 
RESOLVED, That the Eligible List for Classification: Police Sergeant established on 
December 29, 2003 be APPROVED as presented. 
 
Yes: All-3 
 
(c) Approval of Eligible List – Police Lieutenant 

 
Resolution #CSC-2004-01-004 
Moved by Daugherty 
Seconded by Cannon 
 
RESOLVED, That the Eligible List for Classification: Police Lieutenant established on 
December 18, 2003 be APPROVED as presented. 
 
Yes: All-3 
 
New Business: None presented. 
 
Old Business: None presented. 
 
Adjournment:  The meeting was adjourned at 7:46 AM. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Donald E. McGinnis, Jr., Chairman  Barbara A. Holmes, CMC - Deputy City Clerk 
 



City of Troy
G-02a









































 
January 26, 2004 
 
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager  
 
From:  Gary Shripka, Assistant City Manager/Services 

Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 

 Stuart J. Alderman, Superintendent of Recreation 
 
 
Subject: Concession Stand Operations Report 
 
 
Listed below is the annual report from the concessionaire for operations in 2003.  This was 
the first year of a contract with a new vendor – Sport Orion Express and the City. 
Contract terms include: the contractor pays the City 10% of the gross receipts. Less Michigan 
sales tax with a $10,000 minimum annual payment by the contractor. 
 
Gross Sales and payments made to the City follow: 
    2003    2002 
Total gross   $ 58,535.05   $139,235.67 
 
Total gross less tax  $ 55,311.10   $ 131,354.40 
 
X 10%    $   5,531.11  x 15% $   19,703.16 
 
Aquatic Center Total $   4,386.83   $   13,723.39 
 
Parks Total   $   1,144.28   $     5,979.77 
 
Total gross sales were down at all sites in 2003.  Attendance at the Aquatic Center was down 
14,964 in 2003 from 2002; and there were also 23 closed days in 2003 compared to 15 
during the 2002 season.  Not only were there more closed days, but on many days the facility 
closed early or opened late due to poor weather, patrons did not stay as long due to bad 
weather, and the Black Out in mid-August also contributed to less attendance and 
concession sales. 
 
Concession sales were also down at the city parks – Firefighters Park, Flynn Park, and 
Boulan Park due to opening late after completion of Oakland County health requirements.  
The concession was not open for the entire spring soccer season as well as the Soccer City 
Classic on Labor Day weekend (cancelled by Troy Youth Soccer League). 
 
Also attached is the contractor evaluation.  Based on the contractor evaluation, staff 
recommends that the city exercise the first of a three-year option to renew the contract 
administratively per council resolution #2003-04-219 on April 28, 2003. 
 
 
Attachments 
 

City of Troy
G-02b



























January 12, 2004 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Gary A. Shripka, Assistant City Manager\Services  
   Timothy Richnak, Public Works Director  

Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
 
SUBJECT:     Agenda Item - Report and Communication 

Auction – Vehicle Sale  
On December 6, 2003 in St. Clair Michigan 

 

SUMMARY 
 
In compliance with Resolution #2002-12-644-E-9 which requires that final auction 
reporting be submitted to City Council, miscellaneous vehicles were taken by the awarded 
City auctioneer, Mid-Thumb Auctioneering Service, LLC, to an auction held in St. Clair 
Michigan.  The auction was held on Saturday, December 6, 2003.  A list of the vehicles 
auctioned and the amount received is attached.  The contract contains a provision that 
the auctioneer produces final accounting and the funds settlement within 30 days after 
the auction takes place.  He has met the criteria.   
 
The income from the sale is as follows: 

 
 Total gross sales    $21,805.00 

 
Costs:  Auction Fee (6%) $ 1,308.30 

 
 Net Income                          $20,496.70 
 
It should be noted that all vehicles sold were auctioned above the minimum bid required.  
Two vehicles (#291 & #292) did not sell and will be placed in a future auction. 
 
BACKGROUND  
 
Included in the specifications for the auction contract is the ability of our auctioneer to 
take the City’s auction items to other auction locations.  Mid-Thumb Auctioneering, LLC 
suggested using the St. Clair auction, which has been successfully used in the past.  All 
transportation, reporting, and advertising is included in the auction fee.  The Purchasing 
staff places an ad in the newspaper of record (Somerset Gazette Newspaper), and mails 
a notice to anyone who has expressed an interest in our auctions.  This general auction 
list has grown over the years to 120 individual addresses. 

City of Troy
G-02c















 
 
DATE:   January 26, 2004 

  
 

 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
    
FROM:  Gary A. Shripka, Assistant City Manager/Services 
   Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item – Announcement of Public Hearing 

Commercial Vehicle Appeal 3769 Meadowbrook 
Alternative Plan Submitted by Petitioner 

 
 
 
 
On November 24, 2003 City Council passed a resolution approving an appeal to the 
requirements for the outdoor storage of a commercial vehicle on residential property for 
the property at 3769 Meadowbrook.  City Council approved that appeal “until the 
Regular City Council meeting scheduled for Monday, January 5, 2004 at which time the 
petitioner will provide an alternate plan”.  We have been working with the property 
owner on the development of this plan, however, it was not until January 20, 2004 that 
Mrs. Nafsu submitted the attached plan.  The plan indicates the construction of a new 
paved parking area north of the existing garage for the parking of the vehicle behind the 
front line of the home.  The petitioner is asking for your approval for this alternate plan. 
 
In response to the revised request, a new public hearing would be appropriate.  Unless 
Council directs otherwise, a public hearing will be scheduled for your meeting of 
February 23, 2004. 
 
We have attached for your reference a copy of the original minutes, and copies of the 
documents now submitted by the petitioner. 
 
We will be happy to provide any additional information that you require regarding this 
matter. 

City of Troy
G-03a



 



 



 



 



From The City Council Meeting of November 24, 2004 
 
Resolution #2003-11-601 
Moved by Beltramini   
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
WHEREAS, Section 44.02.02 of Chapter 39, Zoning, of the Code of the City of Troy 
provides that actions to grant appeals to the restrictions on outdoor parking of 
commercial vehicles in residential districts pursuant to Section 40.66.00 of Chapter 39 
of the Code of the City of Troy "shall be based upon at least one of the following 
findings by the City Council: 
 
A. The occurrence of the subject commercial vehicle on the residential site involved is 

compelled by parties other than the owner or occupant of the subject residential 
site (e.g. employer). 

B. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no reasonable or feasible 
alternative locations for the parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 

 
C. A garage or accessory building on the subject residential site cannot 

accommodate, or cannot reasonably be constructed or modified to accommodate, 
the subject commercial vehicle. 

 
D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 

commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will 
not negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact 
pedestrian and vehicular movement along the frontage street(s)."; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has found that the petitioner has 
demonstrated the presence of the following condition(s), justifying the granting of a 
variance:    
 
No conditions provided by Council.        
 . 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from Mr. Mazin Nafsu, 3769 
Meadowbrook, for waiver of Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00, of the Code of the City of 
Troy, to permit outdoor parking of a box truck in a residential district is hereby 
APPROVED until the Regular City Council meeting scheduled for Monday, January 5, 
2004 at which time the petitioner will provide an alternate plan. 
 
Yes: Howrylak, Lambert, Pryor, Beltramini, Broomfield, Eisenbacher  
No: Stine  
 



 
January 27, 2004 
 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Gary A. Shripka, Assistant City Manager/Services 
 Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 

Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM – PUBLIC HEARING ANNOUNCEMENT (February 23, 

2004) - Article II (Changes, Amendments and Approvals) Zoning Ordinance 
amendments and repeal of Chapter 40 (ZOTA # 203) 

 
 
The powers and duties of the Planning Commission are presently listed in Chapter 40 of 
the City Code, titled “City Planning Commission”.   The Planning Commission Voting 
Requirements are presently listed only in the Planning Commission Bylaws.  The Planning 
Commission, with assistance from City Management and the City Attorney’s office, 
determined that these provisions should more appropriately be included in the Zoning 
Ordinance.  City Management agrees with this determination. 
 
This text amendment will have the effect of listing these important provisions in Article II in 
the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance.  Chapter 40 of the City Code will be repealed. 
 
There are two versions of the text amendment, the City Management Version and the 
Planning Commission Version.  There are two differences between the two versions.  First, 
City Management recommends eliminating Article 02.10.04 from the Planning 
Commission Version, which states that the City Planning Commission is allowed to incur 
expenses.  State law already permits the Planning Commission to incur expenses, so 
stating this fact is unnecessary.  Second, City Management recommends the Planning 
Commission compensation be determined by City Council, as opposed to listing the 
compensation in Chapter 39.  
 
cc: File/ZOTA #203 
 Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
Attachments: 
1. Planning Commission Version, dated 12 04 03 
2. City Management Version, dated 01 13 04 
3. Planning Commission minutes, dated 12 09 03 
 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 203 Planning Commission Chapter 40\CC Public Hearing Memo 01 26 04.doc 

City of Troy
G-03b



   
  12/04/03 

1

 
PROPOSED ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 

(ZOTA 203) 
Article II - Planning Commission, Changes and Amendments to the Zoning Ordinance, and 

Approvals 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION VERSION 
 
Amend the indicated portions of Article II Changes, Amendments and Approvals text in the 
following manner to replace Chapter 40 of the City Code (to be repealed) including language 
regarding Voting Requirements: 
 
(Underlining, except for major section titles, denotes changes.) 
 
 
02.00.00 ARTICLE II  PLANNING COMMISSION, CHANGES, AND AMENDMENTS TO THE 

ZONING ORDINANCE, AND APPROVALS 
 
02.10.00 PLANNING COMMISSION 
  The City Planning Commission heretofore created pursuant to Public Act 

285 of 1931, as amended, and the City Charter, is hereby continued.  The City 
Planning Commission is hereby designated as the Commission specified in Section 4, of 
Act 207 of the Public Acts of 1921, as amended, and shall perform the duties of said 
Commission as provided in the Statute in connection with the amendment of this Chapter. 

 
02.10.01 MEMBERS, TERMS 

The City Planning Commission shall consist of nine (9) members who shall have 
the qualifications of electors and shall represent insofar as possible different 
professions or occupations and who shall be appointed by the Mayor subject to 
the approval by a majority vote of the City Council.  No member shall hold any 
other municipal office except that one of such members may be a  member of the 
Board of Zoning Appeals.  Each member shall receive as compensation for his 
services the sum of Twenty Five ($25.00) Dollars for each Regular or Special 
Meeting of the Commission which is attended by each member but not to exceed 
Nine Hundred Dollars ($900.00) per annum.  The term of each member shall be 
three (3) years, except that three (3)  members of the first commission so 
appointed shall serve for the term of one (1) year, three (3) for a term of two (2) 
years and three for a term of three (3) years.  All members shall hold office until 
their successors are appointed.  Members may, after a public hearing, be removed 
by the Mayor for inefficiency, neglect of duty or malfeasance in office.  Vacancies 
occurring otherwise than through the expiration of term shall be filled for the 
unexpired term by the mayor. 
 

02.10.02 POWERS AND DUTIES 
The City Planning Commission shall have the powers and duties vested in it by 
the laws of the State of Michigan and the Ordinance Code of the City of Troy and 
shall consider and make its recommendations to the City Council on any matters 
referred to it by the City Council relating to such duties including: 
 
(1) The making and adopting of a master plan for the physical development of 

the municipality.  Such plan shall show among other things, the 
Commission’s recommendations for the general location, character and 
extent of streets, boulevards, parkways, playgrounds, parks, location of 



   
  12/04/03 

2

public buildings, and utilities, and the change of use, extension, removal, 
relocation, widening, narrowing, vacating or abandoning of any of the 
foregoing. 

 
(2) A zoning plan for the control of the height, area, bulk, location and use of 

buildings and premises, and all changes and amendments thereof. 
 
(3) The recommendation of approval of all preliminary plats subdividing land 

in the City of Troy and of any amendments or alterations thereof. 
 
02.10.03 VOTING REQUIREMENTS 

The concurring vote of 5 members of the Planning Commission is necessary to 
decide in favor of the applicant on site plan review and special use requests 
unless the Planning Commission does not have final jurisdiction on the matter. 
The concurring vote of 6 members of the Planning Commission is necessary for 
approval of master plan or future land use plan amendments.  All other issues 
before the Planning Commission, including, but not limited to, rezoning 
proposals, site condominium plans, planned unit developments, ordinance text 
amendments, subdivision plats, street and alley vacations or extensions, and 
historic district designations are recommendations to City Council and the 
concurrence of a majority of those Commission members present at the meeting 
is necessary to recommend an action to the City Council. 
 

02.10.04 FINANCES 
The City Planning Commission may be allowed such funds for expenses as 
deemed advisable by the City Council and all debts and expenses incurred by the 
City Planning Commission shall be limited by such amount. 

 
02.20.00 CHANGES AND AMENDMENTS 
  The Troy City Council may from time to time, on recommendation from the City Planning 

Commission, or on petition amend, supplement or change the District boundaries or the 
regulations herein, or subsequently established herein pursuant to the authority and 
procedure established in Act 207 of the Public Acts of 1921 as amended. 

 
02.30.00  VESTED RIGHT 
  Nothing in this Chapter should be interpreted or construed to give rise to any permanent 

vested rights in the continuation of any particular use, District, zoning classification or any 
permissible activities therein; and, they are hereby declared to be subject to subsequent 
amendment, change or modification as may be necessary to the preservation or protection 
of public health, safety and welfare. 

 
02.40.00 COMMISSION APPROVAL 
  In cases where the City Planning Commission is empowered to approve certain use of 

premises under the provisions of this Chapter, the applicant shall furnish such surveys, 
plans or other information as may be reasonably required by said Commission for the 
proper consideration of the matter.  The Planning Commission shall investigate the 
circumstances of each such case and shall notify such parties, who may in its opinion be 
affected thereby, of the time and place of any hearing which may be held relative thereto as 
required under its rules of procedure.  The Planning Commission may impose such 
conditions or limitations in granting approval as may in its judgment be necessary to fulfill 
the spirit and purpose of this Chapter.  Any approval given by the Commission, under which 
premises are not used or work is not started within twelve (12) months or when use or work 
has been abandoned for a period of twelve (12) months, shall lapse and cease to be in 
effect. 



   
  12/04/03 

3

 
02.50.00 ENFORCEMENT, PENALTIES AND OTHER REMEDIES 
 
02.50.01 VIOLATIONS: 
  Any person, firm or corporation violating any of the provisions of this Chapter shall be guilty 

of a misdemeanor, and upon conviction thereof, shall be subject to a fine of not more than 
one hundred ($100.00) dollars and the costs of prosecution or, in default of the payment 
thereof, shall be punished by imprisonment in the County Jail for a period not to exceed 
ninety (90) days for each offense, or by both such fine and imprisonment in the discretion of 
the Court, together with the costs of such prosecution. 

 
02.50.02 PUBLIC NUISANCE PER SE: 
  Any building or structure which is erected, altered or converted, or any use of premises or 

land which is begun or changed subsequent to the time of passage of this Chapter and in 
violation of any of the provisions thereof is hereby declared to be a public nuisance per se, 
and may be abated by order to any court of competent jurisdiction. 

 
02.50.03 FINES, IMPRISONMENT: 
  The owner of any building, structure or premises or part thereof, where any condition in 

violation of this Chapter shall exist or shall be created, and who has assisted knowingly in 
the commission of such violation shall be guilty of a separate offense and upon conviction 
thereof shall be liable to the fines and imprisonment herein provided. 

 
02.50.04 EACH DAY A SEPARATE OFFENSE: 
  A separate offense shall be deemed committed upon each day during or when violation 

occurs or continues. 
 
02.50.05 RIGHTS AND REMEDIES ARE CUMULATIVE: 
  The rights and remedies provided herein are cumulative and in addition to any other 

remedies provided by law. 
 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 203 Planning Commission Chapter 40\PC Version Amendment to PC Ord 12 04 03.doc 
 



   
  1/13/04 

1

 
PROPOSED ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 

(ZOTA 203) 
Article II - Planning Commission, Changes and Amendments to the Zoning Ordinance, and 

Approvals 
 

CITY MANAGEMENT VERSION 
 
 
Amend the indicated portions of Article II Changes, Amendments and Approvals text in the 
following manner to replace Chapter 40 of the City Code (to be repealed) including language 
regarding Voting Requirements: 
 
 
(Underlining, except for major section titles, denotes changes.) 
 
 
02.00.00 ARTICLE II  PLANNING COMMISSION, CHANGES, AND AMENDMENTS TO THE 

ZONING ORDINANCE, AND APPROVALS 
 
02.10.00 PLANNING COMMISSION 
  The City Planning Commission that was created pursuant to Public Act 285 

of 1931, as amended, and the City Charter, is hereby continued.  The City 
Planning Commission is hereby designated as the Commission specified in Section 4, of 
Act 207 of the Public Acts of 1921, as amended, and shall perform the duties of said 
Commission as provided in the Statute in connection with the amendment of this Chapter. 

 
02.10.01 MEMBERS, TERMS 

The City Planning Commission shall consist of nine (9) members who shall have 
the qualifications of electors and shall represent insofar as possible different 
professions or occupations and who shall be appointed by the Mayor subject to 
the approval by a majority vote of the City Council.  No member shall hold any 
other municipal office except that one of such members may be a  member of the 
Board of Zoning Appeals.  Each member shall receive compensation for services 
as determined by City Council.  The term of each member shall be three (3) years, 
except that three (3)  members of the first commission so appointed shall serve 
for the term of one (1) year, three (3) for a term of two (2) years and three for a 
term of three (3) years.  All members shall hold office until their successors are 
appointed.  Members may, after a public hearing, be removed by the Mayor for 
inefficiency, neglect of duty or malfeasance in office.  Vacancies occurring 
otherwise than through the expiration of term shall be filled for the unexpired term 
by the mayor. 
 

02.10.02 POWERS AND DUTIES 
The City Planning Commission shall have the powers and duties vested in it by 
the laws of the State of Michigan and the Ordinance Code of the City of Troy and 
shall consider and make its recommendations to the City Council on any matters 
referred to it by the City Council relating to such duties including: 
 
(1) The making and adopting of a master plan for the physical development of 

the municipality.  Such plan shall show among other things, the 
Commission’s recommendations for the general location, character and 
extent of streets, boulevards, parkways, playgrounds, parks, location of 



   
  1/13/04 

2

public buildings, and utilities, and the change of use, extension, removal, 
relocation, widening, narrowing, vacating or abandoning of any of the 
foregoing. 

 
(2) A zoning plan for the control of the height, area, bulk, location and use of 

buildings and premises, and all changes and amendments thereof. 
 
(3) The recommendation of approval of all preliminary plats subdividing land 

in the City of Troy and of any amendments or alterations thereof. 
 
02.10.03 VOTING REQUIREMENTS 

The concurring vote of 5 members of the Planning Commission is necessary to 
decide in favor of the applicant on site plan review and special use requests 
unless the Planning Commission does not have final jurisdiction on the matter. 
The concurring vote of 6 members of the Planning Commission is necessary for 
approval of master plan or future land use plan amendments.  All other issues 
before the Planning Commission, including, but not limited to, rezoning 
proposals, site condominium plans, planned unit developments, ordinance text 
amendments, subdivision plats, street and alley vacations or extensions, and 
historic district designations are recommendations to City Council and the 
concurrence of a majority of those Commission members present at the meeting 
is necessary to recommend an action to the City Council. 
 

02.20.00 CHANGES AND AMENDMENTS 
  The Troy City Council may from time to time, on recommendation from the City Planning 

Commission, or on petition amend, supplement or change the District boundaries or the 
regulations herein, or subsequently established herein pursuant to the authority and 
procedure established in Act 207 of the Public Acts of 1921 as amended. 

 
02.30.00  VESTED RIGHT 
  Nothing in this Chapter should be interpreted or construed to give rise to any permanent 

vested rights in the continuation of any particular use, District, zoning classification or any 
permissible activities therein; and, they are hereby declared to be subject to subsequent 
amendment, change or modification as may be necessary to the preservation or protection 
of public health, safety and welfare. 

 
02.40.00 COMMISSION APPROVAL 
  In cases where the City Planning Commission is empowered to approve certain use of 

premises under the provisions of this Chapter, the applicant shall furnish such surveys, 
plans or other information as may be reasonably required by said Commission for the 
proper consideration of the matter.  The Planning Commission shall investigate the 
circumstances of each such case and shall notify such parties, who may in its opinion be 
affected thereby, of the time and place of any hearing which may be held relative thereto as 
required under its rules of procedure.  The Planning Commission may impose such 
conditions or limitations in granting approval as may in its judgment be necessary to fulfill 
the spirit and purpose of this Chapter.  Any approval given by the Commission, under which 
premises are not used or work is not started within twelve (12) months or when use or work 
has been abandoned for a period of twelve (12) months, shall lapse and cease to be in 
effect. 



   
  1/13/04 

3

 
02.50.00 ENFORCEMENT, PENALTIES AND OTHER REMEDIES 
 
02.50.01 VIOLATIONS: 
  Any person, firm or corporation violating any of the provisions of this Chapter shall be guilty 

of a misdemeanor, and upon conviction thereof, shall be subject to a fine of not more than 
one hundred ($100.00) dollars and the costs of prosecution or, in default of the payment 
thereof, shall be punished by imprisonment in the County Jail for a period not to exceed 
ninety (90) days for each offense, or by both such fine and imprisonment in the discretion of 
the Court, together with the costs of such prosecution. 

 
02.50.02 PUBLIC NUISANCE PER SE: 
  Any building or structure which is erected, altered or converted, or any use of premises or 

land which is begun or changed subsequent to the time of passage of this Chapter and in 
violation of any of the provisions thereof is hereby declared to be a public nuisance per se, 
and may be abated by order to any court of competent jurisdiction. 

 
 
 
02.50.03 FINES, IMPRISONMENT: 
  The owner of any building, structure or premises or part thereof, where any condition in 

violation of this Chapter shall exist or shall be created, and who has assisted knowingly in 
the commission of such violation shall be guilty of a separate offense and upon conviction 
thereof shall be liable to the fines and imprisonment herein provided. 

 
02.50.04 EACH DAY A SEPARATE OFFENSE: 
  A separate offense shall be deemed committed upon each day during or when violation 

occurs or continues. 
 
02.50.05 RIGHTS AND REMEDIES ARE CUMULATIVE: 
  The rights and remedies provided herein are cumulative and in addition to any other 

remedies provided by law. 
 
 
G:\ZOTAs \ZOTA 203 Planning Commission Chapter 40\City Mgt Version Amendment to PC Ord 01 13 04.doc 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL  DECEMBER 9, 2003 

 
ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 

 
6. PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 203) – 

Article 02.00.00 – Changes, Amendments and Approvals, edit text to replace 
Chapter 40 of the City Code (to be repealed) and include language regarding 
Voting Requirements 
 
Mr. Miller reviewed the proposed text amendment that would list the Planning 
Commission powers and duties and voting requirements in the City of Troy 
Zoning Ordinance. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2003-12-066 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Storrs 
 
RESOLVED, that the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that ARTICLE II (CHANGES, AMENDMENTS AND APPROVALS) of the 
Zoning Ordinance, be amended as printed on the Planning Commission 
recommended amendment, dated 12/04/03. 
 
Yes: Kramer, Littman, Schultz, Storrs, Vleck, Waller, Wright 
No: Strat 
Absent: Chamberlain 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Strat said he would have preferred more time to review the matter.   
 
Mr. Schultz said that Section 01.10.04 (FINANCES) may have to be addressed in 
the future based on the Planning Commission budgetary process that was 
discussed at the recent joint meeting with the City Council and City Management.   
 
Mr. Strat agreed that his primary concern with the text amendment was Section 
01.10.04 (FINANCES).   
 

 



City of Troy
G-06







City of Troy
G-07a









City of Troy
G-07b



City of Troy
G-07c



City of Troy
G-07d



City of Troy
G-08



January 16, 2004 
 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Gary A. Shripka, Assistant City Manager-Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item – Election of Planning Commissioner Officers for 2004 
 
 
 
Article II, Section 1, of the Planning Commission By-Laws provides the Planning 
Commission selects a Chair, Vice Chair, and Board of Zoning Appeals (BZA) 
Representative and Alternate.  Article II, Section 1, requires that the election of 
officers shall occur at the January Regular Meeting.  The By-Laws state that the 
officers of the Commission shall consist of a Chair and a Vice Chair.  The Board of 
Zoning Appeals Representative and Alternate must be approved by City Council as 
per the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance. 
 
At their January 13, 2004 Regular Meeting, the following Resolution was adopted by 
the Planning Commission. 

 
 

Resolution # PC-2004-01-008 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That David Waller and Gary Chamberlain be nominated to serve as 
Chair and Vice Chair of the Planning Commission, respectively, for 2004, and that 
Thomas Strat and Robert Schultz be recommended to the City Council as the 
Commission’s Board of Zoning Appeals representative and alternate, 
respectively, for 2004, and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that nominations be closed and that these officers 
be elected and representatives recommended, as indicated.   
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Storrs 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
G:\Planning Commission\Board of Zoning Appeals\Election of PC & BZA Rep_2004.doc 
 

City of Troy
G-09



 

 

January 27, 2004 
 
 
 
 

 
John Szerlag,  
City Manager 
 
 
Re: Retirement 
 
Dear Mr. Szerlag, 
 
Since 1977 it has been both a privilege and a pleasure to serve the City of Troy.  
Now after almost 27 years of service I believe it’s time to provide an opportunity 
for someone else to experience the challenges and satisfaction associated with my 
current position.  That said, I have submitted my retirement papers.  My last day as 
an employee of the City will be May 14, 2004. 
 
Thank you for your trust and confidence, hopefully I have performed to your 
expectations. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Gary A. Shripka 
Assistant City Manager/Services 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Agenda items\2004\02.02.04 - Retirement 

City of Troy
G-10



 

 

 
 
 
                         January 26, 2004 

 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: John Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
  Cynthia Stewart, Community Affairs Director 
  Laura Fitzpatrick, Assistant to the City Manager 
   
SUBJECT: Youth Council’s Intent to Further Reduce Membership Size  
 
 
 
At its December 17, 2003 meeting the Youth Council voted to reduce its membership 
from 16 members to 13 members, effective August 2004.  This is the TYC’s second 
reduction and follows an August 2003 decision to reduce its size from 20 members to 
16 members (occurring through attrition).  At that time, an additional size reduction (to 
an odd number) was noted as item for future study.   
Such future study occurred at the TYC’s December meeting where goals for 2004 were 
discussed.  These size reduction decisions are a result of the TYC’s desire to function 
more effectively.   
 
Issues raised in support of the reduction include: 
 

o A 15 to 20-member board is too large to have an effective group discussion.  
(The more productive discussions have occurred at the meetings with lower 
attendance.) 

o At 16 members, the TYC is the largest Board/Committee in the City.  (The next 
largest is the DDA at 13 members, with the average board size being seven 
members.) 

 
The TYC intends to downsize through attrition when 4 members graduate in Summer 
2004.  At that time it will be necessary to fill at least one vacancy.   
 
Note that staff anticipates that this second size reduction is the final one.  The current 
members on the TYC have been in office since the inception of the TYC.  Adjustments 
have occurred over the past eighteen months as this new board establishes itself.  Such 
size reductions are part of these adjustments.  A gradual reduction in size has allowed 
changes to occur through attrition. 
 
 
 

City of Troy
G-11



 

 

Background/Timeline: 
 
March 18, 2002: City Council authorizes formation of the TYC.  The resolution states: 
“RESOLVED, that the City of Troy will support the formation of a Youth Council and 
direct staff to assist the students in this endeavor.”   
May 6, 2002: City Council appoints fourteen members to the TYC.  The supporting 
memo does not specify an exact number for membership; however, a “larger” body is 
recommended. 
June 17, 2002: City Council appoints five members to the TYC. 
July 8, 2002: City Council appoints twentieth member to the TYC. 
Summer 2003:  

o One member of the TYC resigns to serve on the Downtown Development 
Authority, one member graduates and two members fail to request renewal of 
their term. 

o The remaining sixteen members all express a desire to be re-appointed.  
Discussions about size of the body commence.  Note that any reduction in size 
would be done gradually, with decreases occurring as members graduate or fail 
to request appointment renewal. 

September 8, 2003: TYC’s initial intent to reduce size sent to City Council in a 
Report/Communications Agenda Item. 
 
Resolution from August 27, 2003 Youth Council Meeting 
Moved by Chong 
Seconded by Herzog 
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy Youth Council hereby amends its bylaws, reducing its 
membership from twenty members to sixteen members with the intent of considering 
additional reductions (to an odd number) after further study. 
 
Yays:  All - 14 
Nays:  None 
Absent: Deng, Michrina 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution from the December 17, 2003 Youth Council Meeting 
Moved by Gregory 
Seconded by Cheng 
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy Youth Council hereby amends its bylaws, reducing its 
membership from sixteen members to thirteen members effective August 2004.  This 
reduction will happen through attrition when four members graduate in Summer 2004. 
 
Yes:  All – 12 
No:  None 
Absent:         D’Amico, Deng, Krokosky, Vennettilli 
MOTION CARRIED 



City of Troy
G-12



January 7, 2004 
 
 
TO:    John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM :   Gary Shripka, Assistant City Manager/Services 

Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director  
Stuart J. Alderman, Superintendent of Recreation 

 
SUBJECT:   Parks and Recreation Program Changes 
 
 
As you know, the Parks and Recreation Department offers programs with no cost. Since the 
department has been challenged to meet the subsidy goal, changes to programming may occur from 
time to time. Below are programs that have historically had no fee assessed for participation but 
which will have a fee beginning with the spring session of programs. Information includes the number 
of people currently in the programs, current expenditures and anticipated revenue. 
 
         Program  Anticipated  
   Fee Recommendation # People Expenditures  Revenue 
Senior Gardens $20 per person, per year 78  $1320   $1560 
 
Senior Softball $32 per person, per season 32  $997   $1024 * 

* Cost does not include bases ($370) which we do not buy each year.  Direct expenses for softball 
include team entry fees ($220), umpires ($600), and softballs ($177), which is what revenue projections 
are estimated to cover, and are much greater than those for senior volleyball – entry fees ($594), balls 
($132), minus gym costs ($2520).  The current volleyball fee of $25 per player only covers the cost of 
the entry fee, volleyballs, and minimal gym costs.  The volleyball league has self-officiated games. 

 
Senior Newsletter $4 per person, per year 2500  $19,000  $10,000   
 This would cover approximately 50% of the cover for this program. 
 
Sr Stretch and Tone $1 per class   20/class aver $940   $1880  

   
Sr Chair Exercise $1 per class   28/class aver $2350   $2632 
 
Community Center  $3 per person, per session 3120/year $28,000/year  $9,360/year 
Youth drop-in Basketball    
    

City of Troy
G-13



 
 
Additional program changes will be implemented as follows: 
 
1.  The summer concert series will be reduced from seven concerts to three concerts – one in June, 
one in July, and one in August.  This will be a cost savings of approximately $9000.The reason this 
change is warranted is due to high costs and a limited attendance numbers at concerts. 
 
2. The Robinwood/Morse summer youth day camp program be dropped due high costs and minimal 
number of people served.  In its place, we will offer this neighborhood area the Roving Recreation site 
one day per week.  This will be a cost savings of approximately $7000.  Contact has been made with 
the Troy Police department (who helped establish this program) and the principal at Morse 
Elementary School (site of the program).  Both understand the situation and agree with our 
recommendation. 
 
3. Amend the age limit for the young adult basketball drop-in program to age 13-17.  The reason for 
the change is when the current policy was established prior to opening the Community Center, the 
intent was to provide a free service to the teens in the community.  The age established was for 
youngsters age 13-21.  Based on attendance, the majority of participants are age 13-17.  Many of the 
individuals age 18-21 are pass holders or are able to pay the daily fee if needed.   
 
Open basketball is becoming more popular with pass holders.  The current policy allows residents 
age 13-21 to use the gymnasium at select times without purchasing a pass.  One court is reserved for 
approximately 12 hours per week during the school year and 20 hours per week when school is not in 
session.  The standard daily fee for residents age 13 and above is $8 per visit, $10 for non-residents, 
and $12 for a guest.    As we block off gym time for the free youth program, many pass holders are 
unable to use the courts, staff are unable to program activities, and gym rentals are also restricted.  
Prior to the opening of the new Community Center’s gymnasium, the Parks and Recreation 
department did offer drop-in basketball one night per week for teens at a local middle school.  Since 
then, that program has been dropped in lieu of the youth basketball free program at the Community 
Center.   
 
Based on the annual attendance of 3120 participants in this program, the average cost per visit is 
$9.23.  Cost of gym time would be $28,800 annually.  The fee would not cover all gym costs, but 
would still provide revenue for gym costs and provide an activity for teen residents. 
 
  

   
 
 
  
 
 
 



January 9, 2004 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Gary A. Shripka, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
  Jeffrey J. Biegler, Superintendent of Parks 
 
SUBJECT: Cricket Site Development 
 
 
At their October 27, 2003 meeting, City Council directed staff to consider the new 
Livernois Road park site for accommodation of a combination cricket/football field 
site with input from the Michigan Cricket Association, The Troy Cowboys, and 
Livernois Road park neighbors. 
 
Two meetings were held with representatives of the Michigan Cricket Association 
and the Troy Youth Football Association for the purposes of clarifying the needs 
of each group relating to playing fields and outlining the estimated costs for 
development of the fields and their supporting infrastructure. It was thought that 
although each field had a specific use, locating both fields at one site would take 
advantage of shared amenities such as parking, restrooms, concessions, etc. 
 
Estimates for construction of a cricket field, football field and all accompanying 
supporting amenities is attached to this report.  
 
Venkatt Malya, Chairman of the Michigan Cricket Association, and Toni Berti, 
President of the Troy Youth Football Association represented their respective 
organizations at the meetings with City staff. Each was asked to provide the City 
with a statement indicating the level of participation their group was willing to 
contribute toward the cost to develop the fields at the new Livernois Road park 
site. 
 
A letter from the Michigan Cricket Association (attached) indicates that 
organization is willing to contribute $30,000 over a period of 5 years, which is 
roughly one third of the estimated cost to put in the field, only. The MICHCA 
report includes a request for the use of the Nelson Drain Cricket field until a 
permanent cricket field can be completed. 
 
Also attached is a report from the Troy Youth Football Association committing 
$30,000 toward the development of a game field. The TYFA report sites the 
limitations with the field currently provided by the City at Boulan Park and their 
concerns over a lack of available parking at the new Livernois Road park site to 
accommodate the numbers of spectators that attend their games. The TYFA 
report offers alternative, and preferable sites for a football field in existing parks 

City of Troy
G-14



(Boulan Park, Firefighters Park) that already have parking, restrooms, and 
concessions in place.  
 
At this time, Staff is seeking direction regarding the next step in this process, 
consideration for City funding, the field site preferences of the Troy Youth 
Football Association, use of the Nelson Drain for Cricket in 2004, and funding 
expectations of both organizations. 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachments:  Section 22 Cricket/Football Facility Cost Estimates 
   Michigan Cricket Association Letter 
   Troy Youth Football Association Report 
 
 

 
 
 



Section 22 Cricket/Football Facility 
Cost Estimates  

 
 
Site Preparation   Units  Price/Unit        Total Est. Cost 
Topographic Survey   22 acres $     300.00  $  6,600.00 
Clearing and Removals  1 lump sum $11,000.00  $11,000.00 
    SUBTOTAL     $17,600.00 
 
 
Site Grading 
Site Grading    64,804 s.y $         2.25  $145,809.00 
Furnish and Grade New Topsoil 34,250 s.y. $         1.75  $  59,937.50 
    SUBTOTAL     $205,746.50 
 
 
Parking (100 cars), Entrance Drive, Pathways 
Asphalt Paving    3,906 s.y. $       18.00  $  70,308.00 
Underdrainage   1,240 l.f. $         6.00  $    7,444.00 
Concrete Curb and Gutter  2,015 l.f. $       16.00  $  32,240.00 
Parking Lot Lighting   4 light poles $  3,000.00  $  12,000.00 
Handicap Signage   4 signs $     200.00  $       800.00 
Asphalt path from P. Lot to fields 2,666 s.y. $       18.00  $  47,988.00 
    SUBTOTAL     $170,776.00 
 
 
Utilities 
Water Service   1 lump sum $12,000.00  $  12,000.00 
Electrical (not stadium lights) 1 lump sum $18,000.00  $  18,000.00 
Storm Sewer    1 lump sum $45,000,00  $  45,000.00 

SUBTOTAL     $  75,000.00 
 
 
Building (Year Two) 
Restroom/Concession Building 1200 s.f. $     150.00  $180,000.00 
Sanitary Sewer   1 lump sum $12,000.00  $  12,000.00 
    SUBTOTAL     $192,000.00 
 
 
Cricket Field 
Seeding of Cricket Field  26,250 s.y. $           .80  $  21,000.00 
Irrigation    1 lump sum $32,000.00  $  32,000.00 
Underdrainage   1 lump sum  $32,000.00  $  32,000.00 
Pitch Construction   1 lump sum $10,000.00  $  10,000.00 

SUBTOTAL     $  95,000.00 



 
 
Football Field 
Irrigation    1 lump sum $  22,000.00  $  22,000.00 
Underdrainage   1 lump sum $  22,000.00  $  22,000.00 
Seeding of Football Field               8,000 s.y.     $             .80  $    6,400.00 
Fencing – 6’ chainlink  1450 l.f. $         10.00  $  14,500.00 
Asphalt walkway around field 925 s.y. $         18.00  $  16,650.00 
Bleachers (cap. 100 each)  4  $    6,250.00  $  25,000.00 
Player Benches   4  $       375.00  $    1,500.00 
Concrete Bleacher/Bench slabs 1 lump sum $    7,000.00  $    7,000.00 
Goal Posts    1 pair  $    2,500.00  $    2,500.00 
Score Board    1  $  20,000.00  $  20,000.00  
    SUBTOTAL     $137,550.00 
 
FIRST YEAR COST SUMMARY 
 
Site Preparation     $     17,600.00 
Site Grading      $   205,746.50 
Parking, Drive, Pathway    $   170,776.00 
Utilities      $     75,000.00 
Cricket Field      $     95,000.00 
Football Field     $   137,550.00 
 ESTIMATED FIRST YEAR TOTAL $   701,672.50 
 
 
SECOND YEAR COST SUMMARY 
 
Restroom/Concession Bldg.   $  180,000.00 
Sanitary Sewer     $    12,000.00 
 ESTIMATED SECOND YEAR TOTAL $  192,000.00  
 
 
 
Items not included: 
Site Landscaping (trees, shrubs, etc.)  $    40,000.00 
Football Field Lighting    $  120,000.00 
Play Structure     $  100,000.00 
Site Furniture (benches, tables, trash cans) $    10,000.00 
Elevated Boardwalks    $  133,200.00 
Cricket Bleachers/Benches/Concrete Pads $      8,400.00 
Contingencies/Eng. Fees    $  107,000.00 
 











 

 

January 27, 2004 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Carol Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
  Doug Smith, Real Estate and Development Director 
 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM – City Owned Surplus Parcels 
 
 
At the January 5, 2004 meeting, Council reviewed the recommendations by 
management to sell 29 city owned surplus parcels.  After some discussion, 
Council directed staff to review all of the parcels in terms of the city’s trail system, 
need for open space, pedestrian friendly areas and the existing parks system.  
 
The Parks and Recreation Department staff has reviewed carefully the 
implications of each of these parcels to the above issues.  Major concerns were 
the maintenance costs of small areas relative to the benefits and the need to 
develop what the city has already purchased, but not developed.  In addition, 
staff reviewed with the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board these issues (see 
attached minutes) and concluded that despite some limited value for these 
purposes, the best interest of the city is better served by selling these parcels 
and utilizing the money for park development or other general fund purposes. 
 
 
DS/pg 
 
 

City of Troy
G-15








	Agenda Cover Sheet - February 2, 2004
	Goals
	AGENDA - February 2, 2004
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET - Return to 1st Page
	ROLL CALL
	PRESENTATION:
	A-1 	Troy Community Coalition Anti-Drug Mural Art Project

	PUBLIC HEARINGS – No Public Hearings scheduled.
	POSTPONED ITEM
	D-1	Content Neutral Informational Brochures for Ballot Issues

	PUBLIC COMMENT:
	A.	Items on the Current Agenda
	B. 	Items Not on the Current Agenda

	CONSENT AGENDA
	E-1	Approval of Consent Agenda
	E-2 	Minutes: Regular Meeting of January 26, 2004
	E-3	Proposed City of Troy Proclamation:
	Kindness Week – February 14-21, 2004

	E-4	Amendment to No. 1 to the Preliminary Engineering Agreement with Orchard, Hiltz & McCliment, Inc. (OHM) for Services for John R, Long Lake to Square Lake – Project No. 02.203.5
	E-5	Private Agreement for NBS Headquarters – Project No. 03.934.3
	E-6	Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Option to Renew – Office Supplies
	E-7	Request to Transfer Class C License by Fox & Hound of Michigan, Inc.
	E-8	Private Agreement for Minnesota Spec Bldg. – Project No. 01.935.3
	E-9	Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Pavement Seam and Fracture Sealing Program
	E-10	Load Restrictions
	E-11	Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Option to Renew – Ice Melts Compounds
	E-12	Request for Acceptance of Permanent Watermain Easement – Sidwell #88-20-35-226-098 – Project No. 03.924.3 – Metropolitan Detroit Plumbing Industry Training Trust Fund
	E-13	Announcement of a Public Hearing Regarding Acceptance of a Local Law Enforcement Block Grant
	E-14	Standard Purchasing Resolution 6: Grant Approval and Authorization to Expend City Funds – Solar Emergency Electrical Power Supply
	E-15	Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – Lowest Acceptable Bidder Meeting Specifications – Printing the Senior Newsletter
	E-16	Amendment No. 1 to the Preliminary Engineering Agreement with Orchard, Hiltz & McCliment, Inc. (OHM) for Services for John R, Square Lake to South Boulevard –Project No. 02.204.5
	E-17	Standard Purchasing Resolution #2: Bid Award – Lowest Acceptable Bidder Meeting Specifications - Scoreboards
	E-18	Release of Retained Public Utility Easement at 94 Hickory – Sidwell #88-20-27-156-029 – Daniel Bousho - Owner
	E-19	Barnard Drain Special Assessment Roll
	E-20	Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Spring Opening and Fall Winterizations of the Troy Family Aquatic Center
	E-21	Request for Acceptance of Permanent Water Main Easement – Sidwell #88-20-36-451-047 – Project No. 01.935.3 – Minnesota Ventures, L.L.C.

	REGULAR BUSINESS
	F-1	Appointments to Boards and Committees: (a) Mayoral Appointments: 1. Economic Development Committee; 2. Planning Commission (b) City Council Appointments: 1. Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities; 2. CATV Advisory Committee; 3. Election Com
	F-2	Closed Session
	F-3	Proposed Rescheduling of Liquor Violation Hearing Scheduled for Wednesday, February 25, 2004
	F-4	LED Traffic Signals – Maple Road – Expense Revision to Council Resolution #2001-05-271
	F-5	Resolution to Set a Public Hearing on Monday, February 16, 2004 for a Michigan NextEnergy Exemption
	F-6	Revisions to Chapter 10: Employee Retirement System
	F-7	Streambank Inventory and Detention Basin Inventory Grant
	F-8	Old Troy, L.L.C. v. City of Troy, et. al

	COUNCIL COMMENTS/COUNCIL REFERRALS
	Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for Placement on the Agenda:

	COUNCIL REFERRALS
	REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS
	G-1	Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	Civil Service Commission (Act 78)/Final – September 25, 2003
	Planning Commission-Study/Final – December 2, 2003
	Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – December 3, 2003
	Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – December 3, 2003
	Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – December 4, 2003
	Planning Commission Regular/Final – December 9, 2003
	Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – December 10, 2003
	Library Board/Final – December 11, 2003
	Downtown Development Authority/Final – December 17, 2003
	Youth Council/Final – December 17, 2003
	Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – January 6, 2004
	Planning Commission Special-Study/Draft – January 6, 2004
	Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – January 7, 2004
	Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens – January 8, 2004
	Library Board/Draft – January 8, 2004
	Parks and Recreation Advisory Board/Draft – January 8, 2004
	Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – January 12, 2004
	Planning Commission/Draft – January 13, 2004
	Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – January 20, 2004
	Youth Council/Draft – January 21, 2004
	CATV Advisory Board/Draft – January 22, 2004
	Civil Service Commission (Act78)/Draft – January 22, 2004

	G-2	Department Reports:
	Quarterly Financial Report – December 31, 2003
	Concession Stand Operations Report
	Auction, December 6, 2003 – St. Clair Michigan – Vehicle Sale Report

	G-3	Announcement of Public Hearings:
	Request for Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 3769 Meadowbrook – Alternative Plan Submitted by Petitioner – Scheduled for February 23, 2004
	Article II (Changes, Amendments and Approvals) Zoning Ordinance Amendments and Repeal of Chapter 40 (ZOTA #203) – Scheduled for February 23, 2004

	G-4	Green Memorandums: None submitted.
	G-5	Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None proposed.
	G-6 	Calendar
	G-7 	Letters of Appreciation:
	8th Annual Achievement of Excellence in Procurement 2003 Award Recipients – Jeanette Bennett – Purchasing Director taken from Government Procurement – December 2003
	Letter of Appreciation from Alicia Wahls – Health Educator, Smith Middle School Thanking Officer N. Kaptur for Speaking to Her Class About the Effects of Drugs
	Letter of Appreciation from Fr. Emanuel Shaleta, Pastor of St. Joseph Catholic Chaldean Church, and Sam Younis and Davin Sesi, Parking Enforcement Committee to Chief Craft Thanking the Troy Police Department for Their Assistance With Parking During the H
	Letter of Appreciation from a Proud Troy Citizen Thanking Police Officers Barton and Zagacki for Explaining the Importance of the 911 System to His 9-Year Old Son Who Misused the Phone by Calling 911

	G-8 	Travel Expense Report – Robin Beltramini
	G-9 	Memorandum, Re: Election of Planning Commissioner Officers for 2004
	G-10 	Letter to John Szerlag from Gary A. Shripka , Re: Announcement of His Retirement
	G-11 	Memorandum, Re: Youth Council’s Intent to Further Reduce Membership Size
	G-12 	Memorandum , Re: Report on Traffic Signal Operation – Intersection of Charrington and Rochester
	G-13 	Memorandum, Re: Parks and Recreation Program Changes
	G-14 	Memorandum, Re: Cricket Site Development
	G-15 	Memorandum, Re: City Owned Surplus Parcels

	PUBLIC COMMENT
	STUDY ITEMS – No Study Items submitted.


